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FY 2013
HBC RETAIL SALES

$5,223M

FY 2014
HBC RETAIL SALES

$8,169M

FY 2013
NORMALIZED EBITDA

$405M

FY 2014
NORMALIZED EBITDA

$612 M

HUDSON'S BAY

A Canadian icon

with over three
centuries of brand
heritage, Hudson’s
Bay helped build

the nation; making

it Canada’s most
prominent department
store and one of the
most recognized
brands in the country.

SAME STORE SALES GROWTH?3

+2.1%

LORD & TAYLOR
HUDSON'S BAY
HOME OUTFITTERS

+1.5%

+2.1%

SAKS FIFTH
AVENUE
OFF 5TH

+15.1%

3. Local currency basis.

Saks opened

its doors to

New York City

in 1924, realizing

the vision of a
“unique luxury

store for fashionable
living.” The Saks
Fifth Avenue brand
is now synonymous
around the world
with luxury and style.




HBC 2012-2014 CALENDAR YEAR SHARE PRICE RANGE

HBC
CLOSING
SHARE PRICE

2012
$16.72

$17.93

@ 2014

$24.56

Common Shares of the Hudson’s Bay Company began trading on the Toronto
Stock Exchange under the symbol "HBC” on November 20, 2012.

FY 2014
HBC DIGITAL
SALES

Established in 1826,
Lord & Taylor was
not only the first
department store
inthe U.S., it has
made history with

a number of other
firsts including the
first to offer personal
shopping and the
first female President
of a department
store in the U.S.

FY 2014 HBC
DIGITAL SALES AS A
% OF RETAIL SALES

OFF

oTH

Established in 1995,
Saks Fifth Avenue
OFF 5TH leads

the market as the
premier luxury-
value destination
and is renowned for
its world-class and
carefully curated off-
the-runway trends,
exceptional service,
and extraordinary
value on the biggest
names in fashion

11%

WE OFFER

A CAREFULLY
CURATED
COLLECTION
OF BRANDS.

WE DELIVER

AN EXCEPTIONAL
SERVICE
EXPERIENCE.

WE DELIGHT
AND ENTERTAIN
OUR CUSTOMERS
AT EVERY
TOUCHPOINT.

2013-2014 DSG O
DIGITAL SALES + 0
GROWTH

EHome Outfitters

Founded in 1999,
Home Outfitters
is Canada’s largest
kitchen, bed, and
bath specialty
superstore, known
for providing
Canadians with
stylish, quality
home and lifestyle
merchandise at

great value
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CONTINUING

THE TRADITION
OF INNOVATION,
2014 WAS A
TRANSFORMATIVE
YEAR FOR HBC.




Richard A. Baker,
Governor and Executive Chairman

Gerald L. Storch,
Chief Executive Officer

Total retail

sales of
approximately
$8.2 billion,

up 56.4% year-over-year,
primarily due to the

inclusion of Saks for the
full fifty-two week period.

A MESSAGE FROM

Richard Baker &
Gerald Storch

Dear Shareholders,

For more than 340 years,
Hudson’s Bay Company
has been making history.
Foundedin1670 as “a
Company of Adventurers,”
HBC charted new territory,
innovated trade and
commerce and, ultimately,
helped inspire and build a
nation. Today, HBC is North
America’s oldest company
and operates some of the
most iconic retail banners
in the world - Hudson'’s Bay,
Lord & Taylor, Saks Fifth

Avenue and Saks Fifth Avenue

OFF 5TH. Our portfolio of
brands offers a compelling
assortment of apparel,
accessories, shoes, beauty
and home merchandise.
We are committed to
providing great products,
an exceptional service
experience and elevated
shopping environments for
our customers, both in store
and online.

Continuing the tradition

of innovation, 2014 was a
transformative year for HBC
In addition to strong top
line sales growth across the
Company, the integration

of Saks is already producing
results and HBC is now firmly
positioned as a leader

inthe luxury retail market,
as well as at the forefront of
the off-price segment with
Saks Fifth Avenue OFF 5TH

As we outlined last year,
digital growth has been a

key driver of our strategy

and our investment has
delivered very strong returns.
Digital commerce sales grew
to $900 million in 2014, led
by a 66% increase at DSG,
and now represents 11% of
HBC’s total sales.

On the real estate front,

HBC recently announced
three major transactions;
the $1.25 billion, 20-year
mortgage on the ground

2014 HIGHLIGHTS

2014 moved us significantly closer toward our long-term goal of achieving $10 billion in sales by 2018, with all
businesses reporting same store sales growth, led by the strong performance of Saks Fifth Avenue OFF 5TH.
Key results for the year were:

Digital sales

were $900 million,
up $592 million from last year.

Gross profit
increase of
120 basis points

on acomparable basis.

Same store sales
increased by 7.5%"

On alocal currency basis
same store sales results were:

* DSG: +1.5%

« Saks Fifth Avenue: +2.1%

* Saks Fifth Avenue
OFF 5TH: +15.1%

portion of its Saks Fifth
Avenue flagship in New York
City and two joint ventures
focused on real estate growth
opportunities in the United
States and Canada. These
transactions continue our
history of surfacing value
from our substantial real
estate holdings, while
strengthening HBC’s balance
sheet and financial position.

Finally, we have built a
world-class leadership

team with the appointment
of Jerry Storch as Chief
Executive Officer, Paul Beesly
as Chief Financial Officer,

and lan Putnam as Chief
Corporate Development
Officer. The addition of these
three experienced executives,
as well as the appointment

of Don Watros as President,
HBC International, greatly
enhance the management
team and further positions
HBC to fully execute on our
strategic growth initiatives

Normalized
EBITDA for
the year was
$612 million,

or 7.5% of retail sales.

*2.7% on a local currency basis.
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WE DELIVER
BEST-IN-CLASS
DIGITAL, MOBILE

AND OMNI-CHANNEL

EXPERIENCES FOR
OUR CUSTOMERS.

WE BELIEVE

THERE IS A WHITE
SPACE BETWEEN
THE TRADITIONAL
MASS DISCOUNTER
& THE DEPARTMENT
STORE. SAKS FIFTH
AVENUE OFF 5TH IS
WELL-POSITIONED
TO FILL THIS VOID.

WE ANTICIPATE
OPENING UP TO
SEVEN FULL-LINE
SAKS FIFTH AVE.
LOCATIONS

AND UP TO 25
SAKS FIFTH
AVENUE OFF 5TH
LOCATIONS OVER
THE COMING
YEARS IN CANADA.

WE ARE FOCUSED
ON DRIVING
EFFICIENCIES
THROUGHOUT
OUR ENTIRE
ORGANIZATION.

Building on these results and

the investments that HBC has
made, we have outlined a number
of strategic initiatives that we
believe will drive growth at the
Company moving forward:

All-Channel Growth
With an estimated 70% of retail
transactions influenced by digital,
we are focused on creating a
seamless connection between

the online and in store experience
Historically, our digital capabilities
have been less developed than
many of our competitors, presenting
a substantial opportunity for
growth. Accordingly, in 2014

we increased our investment and
created HBC Digital to provide
common leadership to this
initiative, ensuring that we leverage
the talent and best practices from
across the Company’s different
banners to deliver best-in-class
digital, mobile and omni-channel
experiences for our customers
While we have invested significantly
in improving our digital channels
and offerings, and will continue

to do so, we are just as focused on
enhancing the in store experience
for our customers. The store
environment delivers a multi-
sensory experience that continues
to bring customers into our brick
and mortar locations. These
environments allow us to dazzle
and entertain our shoppers. As

we enter 2015 and beyond, we
believe that retail will be won by
those that offer an outstanding
shopping experience across

all channels.

Expanding our
Off-Price Business

Off-price presents an outstanding
growth opportunity for our
Company. This segment is
growing much faster than the
rest of the retail industry, and
we believe there is a white
space between the traditional
mass discounter and the
department store. Saks Fifth
Avenue OFF 5TH is well-
positioned to fill this void.

Saks Fifth Avenue OFF 5TH
delivers an enhanced value
proposition to better align

with customer expectations,
delivering true fashion and real
value. Our newly designed Saks
Fifth Avenue OFF 5TH store
concept utilizes a modern,
modular format to create an
easier-to shop ‘treasure hunt’
environment. We intend to
significantly increase Saks Fifth
Avenue OFF 5TH’s presence
across North America, by
opening new store locations
and expanding online.

Bringing Saks Fifth
Avenue & Saks Fifth
Avenue OFF 5TH to
Canada

We believe there is a substantial
opportunity for Saks Fifth Avenue
and Saks Fifth Avenue OFF 5TH in
Canada. Relative to other nations,
Canada has an under-developed
luxury market and, per capita,
Canadians are outspending
European and U.S. consumers on
luxury goods, with many of these
consumers travelling abroad

to do so. Canadais also the top
international ship-to destination
for saks.com, signalling solid brand
awareness that resonates across the
country. Meanwhile, the off-price
market in Canada also presents a
tremendous opportunity for the
Saks Fifth Avenue OFF 5TH brand.
We anticipate opening up to seven
full-line Saks Fifth Avenue locations
and up to 25 Saks Fifth Avenue
OFF 5TH locations over the coming
years. Our first two Saks Fifth
Avenue stores will be located in
Toronto; a 150,000 square foot
store in Toronto Eaton Centre,

and a 130,000 square foot store in
Sherway Gardens, both slated to
open in the spring of 2016. Our first
Canadian Saks Fifth Avenue OFF
5TH locations are also scheduled
to openin that same time frame.

Driving Synergies
and Efficiencies

Following the acquisition of Saks
Incorporated, we have targeted
the realization of approximately
$100 million of annualized pre-tax
synergies over three years. After
the first full year with Saks in the
fold, we are happy to report we
remain on plan and have been able
to realize approximately $50 million
of this target through a number of
initiatives including, among others;

« Expanding our shared services
organization to
Saks Fifth Avenue;

« Leveraging our procurement scale;

« Leveraging our technology
infrastructure; and

« Using Saks Fifth Avenue OFF 5TH
as an enterprise-wide liquidation
channel.

In addition, we are focused on
driving efficiencies throughout
our entire organization, for
example, by utilizing technology
to help our merchants buy, allocate
and manage their businesses
more efficiently. We believe that
these projects, combined with
expanded all-channel fulfillment
capabilities, will continue to
enhance merchandise gross
margins over time.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) is intended to assist readers in understanding
the business environment, strategies and performance and risk factors of Hudson’s Bay Company and its direct and
indirect subsidiaries and predecessors or other entities controlled by them, referred to herein as “HBC”, the
“Company”, “we”, “us”, or “our.” It should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and notes thereto for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015. Unless otherwise indicated,

all amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of its Audit Committee, approved the contents of this MD&A.
This MD&A reflects information as of April 6, 2015.

Basis of Presentation

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). Certain previously
reported figures have been restated due to the implementation of International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee 21 — Levies (“IFRIC 217). See “New Accounting Policies — Levies.”

General Information

Hudson’s Bay Company is a Canadian corporation continued under the Canada Business Corporations Act.
In January 2012, through an internal reorganization, Lord & Taylor LLC (“Lord & Taylor”) became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of HBC. On November 26, 2012, the Company completed an initial public offering
(the “IPO”) of its common shares, which trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “HBC.”

On November 4, 2013, the Company completed its acquisition of all of the outstanding shares of Saks
Incorporated (“Saks™), in an all-cash transaction valued at U.S.$2,973 million ($3,097 million), including debt
assumed (the “Saks Acquisition”). The Company’s financial results for Fiscal 2013 include the results of Saks for
the fourth quarter only.

References in this MD&A to Department Store Group (“DSG”) refer to the Company as structured prior
to the acquisition of Saks (i.e., excluding Saks) and was previously referred to as Legacy HBC. As Home
Outfitters merged into the home business at Hudson’s Bay during the second quarter of Fiscal 2014, it is now
reported within DSG effective the third quarter of Fiscal 2014.

References to the “Queen Street Sale” in this MD&A refer to the sale of the Company’s downtown Toronto
flagship store and adjacent Simpson’s Tower office complex in the first quarter of Fiscal 2014 (see note 28 of the
audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2014).

Accounting Periods

This MD&A is based on the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes thereto for
Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this MD&A regarding our current and future plans, expectations and intentions,
results, levels of activity, performance, goals or achievements or any other future events or developments,
including without limitation statements under the headings “Overview — Our Business” and “Outlook”,
constitute forward-looking statements. The words “may”, “will”, “would”, “should”, “could”, “expects”,
“plans”, “intends”, “trends”, “indications”, “anticipates”, “believes”, “estimates”, “predicts”, “likely” or
“potential”, or the negative or other variations of these words or other comparable words or phrases, are
intended to identify forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on estimates and assumptions made by us in light of our experience
and perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other
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factors that we believe are appropriate and reasonable in the circumstances. However, there can be no assurance
that such estimates and assumptions will prove to be correct.

Many factors could cause our actual results, level of activity, performance or achievements or future events
or developments to differ materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements,
including, without limitation, the following factors, which are discussed in greater detail in this MD&A and the
Company’s Annual Information Form for Fiscal 2013 filed on SEDAR on May 2, 2014: significant competition
in the retail industry; changing consumer preferences; changing consumer spending; the prospect of
unfavourable economic and political conditions; the seasonal nature of our business, unseasonable weather
conditions or natural disasters; our substantial amount of indebtedness and our ability to comply with the
covenants in our credit facilities; our ability to integrate Saks with the legacy business and to realize cost
synergies and growth opportunities related thereto; our ability to achieve the full amount of cost synergies that
are anticipated, or achieve the cost synergies on the schedule anticipated, from the Saks Acquisition; our
dependence on key personnel who would be difficult to replace; our dependence on our advertising and
marketing programs; a material disruption in our computer systems; our ability to upgrade, maintain and secure
our information systems to support the needs of the organization and protect against increased and evolving
cyber security threats; our ability to execute our retail and real estate growth strategies; fluctuations in the value
of the Canadian dollar in relation to the U.S. dollar; risks associated with doing business abroad; risks associated
with operating freehold and leasehold property and surfacing value from our real estate portfolio, including
through our joint venture agreements; environmental risks associated with operating freehold and leasehold
property; our ability to meet our obligations under the agreement entered into with Target Corporation
(“Target”); inability to protect our trademarks and other proprietary rights; pension related risks; our constating
documents could discourage takeover attempts; risks related to our ability to maintain financial and
management processes and controls; our ability to pay dividends is dependent on our ability to generate
sufficient income and cash flows; influence by our principal shareholders; our principal shareholders have a
material percentage of the Common Shares that may have an impact on the trading price of the Common
Shares; and our principal shareholders may sell their Common Shares at a time in the future and such timing will
be beyond our control and may affect the trading price of the Common Shares; other risks inherent to our
business and/or factors beyond our control that could have a material adverse effect on us. Additional risks and
uncertainties are discussed in the Company’s materials filed with the Canadian securities regulatory authorities
from time to time. These factors are not intended to represent a complete list of the factors that could affect us;
however, these factors should be considered carefully.

The purpose of the forward-looking statements is to provide the reader with a description of management’s
expectations regarding the Company’s financial performance and may not be appropriate for other purposes;
readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements made herein. Furthermore, unless
otherwise stated, the forward-looking statements contained in this MD&A are made as of the date of this
MD&A, and we have no intention and undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by applicable
securities law. The forward-looking statements contained in this MD&A are expressly qualified by this
cautionary statement.

Non-IFRS Measures

This MD&A makes reference to certain non-IFRS measures. These measures are not recognized measures
under IFRS, do not have a standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS and are therefore unlikely to be
comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. Rather, these measures are provided as
additional information to complement IFRS measures by providing further understanding of the Company’s
results of operations from management’s perspective. Accordingly, they should not be considered in isolation or
as a substitute for analysis of our financial information reported under IFRS. We use non-IFRS measures
including gross profit, EBITDA, Normalized EBITDA, Normalized Net Earnings (Loss) and Normalized
Selling, General & Administrative Expenses to provide investors with supplemental measures of our operating
performance and thus highlight trends in our core business that may not otherwise be apparent when relying
solely on IFRS financial measures. We also believe that securities analysts, investors, rating agencies and other
interested parties frequently use non-IFRS measures in the evaluation of issuers. Our management also uses
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non-IFRS measures in order to facilitate operating performance comparisons from period to period, prepare
annual operating budgets and assess our ability to meet our future debt service, capital expenditure and working
capital requirements.

For additional detail, refer to our tables outlining the relevant definitions and reconciliations of Net
Earnings (Loss) — Continuing Operations to EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA, and Net Earnings (Loss) —
Continuing Operations to Normalized Net Earnings.

Fourth Quarter Events

* On January 6, 2015, Gerald Storch joined the Company as Chief Executive Officer who together with
Richard Baker, the Governor and Executive Chairman, compose the Office of the Chairman.

* On December 17, 2014, Ian Putnam joined the Company as Executive Vice President, Chief Corporate
Development Officer.

* On December 3, 2014 the Company closed the previously announced U.S.$1.25 billion, 20-year mortgage
on the ground portion of its Saks Fifth Avenue flagship in New York City, located at 611 Fifth Avenue
(the “Saks Mortgage”). For further information on this transaction, please see “Cash Balances and
Liquidity — Funding Capacity — Saks Mortgage.”

* Jon Nordeen joined the Company as Chief Information Officer, effective November 19, 2014.

* On December 8, 2014, the Company declared a quarterly dividend, paid on January 15, 2015, to
shareholders of record at the close of business December 31, 2014, in the amount of $0.05 per
Common Share.

Subsequent Events

* On February 11, 2015, a secondary offering was completed pursuant to which 2380162 Ontario Limited, a
subsidiary of Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan and successor in interest to H.S. Investment L.P.
(“HSILP”), sold 4,899,000 of the Common Shares of HBC which it held. The Company did not receive
any proceeds from the offering.

* On February 25, 2015, the Company announced that it entered into agreements with Simon Property
Group Inc. (“Simon”) (NYSE: SPG) and RioCan Real Estate Investment Trust (“RioCan”)
(TSX:REIL.UN) to form two joint ventures focused on real estate growth opportunities in the
United States, Canada and internationally. Both transactions are expected to close within approximately
90-120 days, subject to securing acceptable debt financing for each joint venture and other customary
closing conditions and consents, as applicable. Approximately $1.1 billion in expected cash proceeds from
the joint venture transactions, net of expenses, will be used to reduce debt on the Company’s balance
sheet. It is expected that the joint ventures will be accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
The joint ventures are expected to enable the Company to leverage the expertise of market-leading real
estate companies to build on the strength of its existing real estate assets and identify new real estate
growth opportunities. The transactions are structured to facilitate an IPO or other monetization
transaction of each joint venture at a future date.

* On March 9, 2015, the Company declared a quarterly dividend, to be paid on April 15, 2015, to
shareholders of record at the close of business March 31, 2015 in the amount of $0.05 per
Common Share.

e On April 2, 2015, the Company announced the appointment of Marc Metrick to President, Saks Fifth
Avenue. Marc replaces Marigay McKee who has stepped down based on mutual agreement with
the Company.
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Overview
Our Business:

Hudson’s Bay Company, founded in 1670, is North America’s longest continually operated company. HBC
operates four iconic retail banners — Hudson’s Bay, Lord & Taylor, Saks Fifth Avenue and Saks OFF 5TH
(“OFF 5TH”). Our portfolio of brands offers a compelling assortment of apparel, accessories, shoes, beauty and
home merchandise. Hudson’s Bay is Canada’s leading department store with 90 full-line locations, two outlet
stores and thebay.com. Lord & Taylor offers high-quality and fashionable merchandise in 50 full-line department
store locations, primarily in the northeastern and mid-Atlantic U.S., four Lord & Taylor outlet locations and
lordandtaylor.com. Saks Fifth Avenue, one of the world’s pre-eminent luxury specialty retailers, comprises
38 U.S. stores, five international licensed stores and saks.com. OFF 5TH offers great brands at great values
through 77 U.S. stores and saksoffSth.com. Home Outfitters is Canada’s largest kitchen, bed and bath specialty
superstore with 67 locations. The Company also operates two Zellers clearance centers in Canada.

We intend to continue to grow our retail sales primarily through the following strategies:

* Driving Growth across all Channels. We are focused on driving growth both within and across our store
and digital channels. We are building our capabilities and enhancing our store experience to allow our
customers to shop seamlessly across stores and digital and believe that serving our customers across all
channels results in increased spend and loyalty. We are also strengthening our digital presence through
HBC Digital, our team that manages digital commerce and marketing strategy and execution for our
digital brands, and continuing to differentiate our store merchandise and experience to grow
these channels.

* Expanding Our Off-Price Business. We have refined the OFF 5TH business model to offer more national
brands at a clearer value proposition in an easier-to-shop environment. We intend to accelerate the pace
of new store openings and have introduced a larger OFF 5TH format.

* Bringing Saks Fifth Avenue and OFF 5TH to Canada. We intend to leverage our existing Canadian
infrastructure, institutional knowledge and experience to efficiently and effectively bring Saks Fifth
Avenue and OFF 5TH to Canada. We believe there is an opportunity to open up to seven Saks Fifth
Avenue stores and up to 25 OFF 5TH stores in Canada over the coming years, with the first full-line and
OFF 5TH stores planned to open in 2016.

In addition, we believe there is an opportunity to realize significant operating margin improvements
through the following initiatives:

e Saks Acquisition Synergies. The targeted annualized Saks Acquisition synergies of approximately
$100 million by 2016 are currently expected to be realized in a variety of areas, including
(i) administration and other shared services; (ii) store expenses; (iii) information technology
infrastructure; and (iv) gross profit enhancements.

* Operating Expense Management. We will continue to aggressively manage our operating expenses and
leverage our significantly increased scale to optimize costs.

* Gross Profit Enhancements. We will continue to work to increase our gross profit through (i) upgrading
technology to better plan, buy and allocate merchandise; and (ii) using our evolving digital commerce
fulfillment functionalities to optimize inventory productivity across each banner.

In addition to successfully operating and integrating our retail business and banners, the Company has
demonstrated a history of surfacing and leveraging value from its substantial real estate holdings, which also
serves to strengthen the Company’s balance sheet and operating business. Previous transactions and initiatives
include the 2011 sale of the Zellers leases for U.S.$1.8 billion, along with the sale and leaseback of the Queen
Street property in Toronto for $650 million in the first quarter of Fiscal 2014 and the recent U.S.$1.25 billion
mortgage financing of the ground portion of the Saks Fifth Avenue flagship property in New York City.

Continuing this pattern and following a thorough review of all strategic options, the Company announced,
on February 25, 2015, that it had entered into agreements with each of Simon and RioCan to form two joint
ventures focused on real estate growth opportunities in the United States, Canada and internationally. It is
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expected that these joint ventures will enable HBC to leverage the expertise of market-leading real estate
companies to build on the strength of its existing real estate assets and identify new real estate growth
opportunities. Both transactions are expected to close within approximately 90-120 days from the date of
announcement.

The joint ventures create two new growth platforms for the Company; real estate in the United States and
real estate in Canada. We believe these to be the optimal structures to fund the expansion of our real estate
portfolio. The joint ventures have mandates to grow beyond the initial seed properties and contributions of the
partners and it is expected that future property acquisitions will diversify the asset portfolios and tenant base of
each joint venture and create additional value for our shareholders. Importantly, the transactions are structured
to facilitate an IPO or other monetization transaction of each joint venture at a future date.

Highlights of the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015

* Retail sales, which include digital commerce sales from all banners, were $2,632 million for the thirteen
week period ended January 31, 2015, an increase of $225 million or 9.3% from $2,407 million for the
thirteen week period ended February 1, 2014.

* Consolidated same store sales increased 8.7% over the comparable thirteen week period in Fiscal 2013,
or 3.2% on a local currency basis. On a local currency basis, same store sales increased by 2.3% at DSG,
2.6% at Saks Fifth Avenue and 12.1% at OFF 5TH.

* Digital commerce sales grew to $304 million, an increase of $79 million compared to the thirteen week
period ended February 1, 2014. DSG and Saks increased 44% and 32%, respectively, year-over-year for
the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015, reflecting the Company’s continued strategic focus on
growing this channel.

* Gross profit rate as reported was 40.8% of retail sales, or a 400 basis point improvement over the thirteen
week period ended February 1, 2014. Included in the 2014 gross profit rate is a conforming change in the
classification of advertising expense credits between SG&A and gross profit as they relate to the Saks
business in Fiscal 2014. Adjusting for this positive impact reduces our gross profit rate in Fiscal 2014 to
40.3% on a comparable basis. Adjusting further for the negative impact associated with the amortization
of inventory related purchase accounting adjustments in Fiscal 2013, the gross profit rate in Fiscal 2013
improves to a comparable 38.4%. On a net adjusted comparable basis, gross profit was realized at a
190 basis point improvement when compared to Fiscal 2013.

* Normalized EBITDA was $318 million compared to $253 million for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2013 or
an improvement of $65 million when compared to Fiscal 2013. As a percentage of retail sales,
Normalized EBITDA increased to 12.1% from 10.5% for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2013.

Highlights of the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015

* Retail sales were $8,169 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015, an increase of
$2,946 million or 56.4% from $5,223 million for the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014. The
increase is primarily attributable to the inclusion of Saks for the full fifty-two week period ended
January 31, 2015.

* Consolidated same store sales, which include Saks, increased 7.5% over the comparable fifty-two week
period in Fiscal 2013, or 2.7% on a local currency basis. On a local currency basis, same store sales
increased by 1.5% at DSG, 2.1% at Saks Fifth Avenue and 15.1% at OFF 5TH.

* Digital commerce sales grew to $900 million, an increase of $592 million compared to the fifty-two week
period ended February 1, 2014. The inclusion of Saks in Fiscal 2014 contributed $651 million, while DSG
increased by 66%, reflecting the Company’s continued strategic focus on growing this channel.

* Gross profit rate was 40.4% of retail sales in Fiscal 2014 and 39.2% in Fiscal 2013 on a comparable basis,
when excluding the negative impacts of the amortization of inventory related purchase price accounting
adjustments recorded on a full year basis for Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013, and the positive impacts
associated with the conforming change in the classification of advertising expense credits between SG&A
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and gross profit in Fiscal 2014. On a net adjusted comparable basis, gross profit rate improved by
120 basis points when compared to Fiscal 2013.

* Normalized EBITDA was $612 million compared to $405 million for the comparable fifty-two week
period ended in Fiscal 2013. The increase in Normalized EBITDA of $207 million primarily relates to the
inclusion of Saks for the full fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015. As a percentage of retail sales,
Normalized EBITDA decreased to 7.5% from 7.8% for the fifty-two week period ended
February 1, 2014.

Factors Affecting Our Performance
Retail Sales

The majority of our sales are from branded merchandise purchased directly from the brand owners or their
licensees. We focus on offering a broad selection of branded and private-label merchandise appealing to the
fashion taste of our customers. The quality and breadth of our selection allow us to change the mix of our
merchandise based on fashion trends and individual store locations, and enable us to address a broad
customer base.

Same Store Sales

The Company calculates same store sales on a year-over-year basis from stores operating for at least
13 months, and includes online sales and clearance store sales. Stores undergoing remodeling remain in the
same store sales calculation base unless the store is closed for a significant period of time. Unless otherwise
noted, this calculation includes the impact of foreign currency translation. Since the fourth quarter of Fiscal
2013, Saks’ same store sales have been included in consolidated same store sales. Definitions and calculations of
same store sales differ among companies in the retail industry.

Gross Profit

Our cost of sales consists mainly of merchandise purchases, including transportation and distribution costs.
Purchases are variable and proportional to our sales volume. We record vendor rebates as a reduction of
inventory cost. All costs directly associated with transportation and distribution, excluding central storage costs
and any idle capacity, are capitalized as merchandise inventories.

We work to manage gross margin in a number of different ways. We manage the level of promotional
activity relative to regular price activity and manage inventory levels to minimize the need for substantial
clearance activity. We source private-label products and directly import certain branded products from overseas
markets including, among others, China, India, Indonesia, Bangladesh, Vietnam, Cambodia and Europe. As a
result, our cost of sales for our Canadian operations is impacted by the fluctuation of foreign currencies against
the Canadian dollar. In particular, we purchase a significant amount of our imported merchandise from
suppliers in Asia using U.S. dollars. Therefore, our cost of sales is impacted by the fluctuation of the U.S. dollar
against the Canadian dollar.

We enter into forward contracts to hedge some of our exposure to fluctuations in the value of the
U.S. dollar against the Canadian dollar. Increases in the price of merchandise, raw materials, fuel and labour, or
their reduced availability, could increase our cost of goods and negatively impact our financial results. Generally,
we offset these cost increases with pricing adjustments in order to maintain a consistent mark-up on the
merchandise, which might cause changes in our unit volume but typically has a minimal impact on our gross
profit rates.

Foreign Exchange

Our net investment in Lord & Taylor Acquisition Inc. (“L&T Acquisition), the indirect parent of Lord &
Taylor LLC and Saks, whose functional currency is U.S. dollars, presents a foreign exchange risk to HBC, whose
functional currency is Canadian dollars. HBC was using a net investment hedge to mitigate this risk. HBC had
designated U.S.$800 million of the Senior Term Loan B as a hedge of the first U.S.$800 million of net assets of
L&T Acquisition. The hedge was subsequently reduced to U.S.$350 million upon pay down of certain debt, and
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further to nil, upon pay down of Senior Term Loan B. Foreign currency translation of the net earnings of L&T
Acquisition impacts consolidated net earnings. Foreign currency translation of HBC’s investment in L&T
Acquisition impacts other comprehensive income.

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses (“SG&A”)

Our SG&A consists of store labour and maintenance costs, store occupancy costs, advertising and
marketing costs, salaries and related benefits of corporate and field management associates, administrative
office expenses, services purchased and other related expenses. SG&A includes buying and occupancy costs and
excludes transportation and distribution centre costs included in inventory and cost of sales. It also includes
pension, restructuring and other non-recurring items and excludes depreciation and amortization expenses.
Although our average hourly wage rate is higher than the minimum wage, an increase in the mandated minimum
wage could significantly increase our payroll costs unless we realize offsetting productivity gains and cost
reductions.

Our occupancy costs are driven primarily by rent expense, which may include escalation clauses over
existing lease terms, including option periods. We believe that our existing leases are generally favourable to
current market rates. When entering new leases, we are generally able to negotiate leases at attractive market
rates due to the increased consumer traffic that our stores generate in strip malls and shopping centres.

Under our legacy credit agreements, we earn royalty payments from credit card issuers based on the total of
Company and other sales charged to either the Private Label Credit Cards (“PLCC”) or MasterCard. Royalty
rates change based on the year-to-date credit volume of out-of-store credit card sales. We also receive bounty
payments from credit card issuers for each approved PLCC or MasterCard account. Bounty and royalty
payments are recognized based on expected or actual performance over the life of the credit card agreements. In
addition, pursuant to a servicing agreement with a credit card issuer, the Company receives compensation for
providing key customer service functions including new account openings, transaction authorizations, billing
adjustments and customer inquiries. All credit card revenues are included as a reduction of SG&A in our
financial statements. We have no risk of credit loss on the credit card receivables in the underlying portfolio.

Effective January 1, 2015, we entered into a new credit card program that will eventually replace all legacy
credit agreements. Under this program, we share in the income and losses of the credit card program related to
private label and co-branded credit cards at Hudson’s Bay and Saks. The effective date for Lord & Taylor is
June 2015. Income (loss) is included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs are expenses derived from the financing activities of the Company, including interest
expense on long and short-term borrowings, gains or losses on the early extinguishment of debt and fair value
gains or losses and amortization charges related to embedded derivatives. In addition to credit ratings and credit
spreads, our finance costs are dependent on fluctuations in the underlying indexes used to calculate interest
rates, including, but not limited to the Canadian prime rate, the Canadian Dealer Offered Rate (“CDOR”) and
the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR?”).

In connection with the Saks Acquisition, we issued Common Share purchase warrants to HSILP, an affiliate
of Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan, and to West Face Long Term Opportunities Global Master L.P, a fund
advised by West Face Capital Inc. The non-cash charges associated with the warrants fluctuate with changes in
the Common Share price and other factors, as they require mark-to-market adjustments each reporting period.
We record the mark-to-market valuation adjustment of these warrants as finance income (costs) based on their
end-of-period valuations.

Weather

Extreme weather conditions in the areas in which the Company’s stores are located could adversely affect
the Company’s business. For example, frequent or unusually heavy snowfall, ice storms, rainstorms, earthquakes,
or other extreme weather conditions over a prolonged period could make it difficult for the Company’s
customers to travel to its stores and thereby reduce the Company’s sales and profitability. The Company’s
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business is also susceptible to unseasonable weather conditions. For example, extended periods of unseasonably
warm temperatures during the winter season or cool weather during the summer season could result in lower
sales and more promotional activity to clear merchandise at the end of the season. Reduced sales from extreme
or prolonged unseasonable weather conditions could adversely affect the Company’s operating results.

Competition

The Company conducts its retail merchandising business under highly competitive conditions. Although the
Company is one of North America’s largest retailers, it has numerous and varied competitors at the national and
local levels, including conventional and specialty department stores, other specialty stores, mass merchants,
value retailers, discounters, and Internet and mail-order retailers. Competition may intensify as new competitors
enter into the markets in which our banners operate including U.S. competitors entering into the Canadian
market, and/or if our competitors enter into business combinations or alliances. Competition is characterized by
many factors, including assortment, advertising, price, quality, service, location, reputation and credit
availability. If the Company does not compete effectively with regard to these factors, its results of operations
could be materially and adversely affected.

Consumer Trends

The fashion and retail industries are subject to sudden shifts in consumer trends and consumer spending.
The Company’s sales and operating results depend, in part, on its ability to predict or respond to changes in
fashion trends and consumer preferences in a timely manner. The Company develops new retail concepts and
continuously adjusts its market positioning in branded and private-label merchandise and product categories in
an effort to satisfy customer demand. Any sustained failure to anticipate, identify and respond to emerging
trends in lifestyle and consumer preferences could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business.
Consumers’ discretionary spending impacts the Company’s sales and may be affected by many factors outside of
the Company’s control, including general economic conditions, consumer disposable income levels, consumer
confidence levels, the availability, cost and level of consumer debt, the costs of basic necessities and other goods,
and the effects of weather or natural disasters.

Seasonality

The quarterly sales and earnings of the Company are significantly impacted by customer sales patterns. As a
result, sales in the fiscal fourth quarter, due to the holiday shopping season, represent a much greater portion of
our annual sales volume and a substantial portion of our annual earnings. We generate approximately one-third
of our sales during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year due to the Christmas and holiday shopping season.

New Accounting Policies — Levies

In May 2013, the IASB issued IFRIC 21, providing guidance on the accounting for levies imposed by
governments. The interpretation clarifies that the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the
activity described in the relevant legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. It also clarifies that a levy
liability is accrued rateably over a reporting period only if the activity that triggers payment occurs over such
period, in accordance with the relevant legislation. See “Changes in Accounting Policies Including Initial
Adoption” section of this MD&A.

Property taxes are charged by a government in accordance with legislation, are based on underlying
property value, and include both real and personal property. As such, real and personal property taxes are within
the scope of IFRIC 21. Prior to the adoption of IFRIC 21, the Company recorded all property taxes rateably
over the relevant tax year.

Property tax legislation in various jurisdictions in Canada does not clearly define a single obligating event
that gives rise to a liability to pay annual property taxes. As such, at any date within the year, the only amount of
property taxes that an owner can reasonably estimate they are liable for is a pro rata estimate of annual property
taxes based on the number of days of ownership. Rateable recognition of property taxes in Canada, therefore,
continues to be appropriate under IFRIC 21.
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In the majority of the U.S. tax jurisdictions in which the Company operates, the obligating event for real
and personal property taxes is ownership of the property on the day of the year for which the tax is imposed.

The Company implemented IFRIC 21 retrospectively at the beginning of its 2014 fiscal year. The impact of
the implementation is summarized as follows:

Fifty-two week

Thirteen week period ended period ended
May 4, Aug.3, Nov.2, Feb.1, Feb. 1,
(millions of Canadian dollars except per share amounts) 2013 2013 2013 2014 2014

(Increase) decrease in selling, general and administrative
EXPEIMSES - - e e e 2) 2 1€ @ 2)
1 1

Increase (decrease) in income tax benefit. . .............. 1 = 1
(Increase) decrease in Net (Loss) Earnings for the period —

continuing Operations . ....................oeo.... »n 1 ®Hn - (1)
(Increase) decrease in Net (Loss) Earnings for the period. . . . nH 1 G = (1)
Net (Loss) Earnings per common share . . ............... (0.01) 0.01 (0.01) — (0.01)
(Decrease) increase in Normalized EBITDA ... .......... 2) 2 1€ @ 2)

The net impact of the implementation of IFRIC 21 for Fiscal 2014 was nil.

Selected Consolidated Financial Information

The following tables set out summary consolidated financial information and supplemental information for
the periods indicated. The summary annual financial information for each of Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal
2012 has been derived from consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS. The summary
financial information for the quarters ended January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014 is unaudited. The unaudited
financial information presented has been prepared on a basis consistent with our audited consolidated financial
statements for Fiscal 2014. In the opinion of our management, such unaudited financial data reflects all
adjustments, consisting of normal and recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the results for
those periods. The results of operations for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results to be
expected for a full year or any future period.
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Based on the Company’s reporting convention, our Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013 were fifty-two weeks while
Fiscal 2012 was fifty-three weeks. Notwithstanding the difference in time periods, the Company presents same
store sales based on a fifty-two week period.

(millions of Canadian dollars except
per share amounts)

Earnings Results
Retail sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling, general & administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Gain on Queen Street Sale

Operating income
Total interest expense, net
Acquisition-related finance (costs)

income

Finance costs . . . ... .............

Earnings (loss) before income tax
Income tax benefit (expense)

Net earnings (loss) for the period —
continuing operations . . .. ........

Net loss for the period — discontinued
operations, net of taxes

Net earnings (loss) for the period

Net Earnings (Loss) per Common
Share — Basic

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Net Earnings (Loss) per Common

Share — Diluted
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Weighted average Common Shares
outstanding — basic (millions) . . . . . ..
Weighted average Common Shares
outstanding — diluted (millions)

Supplemental Information — Continuing
Operations
EBITDA®
Normalized EBITDA®
Normalized Net Earnings for the period®
Normalized Net Earnings per Common
Share — basic®
Normalized Net Earnings per Common
Share — diluted®
Declared dividend per Common Share . . .

Fiscal Year

Fiscal Quarter Ended

January 31, February 1,
2014 2013 2012@ 2015 2014
(restated)® (restated)®
$ %) $ %) $ %) $ %) $ %)
8,169 100.0% 5223 100.0% 4,077 100.0% 2,632 100.0% 2,407 100.0%
(4,893) (59.9%) (3.217) (61.6%) (2,487) (61.0%) (1,559) (59.2%) (1,521) (63.2%)
3276 40.1% 2,006 384% 1,590 39.0% 1,073 40.8% 886 36.8%
(2,759) (33.8%) (1,826) (35.0%) (1,370) (33.6%) (736) (28.0%) (796) (33.1%)
(344) (42%) (175) (33%) (104) (2.5%) o7 (3.7%) 84)  (3.5%)
308 38% — — — — — — — —
481 5.9% 5 0.1% 116 2.9% 240 9.1% 6 0.2%
(218) (27%)  (95) (1.8%) 7)) (24%) (76)  (2.9%) 55 (23%)
(44) (05%) (166) (32%) — — 35 (1.3%) 17 0.7%
(262) (32%) (261) (5.0%) 7)) (24%) (111) (42%) (38)  (1.6%)
219 27%  (256) (4.9%) 19 0.5% 129 4.9% 32) (14%)
19 0.2% 79 1.5% 9 0.2% (18)  (0.7%) 69 2.9%
238 29%  (177) (3.4%) 28 0.7% 111 42% 37 1.5%
— (82) (63) — ®)
238 (259) (35) 111 29
1.31 (1.31) 0.26 0.61 0.21
— (0.61) (0.59) — (0.05)
1.31 (1.92) (0.33) 0.61 0.16
1.30 (1.34) 0.26 0.60 0.11
— (0.61) (0.59) — (0.05)
1.30 (1.95) (0.33) 0.60 0.06
182 135 108 182 181
183 135 108 185 182
847  10.4% 214 41% 245 6.0% 328 12.5% 96 4.0%
612 7.5% 405 7.8% 310 7.6% 318 12.1% 253 10.5%
101 1.2% 79 1.5% 72 1.8% 153 5.8% 81 3.4%
0.55 0.59 0.67 0.84 0.45
0.55 0.59 0.67 0.83 0.45
0.20 0.33 0.95 0.05 0.05
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Fiscal Year

Fiscal Quarter Ended

January 31, February 1,
2014 2013 2012? 2015 2014

Same Store Sales Percentage Change®
Continuing operations . . .. .. .........c..uuouon... 7.5% 5.4% 4.0% 8.7% 6.6%
Continuing operations (local currency basis) . .......... 2.7% 2.8% 3.7% 32% 21%
DSGD . 1.5% 3.5% 41% 2.3% 2.8%
Saks Fifth Avenue® . .. ......... ... ... ... ....... 21% 21% N/A 2.6% 21%
OFF STH® . ... .. . . 15.1% 7.9% N/A 12.1% 7.9%
Store Information
Store count®

Hudson’s Bay ........... .. ... .. .. . .. ...... 90 90 90

Lord & Taylor . .. ......... . ..., 50 49 48

Saks Fifth Avenue ........... ... ... .. ... ..... 38 41 N/A

OFF STH ... ... e 77 71 N/A

Home Outfitters. . .. ... .. .. .. . ... 67 69 69
Total . ... 322 320 207
Gross leasable area/Square footage (thousands)®

Hudson’s Bay . ........... .. ... .. .. ... .. ... 16,123 16,123 16,118

Lord & Taylor .. ..... .. .. ..., 6,898 6,790 6,710

Saks Fifth Avenue . ............. ... ... ........ 4,499 4,787 N/A

OFF 5TH . . ..o e 2,117 1,960 N/A

Home Outfitters. . . ... ... ... .. .. ... ... .... 2,444 2,515 2,515
Total ... .. 32,081 32,175 25,343

Fiscal Year
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013 2012
(restated )1 (restated)®
$ $ $

Balance Sheet Data
Cash. ... 168 21 48
Trade and other receivables ... ....... ... ... ... ... ... 212 137 74
INVeNtories . . . .. .ottt e 2,349 2,048 994
CUrrent @SSetS . . . v vttt e e e e 2,829 2,310 1,420
Property, plant and equipment . . . ......... ... ... ... ... 4,606 4,110 1,335
Intangible assets . . ........ ... . 1,076 980 233
Goodwill . . ... 237 208 —
Total assets . . . oo i e 9,072 7,942 3,252
Current liabilities® ... ....... .. .. .. ... ... ... . ... 1,803 1,475 1,215
Loans and borrowings (including current portion) . ............ 3,124 3,455 851
Other liabilities (including current portion) . ... ... ... ..... 745 202 94
Shareholders’ equity . ....... ... ... i 2,492 2,043 1,008
Notes:
(1)  Certain previously reported figures have been restated due to the implementation of IFRIC 21. For more information, please refer to

(@)
(©)
4)

®)

(6)

“New Accounting Policies — Levies.”
Not restated for the implementation of IFRIC 21.

As a percentage of retail sales.

See tables below for a reconciliation of Net Earnings (Loss) — Continuing Operations to both EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA and

a reconciliation of Net Earnings (Loss) — Continuing Operations to Normalized Net Earnings.

The Company calculates same store sales on a year-over-year basis from stores operating for at least 13 months and includes digital
commerce sales and clearance store sales. Consolidated same store sales include results for all banners.

Same store sales of Saks Fifth Avenue and OFF 5TH are calculated in U.S. dollars.
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(7)  Excludes Home Outfitters for Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 (see “General Information™) and is calculated in local currencies.

(8) Hudson’s Bay Company operates two Hudson’s Bay Outlets, two Zellers stores and four Lord & Taylor Outlets that are excluded from

the store count and gross leasable area.

(9)  Excludes current loans and borrowings of $265 million as at January 31, 2015, $532 million as at February 1, 2014 and $132 million as
at February 2, 2013; and other liabilities of $76 million as at January 31, 2015 and nil as at February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013.

(10) Includes deferred landlord incentives of $356 million as at January 31, 2015, $169 million as at February 1, 2014 and $71 million as at

February 2, 2013.

(11) Restated for measurement period adjustments based on new information relating primarily to inventories. Please see note 4 of the
Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended January 31, 2015 for additional disclosure on the impacts of

the adjustments to previously reported amounts.

The following table presents the reconciliation of Net Earnings (Loss) — Continuing Operations to

EBITDA as well as Normalized EBITDA:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Net Earnings (Loss) for the Period — Continuing

Operations . . ............... ... ...
Finance costs . ............ oot
Income tax (benefit) expense . .. ...............
Non-cash pension expense (recovery)® . ..........
Depreciation and amortization . . . . .............
Impairment and other non-cash expenses . ........
Share based compensation® ... ...............

EBITDA. .. ... ... . ..

Normalization Adjustments

Gain on Queen Street Sale . ..................
Saks Acquisition and integration related expenses® . .

Amortization of Saks inventory purchase price

accounting adjustment . ....................
Lease provision®¥ . .. ... ... . o oL
Foreign exchange adjustment®® ... ... ... ... ....
Loyalty Zellers adjustment®® .. ...............
Restructuring and other® . ...... ... ... ... ....

Total normalizing adjustments . . .................

Normalized EBITDA . . . .. .....................

Notes:

Fiscal Year

Fiscal Quarter Ended

(restated)V
(restated)V January 31,  February 1,
2014 2013 2012 2015 2014
$ $ $ $ $
238 177) 28 111 37
262 261 97 111 38
19) (79 ) 18 (69)
6 21 12 (14) —
344 175 104 97 84
1 4 13 1 4
L9 - _4 _2
847 214 245 328 96
(308) — — — —
62 124 — 13 110
40 39 — — 39
14 — — 14 —
(14) — — (14) —
(24) — — (24) —
& s e 1 8
(235) 191 65 (10) 157
612 405 310 318 253

(1) Certain previously reported figures have been restated due to the implementation of IFRIC 21. For more information, please refer to

“New Accounting Policies — Levies.”

(2) Normalization item impacting Normalized SG&A. Total for Fiscal 2014 was $54 million (2013: $182 million) and ($20) million for
fiscal quarter ended January 31, 2015 (February 1, 2014: $120 million).

(3) Represents provisions related to identified Home Outfitters stores.

(4) Represents the impact of unrealized gains related to the translation of U.S. dollar denominated asset and liability balances.

(5) Represents the one time positive impact recognized in the fourth quarter related to the recognition of the change in redemption

patterns of previous Zellers customers.

(6) Not restated for the implementation of IFRIC 21.
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The following table presents the reconciliation of Net Earnings (Loss) — Continuing Operations to
Normalized Net Earnings.

Fiscal Quarter Ended
(restated)V

Fiscal Year

(restated)® January 31,  February 1,
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013 2012® 2015 2014
$ $ $ $ $
Net Earnings (Loss) — Continuing Operations. . . . . . . 238 177) 28 111 37
Normalization Adjustments®
Gain on Queen Street Sale . .................. (261) — — — —
Saks Acquisition and integration related expenses
and finance costs® . .. ... ... L L 84 256 — 43 64
Restructuring and other . . . ................... 4) 20 47 1 5
Financing related adjustments® ... ............. 47 8 7 25 4
Amortization of Saks inventory purchase price
accounting adjustment . ........... ... ..... 24 24 — — 24
Lease provision® . ......... ... ... ... . .. ... 10 — — 10 —
Foreign exchange adjustment®. ... ............. (12) — — (12) —
Loyalty Zellers adjustment™ .. ................ (18) — — (18) —
Tax related adjustments . . .................... (7) (52) (10) (7) (53)
Total normalizing adjustments . .. ................ (137) 256 44 42 44
Normalized Net Earnings . ..................... 101 79 72 153 81
Notes:

(1) Certain previously reported figures have been restated due to the implementation of IFRIC 21. For more information, please refer to
“New Accounting Policies — Levies.”

(2) Net of tax as appropriate.

(3) Includes the recognition of non-cash finance costs (recoveries) related to warrants of $44 million (2013: nil) for the fiscal year and
$35 million (2013: ($18 million)) for the fourth quarter.

(4) Includes write-off of deferred financing costs and penalties on early extinguishment of debt.
(5) Represents provisions related to identified Home Outfitters stores.
(6) Represents the impact of unrealized gains related to the translation of U.S. dollar denominated asset and liability balances.

(7) Represents the one time positive impact recognized in the fourth quarter related to the recognition of the change in redemption
patterns of previous Zellers customers.

(8) Not restated for the implementation of IFRIC 21.

EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure that we use to assess our operating performance. EBITDA is defined as
net earnings before finance costs, income tax, non-cash share based compensation expense, depreciation and
amortization expense, impairment and other non-cash expenses, and non-cash pension expense (recovery). The
Company’s Canadian defined benefit pension plan is currently over-funded and as a result, pension expense is
adjusted as management does not expect to make any payments in the foreseeable future.

Normalized EBITDA is defined as EBITDA adjusted to exclude: (i) business and organization
restructuring/realignment charges; (ii) merger/acquisition costs and expenses; (iii) normalizing adjustments, if
any, related to transactions that are not associated with day-to-day operations; and (iv) EBITDA related to
discontinued operations. Normalized Net Earnings is defined as net earnings (loss) adjusted to exclude:
(i) business and organization restructuring/realignment charges; (ii) merger/acquisition costs and expenses;
(iii) normalizing adjustments, including those related to purchase accounting, if any, related to transactions that
are not associated with day-to-day operations; and (iv) net earnings (loss) related to discontinued operations.
Normalized SG&A is defined as SG&A adjusted to exclude: (i) business and organization
restructuring/realignment charges; (ii) merger/acquisition costs and expenses; (iii) normalizing adjustments, if
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any, related to transactions that are not associated with day-to-day operations; and (iv) expenses related to
discontinued operations. We have included Normalized EBITDA, Normalized Net Earnings and Normalized
SG&A to provide investors and others with supplemental measures of our operating performance. We believe
Normalized EBITDA, Normalized Net Earnings and Normalized SG&A are important supplemental measures
of operating performance because they eliminate items that have less bearing on our operating performance and
thus highlight trends in our core business that may not otherwise be apparent when relying solely on IFRS
financial measures. We also believe that securities analysts, investors, rating agencies and other interested
parties frequently use EBITDA, Normalized EBITDA, Normalized Net Earnings and Normalized SG&A in the
evaluation of issuers, many of which present similar metrics when reporting their results. Our management also
uses Normalized EBITDA in order to facilitate operating performance comparisons from period to period,
prepare annual operating budgets and assess our ability to meet our future debt service, capital expenditure and
working capital requirements and our ability to pay dividends on our shares. As other companies may calculate
EBITDA, Normalized EBITDA, Normalized Net Earnings or Normalized SG&A differently than we do, these
metrics are not comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

Results of Operations
Thirteen Week Period Ended January 31, 2015 Compared to the Thirteen Week Period Ended February 1, 2014
Retail Sales

Retail sales, which include digital commerce sales from all banners, were $2,632 million for the thirteen
week period ended January 31, 2015, an increase of $225 million or 9.3% from $2,407 million for the thirteen
week period ended February 1, 2014. Comparative growth at DSG and Saks in the quarter was further enhanced
by currency improvements on the translation of U.S. dollar denominated sales.

Consolidated same store sales increased by 8.7%, or 3.2% on a local currency basis. Same store sales on a
local currency basis increased 2.3% at DSG, 2.6% at Saks Fifth Avenue and 12.1% at OFF 5TH.

Digital commerce sales totaled $304 million for the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015. DSG
increased 44% year-over-year to $97 million and Saks increased 32% year-over-year to $207 million.

In terms of merchandise category performance, sales growth at DSG was driven by men’s apparel, ladies’
shoes, outerwear and home products. Sales growth at Saks Fifth Avenue was driven by designer clothing,
menswear and accessories. Sales growth at OFF 5TH was strong due to growth in menswear, women’s shoes and
accessories.

Gross Profit

Gross profit as reported was $1,073 million for the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015, compared
to $886 million for the thirteen week period ended February 1, 2014. Included in gross profit is a conforming
change in the classification of advertising expense credits between SG&A and gross profit as they relate to the
Saks business in 2014. Adjusting for this positive impact reduces our gross profit in Fiscal 2014 to $1,060 on a
comparable basis. Adjusting for the negative impact associated with the amortization of inventory related
purchase accounting adjustments in Fiscal 2013 of $39 million, the gross profit in Fiscal 2013 improves to
$925 million on a comparable basis, for an improvement of $135 million compared to the thirteen week period
ended February 1, 2014. Improved performance at DSG and Saks, combined with additional improvements in
reported gross profit dollars as a result of favourable currency conversion on U.S. dollar denominated sales,
resulted in overall improvements in the quarterly gross profit.

Gross profit rate as reported, was 40.8% of retail sales, or an initial 400 basis point improvement over the
thirteen week period ended February 1, 2014. Adjusting the gross profit rate in Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013 for
the items identified above, exclusive of positive exchange impacts adjusts our gross profit rates in Fiscal 2014 to
40.3%, and 38.4% in Fiscal 2013. Adjusting for favourable exchange rates on U.S. dollar denominated gross
profits, results in a comparable gross profit rate of 40.0% in Fiscal 2014, or a 160 basis point improvement when
compared to Fiscal 2013. Improved gross profit rates at DSG and Saks resulted in overall rate improvements on
a comparable basis.
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Selling, General & Administrative Expenses

SG&A was $736 million for the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015, compared to $796 million for
the thirteen week period ended February 1, 2014. Included in SG&A for Fiscal 2014 is a conforming change in
the classification of advertising expense credits between SG&A and gross profit as they relate to the Saks
business in Fiscal 2014. Adjusting for this negative impact reduces SG&A in Fiscal 2014 to $723 million on a
comparable basis.

For the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015, Normalized SG&A net of the adjustments above, was
$743 million compared to $676 million for the thirteen week period ended February 1, 2014, or a $67 million
increase. Normalized SG&A has been calculated as SG&A above, excluding Saks Acquisition and integration
related expenses, restructuring and other, non-cash pension expense recovery and share-based compensation. In
addition to these normalization adjustments, SG&A has also been negatively impacted in the quarter by the
translation impact resulting from the conversion of U.S. dollar denominated expenses into Canadian dollars.

Excluding normalization items of ($20) million ($120 million in the prior year) and the impact of
adjustments described above, exclusive of exchange impacts, Normalized SG&A as a percentage of retail sales
was 28.2% compared to 28.1% for the prior year, an increase of 10 basis points. Adjusting for negative impacts
due to foreign exchange in the current year, Normalized SG&A as a percentage of retail sales was 28.0%, an
improvement of 10 basis points over the prior year.

In addition, the current year SG&A includes impacts of incremental strategic investments in our HBC
digital business, higher occupancy costs associated with the Queen Street Sale and performance-based incentive
compensation, partially offset by operating synergies of $14 million in Q4. Absent these items, Normalized
SG&A as a percentage of retail sales was 27.6% or a 50 basis point improvement over Fiscal 2013.

EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA

EBITDA was $328 million in the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015, compared to $96 million in
the thirteen week period ended February 1, 2014, an increase of $232 million.

Normalized EBITDA was $318 million, compared to $253 million in the thirteen week period ended
February 1, 2014, an increase of $65 million. Expressed as a percentage of sales, Normalized EBITDA margin
was 12.1% in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014 compared to 10.5% in the fourth quarter of the prior year.
Improved performance at both DSG and Saks was driven by a strong sales season, improved gross profits and
SG&A costs. Combined with added positive impacts related to foreign exchange, this has resulted in the
improved dollar and percentage based Normalized EBITDA results.

Finance Costs

Finance costs were $111 million in the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015 compared to
$38 million for the thirteen week period ended February 1, 2014, an increase of $73 million. The increase is
primarily related to the write-off of incremental non-cash deferred financing costs of approximately $27 million,
and the net change in non-cash finance related costs associated with appreciating values related to outstanding
share purchase warrants of approximately $53 million. These charges were offset by small improvements in
pension and other interest expense.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense was $18 million in the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015, compared to a
benefit of $69 million for the thirteen week period ended February 1, 2014. The effective income tax rate of
14.0% for the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015 decreased from 50.0% adjusted for the reversal of a
valuation allowance recorded against deferred tax assets in the prior year for the thirteen week period ended
February 1, 2014, primarily due to recognition of capital losses in the current year and favourable prior year
adjustments in Fiscal 2014 compared to Fiscal 2013. In addition, non-deductible permanent differences
decreased from the prior year, principally consisting of acquisition-related finance costs. These decreases were
offset in part by a lower effect of international tax rate differentials.
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Net Earnings — Continuing Operations

Net Earnings — Continuing Operations were $111 million in the thirteen week period ended January 31,
2015 compared to $37 million in the thirteen week period ended February 1, 2014, an increase of $74 million.

Normalized Net Earnings — Continuing Operations

Normalized Net Earnings — Continuing Operations were $153 million in the thirteen week period ended
January 31, 2015 compared to $81 million in the thirteen week period ended February 1, 2014, an increase of
$72 million.

Fifty-two Week Period Ended January 31, 2015 Compared to the Fifty-two Week Period Ended February 1, 2014
Retail Sales

Retail sales were $8,169 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015, an increase of
$2,946 million or 56.4% from $5,223 million for the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014. This increase
primarily relates to the inclusion of Saks for the full fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015.

Consolidated same store sales, increased 7.5% for the comparable fifty-two week period, or 2.7% on a local
currency basis. Same store sales on a local currency basis increased 1.5% at DSG, 2.1% at Saks Fifth Avenue and
15.1% at OFF 5TH.

Digital commerce sales totaled $900 million in the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015. The
inclusion of Saks contributed $651 million while DSG increased 66% year-over-year to $249 million.

In terms of merchandise category performance, sales growth at DSG was driven by men’s apparel, ladies’
shoes, dress clothes and outerwear. Sales growth at Saks Fifth Avenue was driven by menswear and accessories
while at OFF 5TH, continues to be strong across the majority of categories.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015 was $3,276 million compared to
$2,006 million for the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014, an increase of $1,270 million, primarily due
to the inclusion of Saks for the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014. Gross profit rate as reported,
expressed as a percentage of retail sales, was 40.1% or an increase of 170 basis points compared to the fifty-two
week period ended February 1, 2014. Adjusting the gross profit rate for the negative impact of the amortization
of inventory-related purchase price accounting adjustments of $40 million in Fiscal 2014 ($39 million in Fiscal
2013), and the impact of the conforming change in the classification of advertising expense credits between
SG&A and gross profit for the Saks business in Fiscal 2014, overall gross profit rates improved to 40.4% in
Fiscal 2014, compared to 39.2% in Fiscal 2013, an increase of 120 basis points on a comparable basis. Improved
gross profit rates at DSG and the inclusion of Saks for the full fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015, at
gross profit rates higher than DSG resulted in overall rate improvements on a comparable basis.

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses

SG&A was $2,759 million or 33.8% of retail sales for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015,
compared to $1,826 million or 35.0% of retail sales for the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014. The
increase in SG&A is primarily attributed to the inclusion of Saks. Included in SG&A for Fiscal 2014 is a
conforming change in the classification of expense credits between SG&A and gross profit as they relate to the
Saks business in Fiscal 2014. Adjusting for this negative impact reduces our SG&A in Fiscal 2014 to $2,746 on a
comparable basis.

For the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015, Normalized SG&A net of adjustments above was
$2,692 million compared to $1,644 million for the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014, or a
$1,048 million increase. Normalized SG&A has been calculated as SG&A identified above and excludes Saks
Acquisition and integration related expenses, non-cash pension expense, restructuring and other, and share-
based compensation for the fifty-two week periods ended January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014. In addition to
these normalization adjustments, SG&A for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015 has also been
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negatively impacted in the year by the translation impact resulting from the conversion of U.S. dollar
denominated expenses into Canadian dollars.

Excluding normalization items of $54 million ($182 million in the prior year) net of adjustments described
above including the adjustment for the impact of foreign exchange, Normalized SG&A as a percentage of retail
sales was 32.9% in Fiscal 2014 compared to 31.5% for the prior year, or an increase of 140 basis points. This
increase was driven in large part by the full year impact of incremental strategic investments in our HBC digital
business, higher occupancy costs associated with the Queen Street Sale and performance-based incentive
compensation, partially offset by operating synergies of approximately $50 million realized in Fiscal 2014 as a
result of the Saks Acquisition. Absent these items, Normalized SG&A as a percentage of retail sales was 32.3%.

EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA

EBITDA was $847 million or 10.4% of retail sales in the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015
compared to $214 million or 4.1% of retail sales in the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014, an increase
of $633 million.

Normalized EBITDA was $612 million or 7.5% of retail sales in the fifty-two week period ended
January 31, 2015. This compares to Normalized EBITDA of $405 million or 7.8% of retail sales in the fifty-two
week period ended February 1, 2014. The year-over-year increase of $207 million primarily relates to the
inclusion of Saks for the full fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015, improved performance at DSG and
positive translation impacts related to foreign exchange.

Finance Costs

Finance costs of $262 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015 were comparable to
$261 million for the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014. The net increase relates to incremental
interest expense on long-term borrowings of $71 million, the write-off of incremental non-cash deferred
financing costs totaling approximately $39 million, penalties and fees on term loans of $12 million and non-cash
finance related costs associated with appreciating values related to outstanding share purchase warrants of
approximately $44 million. Finance costs in the prior year included $153 million of non-recurring non-cash
mark-to-market adjustments on equity commitment forwards (see notes 6 and 18 to the audited annual
consolidated financial statements for the year ended January 31, 2015) and bridge financing fees of $12 million
related to the Saks Acquisition.

Income Tax Benefit

Income tax benefit was $19 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015 compared to
$79 million for the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014. The effective income tax rate of (8.7%) for the
fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015 decreased from 10.2% adjusted for the reversal of a valuation
allowance recorded against deferred tax assets for the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014, primarily
due to lower non-deductible permanent differences in the current year, principally consisting of acquisition-
related finance costs and the favourable tax treatment related to the Queen Street Sale (see note 28 of the
audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2014). Further decreases in the effective tax rate relate to
the effect of international tax rate differentials, recognition of capital losses in the current year and favourable
prior year adjustments in Fiscal 2014 compared to Fiscal 2013.

Net Earnings — Continuing Operations

Net Earnings — Continuing Operations were $238 million in the fifty-two week period ended January 31,
2015 compared to a Net Loss — Continuing Operations of $177 million in the fifty-two week period ended
February 1, 2014, an increase in earnings of $415 million. The year-over-year increase in earnings is primarily the
result of the gain recognized on the Queen Street Sale, and the inclusion of Saks for the full fifty-two week
period ended January 31, 2015.
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Normalized Net Earnings — Continuing Operations

Normalized Net Earnings — Continuing Operations were $101 million in the fifty-two week period ended
January 31, 2015 compared to $79 million in the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014. The increase of
$22 million is primarily due to the inclusion of Saks for the full fifty-two week period ended January 31, 2015
offset in part by increased finance costs and depreciation and amortization expenses attributable to the Saks
Acquisition.

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY RESULTS
The following table summarizes quarterly financial information of the Company for the past eight quarters.

Fiscal Quarter Ended

(restated)
(millions of Canadian dollars Jan. 31, Nov. 1, Aug.2, May3, Feb.1l, Nov.2, Aug.3, May4,
except per share amounts) 2015 2014 2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Retail sales . .. ... .. . . ... 2,632 1,913 1,769 1,855 2,407 984 948 884
Normalized EBITDA . ... ..................... 318 116 81 97 253 63 60 29
Net Earnings (Loss) Continuing operations . . . ........ 111 (13) (36) 176 37 (1206) (66) (22)

Discontinued operations . . . .. ........ ... . ... .. — — — — ®) 1 (15) (60)

111 (13)  (36) 176 29 (125)  (81)  (82)

Net Earnings (Loss) per Common Share — Basic®
Continuing Operations . . . ... ... ............... 0.61 (0.07)  (0.20) 097 0.21 (1.05)  (0.55) (0.19)
Discontinued Operations . . . .. .................. — — — — (0.05) — (0.13)  (0.49)
Net Earnings (Loss) per Common Share — Diluted®
Continuing Operations . . . ... .................. 0.60 0.07)  (0.23) 097  0.11 (1.05)  (0.55) (0.19)
Discontinued Operations . . . .. .................. — — — — (0.05) — (0.13)  (0.49)
Same Store Sales Percentage Change®
Continuing Operations . . . . .................... 8.7% 71% 5.0% 8.6%  6.6% 5.7% 3.5% 4.0%
Continuing Operations (excluding impact of foreign

exchange) . .. ... ... . .. L L 3.2% 2.7% 1.9% 28% 2.1% 38%  3.0%  32%
DSG® 2.3% 1.7% 1.1% 25% 2.8% 45%  32%  3.9%
Saks Fifth Avenue® . . . ... ... ... ... . ... .. ..... 2.6% 1.0% 2.2% 26% 21% N/A N/A N/A
OFF 5TH® . .. ... e 121% 192% 149% 151% 7.9% N/A N/A N/A
Notes:

(1) Certain previously reported figures have been restated due to the implementation of IFRIC 21. For more information, please refer to
“New Accounting Policies — Levies.”

(2) Net Earnings (Loss) per Common Share (“EPS”) in each quarter is computed using the weighted-average number of Common Shares
outstanding during that quarter, while EPS for the full year is computed using the weighted-average number of Common Shares
outstanding during the year. Thus, the sum of the four quarters’ EPS may not equal the full-year EPS.

(3) The Company calculates same store sales on a year-over-year basis from stores operating for at least 13 months, and includes digital
commerce sales and clearance store sales.

(4) Based on realignment of banners by management, DSG has replaced separate Hudson’s Bay and Lord & Taylor reporting of same
store sales percentage and also includes Home Outfitters beginning the third quarter of Fiscal 2014 (see General Information). Same
store sales for DSG are calculated in local currencies.

(5) Same store sales of Saks Fifth Avenue and OFF 5TH are calculated in U.S. dollars.

Outlook

The Company’s Fiscal 2015 outlook incorporates management’s views and assumptions with respect to,
among other considerations, economic conditions, the current and expected operating environment,
competition, consumer preferences, currency and exchange rates, and its ability to successfully execute on its
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strategic priorities and initiatives. The following outlook is fully qualified by the “Forward-Looking Statements”
section of this MD&A:

* Total sales of between $9.0 and $9.3 billion. This implies low single digit consolidated same store sales
growth, calculated on a local currency basis.

* Capital investments, net of landlord incentives, of between $350 million and $400 million. This activity
includes the addition of one Saks Fifth Avenue store and between 12 and 14 OFF 5TH stores.

In Fiscal 2015, the Company intends to invest an incremental $50 million in strategic growth initiatives,
including an accelerated pace of new store openings at OFF 5TH, strengthening its digital and all-channel
presence and capabilities, and incurring pre-opening costs associated with the 2016 expansion of Saks and
OFF 5TH into Canada.

This guidance reflects a U.S. dollar foreign exchange rate assumption of USD:CAD = 1:1.24 for Fiscal
2015. Significant variation in this foreign exchange rate assumption would impact the guidance. The actual
average foreign exchange rate incorporated in the Company’s reported sales results for Fiscal 2014 was
USD:CAD = 1:1.12.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows

Total cash, including restricted cash, is managed to remain at minimal levels by drawing on or repaying our
revolving credit facilities. Our liquidity and capital resources are primarily impacted by: (i) current cash and cash
equivalents; (ii) operating activities; (iii) investing activities; and (iv) financing activities. The following table
summarizes cash flows by activity:

Fiscal Quarter Ended
January 31, February 1,

Fiscal Year

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013 2015 2014
$ $ $ $

Continuing operations

Operating activities . . . ... ...ttt et 547 164 667 299

Investing activities . . . . .. ... e 441 (3,013) (78) (2,864)

Financing activities ... .......... ...t .. (848) 2,906 (471) 2,552
Increase (decrease) in cash from continuing operations . . . .. ...... 140 57 118 (13)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) oncash . ....................... 7 (1) 6 (2)
(Decrease) increase in cash from discontinued operations . ... ..... — (83) — 10
Cash at beginning of period ............ ... ... ... . ... . ... 21 48 44 26
Cashatendof period . ....... ... . ... .. 168 21 168 21

Net Cash Flow — Operating Activities

Net cash inflow from operating activities was $547 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31,
2015 compared to $164 million for the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014, an increase of $383 million.
This increase is due primarily to improved cash from operations and improvements in working capital offset to
some extent by cash interest costs.

For the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015, net cash inflow from operating activities was
$667 million compared to an inflow of $299 million for the thirteen week period ended February 1, 2014. The
increase of $368 million is attributed primarily to improved cash from operations and improvements in working
capital.
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Net Cash Flow — Investing Activities

Net cash inflow from investing activities was $441 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31,
2015 compared to an outflow of $3,013 million for the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014, a net
increase of $3,454 million. The net increase was primarily due to the Saks Acquisition in the prior year and
proceeds received from the Queen Street Sale in the first quarter of Fiscal 2014.

For the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015 net cash outflow for investing activities was
$78 million compared to an outflow of $2,864 million for the thirteen week period ended February 1, 2014. The
decrease in net outflow of $2,786 million is primarily due to the Saks Acquisition on November 4, 2013.

Capital Expenditures

The tables below summarize our capital investments by major areas:

Fiscal Year

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 & %

$ $ $
MerchandisSing . . . . ..o i i 249 177 118
Information technology . . ... ... ... . 40 28 25
Digital commerce . ... ... ... i 26 49 32
MaIntenanCe . . . ... v vt ittt e e e 1 38 28
Total capital expenditures) . . .. ... . . ... ... 426 292 203
Landlord inCentives . . . ... ..o u .ttt e (113) (42) (@7
Net capital expenditures ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 313 250 176
Note:

(1) Capital expenditures are inclusive of software development costs and in Fiscal 2013, only include capital expenditures related to Saks
for the fourth quarter of $46 million.

In addition to capital investments, we received combined vendor allowances and landlord incentives related
to capital expenditures of $113 million, $42 million, and $27 million in Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012,
respectively. Accordingly, capital expenditures net of vendor allowances and landlord incentives were
$313 million, $250 million and $176 million, respectively.

Net Cash Flow — Financing Activities

Net cash outflow for financing activities was $848 million for the fifty-two week period ended January 31,
2015 compared to an inflow of $2,906 million for the fifty-two week period ended February 1, 2014, an increase
in net outflow of $3,754 million over the comparable period. The net outflow for the current year was primarily
due to applying net proceeds from the Saks Mortgage to permanently pay down U.S.$1.2 billion of Senior Term
Loan B and net proceeds from the Queen Street Sale to retire the Company’s U.S.$300 million Second Lien
Term Loan (the “Junior Term Loan”) in its entirety, U.S.$150 million of Senior Term Loan B and additional
repayments to the company’s asset-backed credit facilities.

For the thirteen week period ended January 31, 2015 net cash outflow for financing activities was
$471 million compared to an inflow of $2,552 million for the thirteen week period ended February 1, 2014. The
increase in net outflow of $3,023 million over the comparable period can be attributed primarily to the financing
obtained in the prior year for the Saks Acquisition including new term loans, repayment of existing debt and the
issuance of common shares.

Cash Balances and Liquidity

The Company’s primary needs for cash are to fund: (i) operations; (ii) capital expenditures in connection
with our renovation programs and strategic initiatives; (iii) seasonal inventory purchases and other working
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capital requirements; and (iv) debt service. Working capital requirements are at their highest in the latter half of
the fiscal year as inventory builds through the fall, peaking just before the holiday selling season.

The Company’s primary sources of funds are cash flows provided by operations, landlord incentives, our
HBC and U.S. revolving credit facilities, and mortgage-backed real estate financing. Other potential sources of
funding may include new corporate loans and mortgages, the sale and leaseback of real estate properties, selling
real estate, selling other company assets or the issuance of equity. The availability of funding sources is
dependent on economic conditions, capital markets, and our financial condition.

The Company may consider additional acquisitions of, and investments in, retail businesses, and other
complimentary assets or companies. Transactions, if any, are expected to be financed through a combination of
the following sources: cash on hand, borrowing under existing or new credit facilities and the issuance of
long-term debt or other securities, including common shares.

Funding Capacity

The Company anticipates that we will be able to satisfy our working capital requirements, planned capital
expenditures and debt service requirements with proceeds from cash flows from operations, short-term trade
credit, seasonal borrowings under our revolving credit facilities and other sources of financing. The Company
expects to generate adequate cash flow from operating activities to sustain current levels of operations.

Management believes that there is not a significant risk of default and/or arrears on lease payments, interest
or principal payment of debt, or of a breach of debt covenants.

There is no provision in debt, lease, or other arrangements that could trigger an additional funding
requirement for the Company. There are no legal or practical restrictions on the ability of subsidiaries to
transfer funds to the Company that would affect the ability to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

On February 25, 2014, the Company completed the sale of its downtown Toronto flagship store and
adjacent Simpson’s Tower office complex. A portion of the proceeds from the Queen Street Sale was used to
retire in entirety the Company’s U.S.$300 million Junior Term Loan and permanently pay down
U.S.$150 million of the Senior Term Loan B. The balance of the net proceeds was used to reduce the
outstanding balance of the Company’s Canadian revolving credit facility.

On December 3, 2014, the Company obtained the Saks Mortgage. Net of associated fees and expenses, all
proceeds were utilized to permanently pay down U.S.$1.2 billion of the Company’s Senior Term Loan B.

HBC Revolving Credit Facility

HBC is party to a credit facility with Bank of America, N.A. (through its Canadian branch), Wells Fargo
Financial Corporation Canada, GE Canada Finance Holding Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Toronto
Branch, CIBC Asset-Based Lending, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, GE Capital Markets
(Canada) Limited, GE Capital Markets, Inc. and certain other financial institutions (the “HBC Revolving Credit
Facility”). As of January 31, 2015, HBC owed $159 million under the HBC Revolving Credit Facility. HBC is in
compliance with all covenants contained in the HBC Revolving Credit Facility.

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility has total availability of $600 million (reduced from $750 million
pursuant to an amendment dated December 17, 2014, which also extended the maturity date to December 17,
2019). The HBC Revolving Credit Facility is subject to a borrowing base, based predominantly on eligible
inventory of HBC (excluding L&T Acquisition and its subsidiaries) and eligible credit card receivables of HBC
and certain of its subsidiaries (excluding L&T Acquisition and its subsidiaries). The HBC Revolving Credit
Facility bears interest based on various rates depending on which facility is utilized, including the Canadian
prime rate, CDOR rate, United States index rate and LIBOR. The HBC Revolving Credit Facility is available to
finance working capital requirements, capital expenditures or other general corporate purposes and to make
certain restricted payments, investments and repayments of indebtedness, and can be drawn in both U.S. and
Canadian dollars. As the HBC Revolving Credit Facility is available for and used to finance working capital
requirements, capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes, it has been classified in the
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consolidated balance sheets as part of current loans and borrowings. However, the Company is not required to
repay the balance outstanding as at January 31, 2015 until the maturity date of December 17, 2019.

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility contains restrictive covenants customary for facilities of this nature,
including restrictions on the incurrence of indebtedness, restrictions on capital expenditures and restrictions on
payments to affiliates and shareholders. It also includes events of default and representations and warranties
that are customary for credit facilities of this nature.

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility is secured by a first priority security interest over all inventory and
accounts receivable in Canada.

Yorkdale Mortgage

On May 22, 2013 the Company entered into an agreement with Murray & Company Holdings Limited for a
$50 million mortgage (the “Yorkdale Mortgage”). The Yorkdale Mortgage matures on May 22, 2023, bears
interest at 4.89% per annum over a 25 year amortization schedule and is secured by a first mortgage of a
leasehold interest of the Hudson’s Bay store at the Yorkdale Shopping Centre in Toronto, Ontario. The proceeds
of the Yorkdale Mortgage were used to partially prepay the HBC Term Loan. On December 1, 2014, Murray &
Company Holdings Limited assigned the mortgage to GMI Servicing Inc.

Senior Term Loan B

On November 4, 2013, the Company entered into a U.S.$2,000 million senior secured term loan facility with
Bank of America, N.A., as the administrative agent (the “Senior Term Loan B”).

The Senior Term Loan B matures November 4, 2020 and carries interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 3.75% per
annum. The agreement is structured such that LIBOR will be deemed to be not less than 1% per annum
(“LIBOR Floor”). The Senior Term Loan B is subject to mandatory prepayments. A portion of the proceeds
from Senior Term Loan B was used to repay in full the existing HBC senior term loan facility (“HBC Term
Loan”) and the Lord & Taylor amended and restated credit facility (“Lord & Taylor Term Loan”). The
remainder was used to finance the Saks Acquisition.

The Senior Term Loan B is secured by a second lien over all of the Company’s inventory and accounts
receivable, a first lien over substantially all other assets as well as a pledge of the shares of certain of the
Company’s subsidiaries. The Senior Term Loan B contains customary representations and warranties, positive
and negative covenants, reporting requirements and events of default. The Company is in compliance with all
covenants contained in the Senior Term Loan B credit agreement.

On February 25, 2014, the Company, using part of the proceeds of the Queen Street Sale, permanently paid
down U.S.$150 million of the Senior Term Loan B, and on December 3, 2014, the Company permanently paid
down U.S.$1.2 billion using proceeds of the Saks Mortgage, net of associated fees and expenses.

U.S. Revolving Credit Facility

L&T Acquisition is party to a credit agreement with Bank of America, N.A. as Administrative Agent and
Collateral Agent dated November 4, 2013. As of January 31, 2015, L&T Acquisition owed U.S.$85 million under
the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility. L& T Acquisition is in compliance with all covenants contained in the
U.S. Revolving Credit Facility.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility provides a U.S.$1.1 billion revolving line of credit through November 4,
2018 (increased from U.S.$950 million pursuant to an amendment dated December 11, 2014) and refinanced
revolving credit facilities previously in place with Saks and Lord & Taylor. This revolving line of credit is subject
to a borrowing base, based predominantly on eligible inventory and accounts receivable of Lord & Taylor, Saks
and their respective subsidiaries. The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility is available to finance working capital needs,
capital expenditures, operating activities and to support the issuance of standby letters of credit. The
U.S. Revolving Credit Facility has multiple interest rate charge options that are based on the U.S. prime rate,
Federal Funds rate and LIBOR. As the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility is available for and used to finance
working capital requirements, capital expenditures and other operating activities, it has been classified in the
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consolidated balance sheets as part of current loans and borrowings. However, the Company is not required to
repay the balance outstanding as at January 31, 2015 until the maturity date of November 4, 2018.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility contains restrictive covenants customary for credit facilities of this
nature, including restrictions on the incurrence of indebtedness, financial maintenance covenants, and
restrictions on payments to affiliates and shareholders. It also includes events of default and representations and
warranties that are customary for credit facilities of this nature.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility is secured by a first lien security interest over all inventory and accounts
receivables in the United States (Lord & Taylor and Saks).

Saks Mortgage

On December 3, 2014, the Company announced the closing of a U.S.$1.25 billion, 20-year mortgage loan,
on the ground portion of the Company’s Saks Fifth Avenue flagship property in New York City, located at
611 Fifth Avenue with a syndicate of lenders including an affiliate of Morgan Stanley Canada Limited (the “Saks
Mortgage™). The mortgage is secured by a first mortgage lien on the fee interest in the property, together with
all ground lease rents, profits and revenue. The Saks Mortgage contains restrictive covenants, events of default
and representations and warranties that are customary for credit facilities of this nature.

All proceeds from the Saks Mortgage, net of associated fees and expenses, were utilized to permanently pay
down U.S.$1.2 billion of the Senior Term Loan B. The Saks Mortgage is interest-only, with a fixed interest rate
of 4.39%, and does not require any principal amortization over its 20 year term. The Company is in compliance
in all material respects with the terms of its indebtedness to the lenders under the Saks Mortgage.

Lord & Taylor Mortgage

On September 7, 2012, LT 424 LLC (“LT 424”), which is an indirect subsidiary of Lord & Taylor, entered
into a U.S.$250 million syndicated floating rate senior mortgage loan with an affiliate of CIBC World
Markets Inc., as Administrative Agent of the syndicate of lenders, which matures on September 10, 2017
(the “Lord & Taylor Mortgage”). Lord & Taylor utilized the net proceeds of this loan, approximately
U.S.$243 million, to reduce the balance of the Lord & Taylor Term Loan.

Interest is charged on the Lord & Taylor Mortgage at a rate of LIBOR plus 3.0%. LT 424 has entered into
interest rate swap arrangements, the effect of which is to fix the interest rate related to the Lord & Taylor
Mortgage at 3.85%.

The Lord & Taylor Mortgage has no mandatory principal repayments during the first three years, with
monthly amortization payments required during the final two years, based upon a 30 year straight-line
amortization schedule with an interest rate of 7%. LT 424 has the ability to prepay the Lord & Taylor Mortgage
after the first two years with a fee to the lenders of 2%, which fee drops to 1% after three years, and without fees
after September 10, 2016. Any prepayments are applied to reduce the then remaining scheduled installments.

The Lord & Taylor Mortgage contains customary representations and warranties, positive and negative
covenants, reporting requirements and events of default. Lord & Taylor is in compliance with all covenants
contained in the Lord & Taylor Mortgage. As security for the Lord & Taylor Mortgage the Company granted a
first priority mortgage in the Fifth Avenue Lord & Taylor property.
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Contractual Obligations

Our significant contractual obligations

and commitments as of January 31, 2015 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

(millions of Canadian dollars®) Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter

$ $ $ $ $ $

Lease financing

Operating lease arrangements®d . . ... ... ......... 1,672 143 133 123 110 99 1,064

Short-term borrowings®

HBC Revolving Credit Facility ................... 159 59 - - - — —

U.S. Revolving Credit Facility . . .................. 108 08 - - - — —

Long-term borrowings

Senior Term Loan B®? ... ... ... ... .. .. ... 826 — - @ — @ — — 826

Yorkdale Mortgage. . . ....... . ... 48 2 1 1 1 1 42

Lord & Taylor Mortgage. . ... .....coi ... 318 1 3 314 — — —

Saks Mortgage .. ... ... ... .. 1,599 — _ = = = 1,599

Finance leases and other® .. .................... 165 20 15 3 2 2 123

Purchase obligations® . . ... ... ... ... ... .. ...... 151 66 20 15 12 11 27

Other obligations® .. ......................... 1,424 1318 27 11 68 — —

Total obligations .. ............ .. ... ... ........ 6,470 1,817 199 467 193 113 3,681

Notes:

(1) U.S. dollar denominated debt translated to Canadian dollars at a rate of U.S.$1.00: C$1.2711.

(2) Represents future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases. Minimum lease payments are defined as the
payments over the lease term that the Company is or can be required to make, excluding contingent rent, costs for services and taxes to
be paid by and reimbursed to the lessor, together with any guaranteed amounts.

(3) Included in these figures are future minimum payments relating to Zellers of $4 million, $3 million, $3 million, $3 million, $2 million
and $4 million for Fiscal Years 2015 — 2019 and thereafter, respectively.

(4) The HBC Revolving Credit Facility and U.S. Revolving Credit Facility mature on December 17, 2019 and November 4, 2018,
respectively.

(5) Includes liability related to real estate finance leases of $130 million, all of which was assumed through the acquisition of Saks. The
liability includes $93 million primarily related to presumed lease renewals that the Company is not contractually committed to.

(6)  On February 25, 2014, the Company closed its agreement to sell its downtown Toronto flagship retail complex and the Simpson’s Tower
located at 401 Bay Street to an affiliate of The Cadillac Fairview Corporation Limited for a purchase price of $650 million. Proceeds of
the transaction were used to retire in entirety the Junior Term Loan and permanently pay down U.S.$150 million of the Senior Term
Loan B.

(7)  On December 3, 2014, the Company closed the Saks Mortgage using the net proceeds from the transaction to permanently pay down
U.S.$1.2 billion of the Senior Term Loan B.

(8) Includes contractual obligations to purchase goods or services of a material amount where the contract prescribes fixed or minimum

)

volumes to be purchased or payments to be made within a fixed period of time for a set or variable price. These are only estimates of
anticipated financial commitments under these arrangements and the amount of actual payments will vary. These purchase obligations
do not include purchase orders issued or agreements made in the ordinary course of business which are solely for goods which are
meant for resale, nor do they include any contracts which may be terminated on relatively short notice or with relatively insignificant
cost or liability to the Company.

Other obligations include trade and other payables, derivatives and other liabilities.

Leases

The Company has long-term operating lease obligations that are not capitalized on the consolidated

balance sheet in accordance with IFRS. These leases are related to store locations, warchouse facilities and
equipment and are reflected within “Operating lease arrangements” included in the table above. Leases typically
have an original term ranging from 15 to 25 years and provide for renewal periods exercisable at the Company’s
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option. Operating leases relating to property typically require that the Company pays associated real estate taxes
and common area maintenance costs in addition to the minimum lease payments noted above. Such costs vary
from period to period and totaled $157 million and $151 million in Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013, respectively. In
addition to operating leases relating to store locations, the Company also holds finance leases related to
equipment, which are capitalized on the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with IFRS. Upon the closing
of the proposed joint venture transactions with Simon and RioCan (the “JV Transactions”), the Company’s
retail operations are expected to enter into long-term lease arrangements with the joint ventures with average
lease terms of 20 years, plus renewal options.

Lease Guarantees

As part of normal operations, the Company regularly reviews its real estate portfolio and store locations.
Based on the reviews conducted in prior years, the Company has closed certain store premises that it deemed to
be non-strategic. Where these premises were leased, when possible, the Company assigned its leases to other
retail operators, but remained obligated to the landlord on those leases as the original tenant thereunder despite
the assignment. If the assignee were to default on the lease agreement, the Company would remain obligated to
the landlord for payment of amounts due under the lease. The terms of these assigned leases can extend up to
the year 2024. As of January 31, 2015, these leases have future minimum lease payments of $154 million
(February 1, 2014: $150 million), of which $113 million (February 1, 2014: $145 million) relates to leases
assigned to Target (or its affiliates), in addition to other lease-related expenses, such as property taxes and
common area maintenance. The Company has a full, unconditional and continuing guarantee and indemnity
from Target regarding all ongoing obligations related to the store leases acquired by Target (or its affiliates)
which include the assumption of all obligations and liabilities of Zellers arising under these leases after closing of
such sale. The Company’s obligation would be offset by payments from existing or future assignees and their
obligations to the Company to comply with the assigned leases. Potential liabilities related to these guarantees
may be subject to certain defences by the Company. The Company does not expect to make any significant
payments with respect to these lease obligations and believes that the risk of significant loss is low.

On March 6, 2015, Target Canada’s affiliates surrendered eleven leases (which Zellers previously assigned
to Target, or its affiliates) to the applicable landlords in connection with Target Canada affiliates’ proceedings
under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act. In connection with such surrender of leases, the applicable
landlords released certain parties, including HBC, Zellers and their respective predecessors, from all claims
arising out of or relating to, among other things, such leases.

Short-term and Long-term Borrowings

As of January 31, 2015, Company’s drawings on the HBC Revolving Credit Facility and the U.S. Revolving
Credit Facility were $159 million and $108 million, respectively.

On February 25, 2014, the Company closed the Queen Street Sale. Proceeds of the transaction were used to
retire in entirety the Junior Term Loan and to permanently pay down U.S.$150 million of the Senior Term
Loan B. The balance of the net proceeds was used to reduce the outstanding balance of the HBC Revolving
Credit Facility.

On December 3, 2014 the Company closed the U.S.$1.25 billion, 20-year mortgage on the ground portion of
its Saks Fifth Avenue flagship in New York City. All proceeds from the Saks Mortgage, net of associated fees
and expenses, were utilized to permanently pay down U.S.$1.2 billion of the Senior Term Loan B.

Procurement

The above contractual obligations table includes purchase orders for goods not for resale that are
enforceable and legally binding on the Company and which specify all significant terms including: fixed or
minimum quantities to be purchased; fixed minimum or variable price provisions; and the approximate timing of
the transaction. The purchase obligations figures disclosed above also include obligations in respect of minimum
royalty payments due to certain key suppliers.
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Pensions

The defined benefit component of the Company’s Canadian pension plan is currently over-funded, and as a
result the Company does not expect to make significant contributions to it over the next five years, subject to the
performance of the plan assets. The Company has non-pension Canadian employee benefit plans, which are not
funded. For Canadian defined contribution plans, the Company pays contributions to pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. Contributions are recognized as an employee benefit expense as incurred, which is
as the related employee service is rendered.

In the U.S., Saks sponsors a funded defined-benefit cash balance pension plan and an unfunded
supplemental executive retirement plan for certain employees. The pension plan no longer admits new
participants and in 2009 future benefit accruals were suspended. The funding policy requires contributions to the
pension plan to be at least equal to the minimum funding requirement, as determined under the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. There are no funding requirements for the Fiscal 2015 plan year.

Other

As of January 31, 2015, the Company had other long-term liabilities that included an accrued benefit plan
liability and an accrued self-insurance provision. The Company also had obligations in respect of equity grants
and incentive units that may be settled with cash or shares of the Company. These have not been classified as
contractual obligations for the following reasons:

* future payments of accrued benefit plan liability, principally post-retirement benefits, depend on when
and if retirees submit claims;

* future payments of equity grants and incentive units depend on whether the grants or incentive units have
vested, and whether any will be elected to be cash settled; and

* future payments of insurance claims can extend over several years and depend on the timing of
anticipated settlements and results of litigation.

Guarantees and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has guarantees and general indemnification commitments to counterparties. Historically, the
Company has not made any significant payments with respect to these guarantees and indemnification
provisions, and management believes that the risk of significant loss is low.

Standby and documentary letters of credit are used in connection with certain obligations mainly related to
purchase orders and Workers Compensation Collateral requirements. The aggregate gross potential liability
related to the Company’s letters of credit is approximately $28 million as at January 31, 2015.

Other than in connection with the proposed JV Transactions, the Company has not created, and is not party
to, any special purpose or off-balance sheet entities for the purpose of raising capital, incurring debt or operating
its business. The Company does not have any relationships or arrangements with entities that are not
consolidated into its financial statements that are reasonably likely to materially affect liquidity or the availability
of capital resources. It is expected that the joint ventures will be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. As a result, indebtedness at the joint ventures would not be consolidated on the Company’s balance
sheet and there would be limited impact on cash flow.

Financial Instruments and Other Instruments

The Company utilizes certain derivatives as cash flow hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk. The effective portion of the changes in the fair value of the hedging derivatives, net of taxes, is
recognized in other comprehensive income.

The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to fix the cost in Canadian dollars of certain
U.S. dollar based purchases of merchandise from foreign suppliers. These forward exchange contracts have been
designated as cash flow hedges and reported at fair value in financial assets or financial liabilities, depending on

39



their fair value. Once the inventory is recorded, the Company has elected to reclassify the related accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) amount to merchandise inventories. Subsequent changes in the fair value of
the forward foreign exchange contracts are recorded in net earnings (loss).

Derivative financial instruments not designated within an effective hedging relationship and embedded
derivatives are classified as fair value through profit or loss and measured at fair value with any changes in their
fair values recognized in income in the period in which the change occurs. Short-term deposits are classified as
held to maturity, which are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. All other financial
assets are classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

All other financial liabilities are classified as other liabilities and measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest income and expense are included in finance costs.

The Company determines the fair value of its long-term loans and borrowings using a discounted cash flow
model, taking into consideration the fixed interest rate spread included in the related debt compared to fixed
interest rate spreads on similar debt available in the market at the balance sheet dates.

The fair values of foreign currency options, interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts
reflect the estimated amounts that the Company would receive or pay if it were to settle the contracts at the
reporting date.

As a result of the Saks Acquisition, the Company recognized Equity Commitment Forwards in the year
ended February 1, 2014 which were classified as fair value through profit or loss and measured at fair value. Any
changes in the fair value were recognized in net earnings (loss) in the period in which the change occurred.
Upon closing of the Saks Acquisition, the Company derecognized the Equity Commitment Forwards and
reclassified the related financial liability to share capital. The fair values were determined using a forward
pricing model. In addition, the Company issued warrants in connection with the Saks Acquisition. Certain
features of the warrants resulted in the warrants being presented as derivative financial liabilities which are
classified as fair value through profit or loss and measured at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value are
recognized in net earnings (loss) in the period in which the change occurs. The fair values of the warrants are
determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. For a complete description of the derivative financial
instruments of the Company and related risks, please refer to note 18 of the Company’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015.

Risks arising from Financial Instruments

Through its use of financial instruments, the Company has exposure to credit, liquidity and market risk. The
following is a description of those risks and how the exposures are managed:

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the possibility that the Company can suffer financial losses due to the failure of the
Company’s counterparties to meet their payment obligations. The Company is exposed to minimal credit risk
from customers, vendors, and financial counterparties as a result of ongoing credit evaluations and review of
accounts receivable collectability. Credit risk is mitigated by various techniques including selecting
counterparties based on acceptable credit ratings and minimizing the concentration of positions with individual
counterparties. There is no concentration of accounts receivable balances. The Company does not consider its
exposure to credit risk to be material.

(ii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring actual and projected cash flows, taking into

account the seasonality of the Company’s working capital needs, sales and earnings. The HBC Revolving Credit
Facility, the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility and the bank overdraft facilities are used to maintain liquidity.
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(iii) Market risk
Market risk includes foreign currency risk and interest rate risk:
(a) Foreign currency risk

The Company is a Canadian dollar functional currency entity that purchases a significant amount of
inventory for its Canadian operations in U.S. dollars. HBC enters into forward foreign exchange contracts and
foreign currency options to reduce the foreign exchange risk with respect to these U.S. dollar denominated
purchases.

In accordance with the Company’s risk management policy, HBC may hedge up to 100% of all foreign
currency transactions and economic exposures that are recognized on the consolidated balance sheets, or
deemed as firm commitments (e.g. purchase orders that have been issued for goods and services in foreign
currency). HBC may further hedge up to 70% of forecasted transactions (anticipated transactions for which
there are no firm commitments).

Our net investment in Lord & Taylor and Saks, whose functional currency is U.S. dollars, presents a foreign
exchange risk to HBC, whose functional currency is Canadian dollars. HBC used a net investment hedge to
mitigate this risk. HBC had originally designated U.S.$800 million of Senior Term Loan B as a hedge of the first
U.S.$800 million of net assets of L&T Acquisition. The hedge was subsequently reduced to U.S.$350 million
upon pay down of certain debt and further to nil, upon pay down of Senior Term Loan B. Foreign currency
translation of the net earnings of L& T Acquisition impacts consolidated net earnings (loss). Foreign currency
translation of HBC’s investment in L& T Acquisition impacts other comprehensive income.

(b) Interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from short-term and long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The Company’s variable rate borrowings are
denominated in both U.S. and Canadian dollars.

Cash flow interest rate risk is mitigated by the use of interest rate swaps.

In connection with the Saks Mortgage the Company entered into two separate interest rate swap lock
forward contracts (the “Rate Locks™) during fiscal 2014 that resulted in the Company fixing the interest rate to
be paid over the entire term of the mortgage. The Company designated the Rate Locks as hedges of the cash
flows from the forecasted proceeds of the Saks Mortgage. Each hedging relationship was assessed to be highly
effective and as at January 31, 2015, a net realized loss of $9 million, with related deferred taxes of $4 million
was included in other comprehensive income representing the mark-to-market adjustments to fair value from
the date of execution of each Rate Lock, October 10, 2014 and November 5, 2014 respectively to December 3,
2014, the date of close of the Saks Mortgage.

Classification of Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments not designated within an effective hedging relationship and embedded
derivatives are classified as fair value though profit or loss and measured at fair value with any changes in their
fair values recognized in net earnings (loss) in the period in which the change occurs. Short-term deposits are
classified as held to maturity, which are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. All
other financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. All other financial liabilities are classified as other liabilities and measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Interest income and expense are included in finance costs.

The following table provides a summary of the fair values of financial instruments by classification as of
January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013

$ $
Classified as fair value through profit or loss ......... ... . ... .. ... ... . ..... (69) (25)
Classified as loans and receivables . . ... .. ... . .. . 380 160
Classified as held to maturity . . . . . ... e 2 2
Financial derivatives designated as cash flow hedges . .......... ... ... ... ...... 21 6
Classified as other liabilities . . . . .. ... e (4,415) (4,264)



Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company determines the fair value of its long-term loans and borrowings using a discounted cash flow
model, taking into consideration the fixed interest rate spread included in the related debt compared to fixed
interest rate spreads on similar debt available in the market at the balance sheet dates.

The fair values of foreign currency options, interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts
reflect the estimated amounts that the Company would receive or pay if it were to settle the contracts at the
reporting date. The fair value of foreign currency options are determined based on the difference between the
exercise rate and the spot rate, volatility of exchange rates and market interest rates at the period-end date.
Interest rate swaps are valued using a discounted cash flow model based on market interest rate curves at the
period-end date. The forward foreign currency contracts are valued based on the difference between contract
rates and spot rates at the period-end date, discounted to reflect the time-value of money. The fair values of
embedded foreign currency derivatives reflect the estimated amounts the Company would receive or pay to
settle forward foreign exchange contracts with similar terms using valuation techniques and observable market
input data.

For Fiscal 2014, the Company recorded a net loss of $44 million (2013: $153 million) on financial
instruments related to the Saks Acquisition. Specifically, the net loss comprised losses on changes in fair value of
Warrants of $44 million (2013: nil) and Equity Commitment Forwards of nil (2013: $153 million). In addition,
the Company recorded a loss of $1 million on the change in fair value of embedded foreign currency derivatives
in Fiscal 2014 (2013: $1 million).

Tax Matters

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to ongoing audits by tax authorities. While the
Company believes that its tax filing positions are appropriate and supportable, from time to time certain matters
are reviewed and challenged by the tax authorities.

The Company regularly reviews the potential for adverse outcomes in respect of tax matters. The Company
believes that there are no tax matters that will have a material adverse effect on its liquidity, consolidated
financial position or results of operations because the Company believes that it has adequate provisions for any
tax matters. Should the ultimate tax liability materially differ from the provisions, the Company’s effective tax
rate and its earnings (loss) could be affected, positively or negatively, in the period in which the matters
are resolved.

Related Party Transactions

Transactions between HBC and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed herein. Details of transactions with other related parties are disclosed below.

On May 6, 2011, a subsidiary of L&T Acquisition entered into a two year lease with SP 35 L.P.
(the “Landlord”) for approximately 31,000 square feet in Shrewsbury, NJ. The lease was amended on
January 17, 2013 to include three renewal options. The first two renewal options are for terms of two and three
years, respectively, at an annual cost of U.S.$440 thousand. The third renewal option is for a term of five years at
an annual cost of U.S.$484 thousand. The first and second renewal options were exercised. Amounts charged to
the Company under the rental arrangement for the thirteen and fifty-two weeks ended January 31, 2015 were
U.S.$110 thousand and U.S.$440 thousand, respectively (2013: U.S.$94 thousand and U.S.$376 thousand,
respectively). The Landlord is an affiliate of National Realty & Development Corp. (“NRDC”). Richard Baker
and Robert Baker, the principals of NRDC, are directors of the Company.

During the thirteen and fifty-two weeks ended January 31, 2015, the Company accrued nil and
$314 thousand, respectively (2013: $300 thousand and $300 thousand, respectively) from Hudson’s Bay Trading
Company, LP (“HBTC”), a shareholder of the Company, with respect to the reimbursement of expenses for
services provided by HBC on their behalf.

On February 25, 2014, the Company completed the sale of its downtown Toronto flagship store and
adjacent Simpson’s Tower office complex to an affiliate of The Cadillac Fairview Corporation Limited, an
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affiliate of HSILP, for a purchase price of $650 million. The Company has leased the entire retail and a portion
of office complex back for a base term of twenty-five years, with renewal options up to approximately twenty-five
years. The transaction is considered to be a related party transaction because an affiliate of The Cadillac
Fairview Corporation Limited is a related party of the Company by virtue of it being an affiliate of Ontario
Teachers’ Pension Plan Board, which indirectly holds the power to exercise control and direction over, and
beneficial ownership of, more than 10% of the Company’s outstanding voting shares. As part of this transaction,
Saks has also agreed to lease space in Toronto’s Sherway Gardens from The Cadillac Fairview Corporation
Limited, which is also considered to be a related party transaction. Previously, the Company had entered into
store leases with The Cadillac Fairview Corporation Limited or its affiliates for stores located at: Fairview Park
in Kitchener, Ontario; Richmond Centre in Richmond, British Columbia; Chinook Centre and Market Mall,
both in Calgary, Alberta; Polo Park Shopping Centre in Winnipeg, Manitoba; Masonville Place in London,
Ontario; Markville Shopping Centre in Markham, Ontario; Limeridge Mall in Hamilton, Ontario; Fairview
Pointe-Claire, in Pte-Claire, Quebec; Fairview Mall in Toronto, Ontario; Carrefour Laval in Laval, Quebec; Les
Promenades St. Bruno in St. Bruno, Quebec; and Les Galeries D’Anjou in Montreal, Quebec. The leases
contain representations and warranties, positive and negative covenants and events of default which, in each
case, are customary to leases of this nature. The Company is in compliance with the covenants contained in
the leases.

All of the above amounts have been recorded at the exchange value of the transaction.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based upon
the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRS. The
Company’s significant accounting policies are described in note 2 to the Fiscal 2014 audited consolidated
financial statements.

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, and reporting of income and expenses, that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ materially from these
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are certain critical judgments and estimations that management has made in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized
in the consolidated financial statements (see note 3 to the Fiscal 2014 audited consolidated financial statements
for further critical judgments and estimations):

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost method based on individual items and, with respect to
Saks, a retail inventory method that approximates cost. Costs comprise all variable costs such as the merchandise
cost, freight and handling, incurred in bringing inventories to their present location and condition. Storage and
administrative overheads are expensed as incurred. Supplier rebates and discounts received or receivable based
on vendor agreements are recorded as a reduction in the cost of purchases unless they relate to a reimbursement
of specific incremental expenses. The Company receives significant support from vendors for promotional
markdown activity and reflects this support as an offset to the cost of markdowns taken in cost of goods sold.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price determined at the item level using historical markdown
rates for similar items in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs required to sell. At each balance
sheet date, the Company reviews its on-hand inventory to identify items selling below cost at that date and uses
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historical trends and current inventory mix to determine an additional reserve for the impact of future
markdowns which will take the net realizable value of inventory on-hand below cost.

Physical inventories are generally taken within each merchandise department annually, and inventory
records are adjusted accordingly resulting in an expense within cost of goods sold. The Company records a
shrink reserve utilizing historical shrink rates to reflect the incremental expense between the time of the physical
inventory count and the reporting date.

Loyalty Programs

Loyalty program accounting allocates a portion of consideration paid by the customer at the time
merchandise or services are acquired to the value of the loyalty entitlement earned as part of the transaction.
This portion of the consideration is treated as deferred revenue and recognized when the customer redeems
points and ultimately acquires additional merchandise or services. The Company retains an external actuary to
estimate the percentage of rewards points earned by customers that ultimately will be redeemed.

Impairment and reversal of impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are subject to impairment and impairment reversal reviews based on whether current or
future events and circumstances suggest that their recoverable amount may be more or less than their carrying
value. In certain instances, the recoverable amount is based on a calculation of expected future cash flows which
includes management assumptions and estimates of future performance.

Impairment of goodwill

The Company uses judgment in determining the grouping of assets to identify its cash generating units
(“CGUs”) for purposes of testing for impairment of goodwill. In testing for impairment, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combination. The calculations for impairment testing involve significant estimates and assumptions. Items
estimated include cash flows, discount rates and assumptions on revenue growth rates. These estimates could
affect the Company’s future results if the current estimates of future performance and fair values change.
Judgment is also used to determine whether an indication of impairment is present which would require the
completion of an impairment test in addition to the annual testing.

Income Taxes

In connection with the reorganization on January 11, 2012 that resulted in Lord & Taylor becoming a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, Lord & Taylor became a taxable entity. Prior to January 11, 2012, Lord &
Taylor was considered a flow-through (limited liability corporations or “LLC”, and limited partnerships) entity
for tax purposes. The Company’s accounting policies for the following types of entities are as follows:

(i) Taxable entities

The Company has recognized deferred income tax assets arising from differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements as well as those in
respect of non-capital losses carried forward. The extent to which assets have been recognized reflects
management’s expectation that these assets will be recovered through the reversal of the differences between the
tax and accounting basis as well as through future taxable profits being earned before expiry of the losses. A
valuation allowance is recorded to the extent that management does not believe that the assets are recoverable.
The Company has had significant movement in the valuation allowance in recent years as operating performance
has improved, demonstrating the Company’s ability to realize the timing differences and tax loss carry-forwards.
The sale of leasehold interests caused management to record a valuation allowance on the deferred tax assets
related to Zellers due to the expected inability to fully utilize the tax loss carry-forwards. This was subsequently
reduced based on additional information that confirmed the extent to which restricted losses should
be recovered.

44



Income tax expense or benefit comprises current and deferred income taxes. Tax is recognized in the
consolidated statements of earnings (loss), except to the extent that it relates to items recognized either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. The income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the balance sheet.

(ii) Flow-through entities

Lord & Taylor, as a limited liability company from the date of its acquisition by HBTC through January 10,
2012, was treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes and in most states in which it operates.
Lord & Taylor did not record a federal tax provision for deferred tax assets or liabilities related to federal tax
prior to its acquisition by HBC.

Lord & Taylor operates stores in eleven states, plus the District of Columbia. Although most of these states
follow the federal treatment of LLCs, four states require an LLC to file a state corporation or franchise tax
return and pay any related taxes or submit income tax withholdings on the partners’ behalf. Accordingly, a state
income tax expense is recorded for estimated income attributable to those states.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits include pensions (both defined contribution and defined benefit) and
non-pension post-retirement benefits (medical and life insurance benefits for retirees). The Company reports its
obligations under these plans net of any plan assets.

The asset or liability recognized in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension
plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets. Independent actuaries calculate the defined benefit obligation annually.

Actuarial gains and losses (typically related to investment performance or interest rate movement different
from management’s assumptions) are excluded from operating income and are recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Past service costs are recognized in operating income in
the year in which they arise. For funded plans, surpluses are recognized only to the extent to which the Company
can unilaterally reduce future contributions to the plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Company pays contributions to pension plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. Contributions are recognized as an employee benefit expense as incurred, which is as the related
employee service is rendered.

Valuation of Financial Instruments

In connection with the Acquisition, the Company issued warrants. Additionally, due to the variability of the
share issue price and certain features of the investment agreements, forward contracts (“Equity Commitment
Forwards™) were recognized and accounted for as derivative financial instruments in the prior year. The
classification of these instruments as financial liabilities is an area of significant judgment. The Company
recorded the mark-to-market valuation adjustment of these warrants (and Equity Commitment Forwards in the
prior year) as finance costs based upon the end of period valuation.

Changes in Accounting Policies Including Initial Adoption

Accounting Standards Implemented in 2014

Financial Instruments — In December 2011, the IASB amended IAS 32— Financial Instruments:
Presentation (“IAS 32”), to clarify the requirements that permit offsetting a financial asset and liability in the
financial statements. The Company implemented IAS 32 at the beginning of its 2014 fiscal year and the
implementation did not have an impact on its results of operations, financial position or disclosure.

In June 2013, the IASB amended IAS 39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
(“IAS 39”), providing guidance on novation of over-the-counter derivatives and continued designation for hedge
accounting. The amendments to IAS 39 must be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
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January 1, 2014. The Company implemented IAS 39 at the beginning of its 2014 fiscal year and the
implementation did not have an impact on its results of operations, financial position or disclosure.

Impairment of Assets — In May 2013, the IASB amended IAS 36 — Impairment of Assets (“IAS 36”),
providing guidance on recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets. The Company implemented
IAS 36 at the beginning of its 2014 fiscal year and the implementation did not have an impact on its results of
operations, financial position or disclosure.

Levies — In May 2013, the IASB issued IFRIC 21, providing guidance on the accounting for levies imposed
by governments. The interpretation clarifies that the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is
the activity described in the relevant legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. The Company adopted the
standard retrospectively in the first quarter of Fiscal 2014. The impact of the amendments to IFRIC 21 is
summarized in note 2(z) of the Fiscal 2014 audited consolidated financial statements.

Future Expected Changes

Financial Instruments — In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”), which
brings together the classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting phases of the IASB’s
project to replace IAS 39.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets are classified and measured based on the business model under which they are managed
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Financial liabilities are classified in a similar
manner as under IAS 39, except that financial liabilities measured at fair value will have fair value changes
resulting from changes in the entity’s own credit risk recognized in other comprehensive income instead of net
earnings (loss).

Impairment

The measurement of impairment of financial assets is based on an expected credit loss model. It is no
longer necessary for a triggering event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized. IFRS 9 also includes
new disclosure requirements about expected credit losses and credit risk.

Hedge accounting

The new general hedge accounting model more closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by entities when hedging their financial and non-financial risk exposures. The new model
will provide more opportunities to apply hedge accounting to reflect actual risk management activities.

IFRS 9 will be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Early
adoption is permitted. The Company is assessing the potential impact of this standard.

Revenue — In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15— Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“IFRS 15”), which provides a comprehensive framework for recognition, measurement and disclosure of
revenue from contracts with customers, excluding contracts within the scope of the standards on leases,
insurance contracts and financial instruments. IFRS 15 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2017, and must be applied retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is
assessing the potential impact of IFRS 15.

Joint Arrangements — In May 2014, the IASB amended IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements (“IFRS 117) to
require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, in which the
activity of the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the relevant IFRS 3 — Business Combinations
principles for business combinations accounting. The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a
joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while
joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the
amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under
common control of the same ultimate controlling party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the
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initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation. The
amendments to IFRS 11 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, and
must be applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is assessing the potential impact of the
amendments to IFRS 11.

Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that material information
is gathered and reported to senior management, including the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and the Chief
Financial Officer (“CFO”), on a timely basis so that appropriate decisions can be made regarding public
disclosure.

The Company’s management, under the supervision of the CEO and the CFO, has designed and
maintained a set of disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that information required to be disclosed in
filings made pursuant to National Instrument 52-109 — Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and
Interim Filing (“NI 52-109”) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified
in the Canadian Securities Administrators’ (“CSA”) rules and forms.

Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

The CEO and the CFO have designed, or caused to be designed under their supervision, internal controls
over financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS. Management conducted its
evaluation based on the framework set forth in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on its evaluation under this
framework, management concluded that the company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as
of January 31, 2015.

Internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those
systems determined to be designed effectively can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial
reporting and financial statement preparation.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As part of HBC’s on-going system integration strategy, the Company completed system conversions for one
of its Banners during the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014. These conversions resulted in changes to the Company’s
internal controls over financial reporting impacting the following areas: (1) Merchandise Payables and Inventory
as well as (2) Payroll.

Except for the preceding changes, there have been no other changes in the Company’s internal controls
over financial reporting during Fiscal 2014 that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Additional Information
Additional information relating to Hudson’s Bay Company, including the most recently filed Annual
Information Form, is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Risk Factors

For a detailed description of risk factors associated with the Company, refer to the “Risk Factors” section of
the Company’s Annual Information Form for Fiscal 2013 filed on SEDAR on May 2, 2014. Additional risk
factors related to the contemplated joint ventures with RioCan and Simon are outlined below. The Company is
not otherwise aware of any significant changes to the Company’s risk factors from those disclosed at that time.
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We may not be able to successfully close our contemplated joint venture transactions. There can be no assurance
that we will receive the expected benefits from such joint ventures or that we will be able to effect a future
monetization transaction with respect to each of the joint ventures.

Closing of the joint venture transactions are each subject to customary conditions and consents, as
applicable. We currently expect to close the joint venture transactions within approximately 90-120 days of
announcement. There can be no assurance that the transaction with Simon or the transaction with RioCan will
close in accordance with the proposed timeline, or at all. Further, there can be no assurance that our
contemplated joint ventures will provide the expected benefits, including enabling us to identify new real estate
growth opportunities such as future property acquisitions, or that we will be able to monetize our joint ventures
at a future date.

We will not have sole control over the properties that we have agreed to hold with our joint venture partners or over
the revenues and certain decisions associated with those properties, which may limit our flexibility with respect to
these properties.

We have agreed to form joint ventures with each of RioCan and Simon, whereby we have initially
contributed 10 owned or ground-leased properties to the joint venture with RioCan and 42 owned or ground-
leased properties to the joint venture with Simon. The properties that we will own or lease through our real
estate joint ventures total approximately 8.7 million square feet.

Despite having an eventual pro forma 79.8% equity stake in the joint venture with RioCan and an eventual
pro forma 80% equity stake in the joint venture with Simon, a joint venture involves risks, including, among
others, a risk that our partner:

* may have economic or business interests or goals that are inconsistent with our economic or business
interests or goals;

* may take actions contrary to our policies or objectives with respect to our real estate investments;

* may have to give its consent with respect to certain major decisions, including the decision to distribute
cash, refinance a property or sell a property;

* may become bankrupt, limiting its ability to meet calls for capital contributions and potentially making it
more difficult to refinance or sell the property;

* may become engaged in a dispute with us that might affect our ability to develop or operate a
property; or

* may have competing interests in our markets that could create conflict of interest issues.

Further, we will not have sole control of certain major decisions relating to the properties that we own
through real estate joint ventures, including, among others, decisions relating to:

* making any loans or providing financial assistance to any person;
* issuing new units or other interests in our joint ventures; or

¢ dissolving or terminating our joint ventures.

Dividends

The Company’s Board of Directors approved the payment of a quarterly dividend on March 9, 2015, which
will be paid on April 15, 2015, to shareholders of record at the close of business March 31, 2015. The dividend
will be in the amount of $0.05 per Common Share and will be designated as an “cligible dividend” for Canadian
tax purposes.

Outstanding Share Data

The Company’s authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of Common Shares and an
unlimited number of preferred shares issuable in series. As of April 6, 2015, the Company had
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182,100,001 Common Shares issued and outstanding and no preferred shares issued and outstanding. As of
April 6, 2015, the Company had 10,475,059 share options, 396,748 restricted share units and 6,750,000 warrants
outstanding, all of which are convertible or exchangeable into Common Shares.

The Company’s Common Shares trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “HBC” and began
trading on November 20, 2012. In addition, there were approximately 25 million Common Shares reserved for
issuance for the exercise of share options, warrants and the settlement of restricted share units. Assuming
exercise of all outstanding share options and the settlement of all outstanding restricted share units, there would
be approximately 193.0 million Common Shares issued and outstanding on a fully diluted basis. Assuming
exercise of all outstanding share options, the settlement of all outstanding restricted share units and the exercise
of all outstanding warrants, there would be approximately 199.8 million Common Shares issued and outstanding
on a fully diluted basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Hudson’s Bay Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hudson’s Bay Company, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at January 31, 2015, February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013, and the
consolidated statements of earnings (loss), consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss),
consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for the 52 weeks
ended January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Hudson’s Bay Company as at January 31, 2015, February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the 52 weeks ended January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014 in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Nelsdn LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants, Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

April 6, 2015
Toronto, Canada



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS (LOSS)

For the 52 weeks ended January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014
(millions of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)

February 1,
January 31, 2014
2015 (restated — see note 2(z))
Notes  (Fiscal 2014) (Fiscal 2013)
Retail sales. . . ... . e e 8,169 5,223
Costofsales. ..........o. i, 10 (4,893) (3,217)
Selling, general and administrative expenses . . ... ........... (2,759) (1,826)
Depreciation and amortization. . .. ...................... 5 (344) (175)
Gain on sale and leaseback transaction ................... 28 308 =
Operating income . . . . ................. .. ..., 481 5
Total interest eXpense, Net . . . . ..o v vt ii et e e e (218) (95)
Acquisition-related finance costs .. ......... ... (44) (166)
Finance costs ... ....... ... ... 6 (262) (261)
Earnings (loss) before income tax — continuing operations . . . . . 219 (256)
Income tax benefit . ....... ... ... .. ... . L. 7 L M
Net earnings (loss) for the year — continuing operations . .. ... 238 (177)
Net loss for the year — discontinued operations, net of income
BAKS « v v e e e e e e e 29 — (82)
Net earnings (loss) for theyear......................... 238 ~(259)
Basic net earnings (loss) per common share ............... 21
Continuing Operations . . . . . ..o vt vttt 1.31 (1.31)
Discontinued operations . . .............c.iiii .. — (0.61)
1.31 (1.92)
Diluted net earnings (loss) per common share . ............. 21
Continuing Operations . . . ... ..o vttt 1.30 (1.34)
Discontinued operations . ... ............iiiiiiia.. — (0.61)
1.30 (1.95)

(See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements)
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HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

for the 52 weeks ended January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014
(millions of Canadian dollars)

February 1,
January 31, 2014
2015 (restated — see note 2(z))
(Fiscal 2014) (Fiscal 2013)
Net earnings (10SS) . . ... ... ..ttt 238 (259)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Item that will not be reclassified to earnings or loss:
Net actuarial (loss) gain of employee benefit plans, net of taxes of $4
(2013: $16) . - v ettt (6) 45
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to earnings or loss:
Currency translation adjustment .. ............... ... ........ 236 159
Net loss on net investment hedge, net of taxes of $4 (2013: $4) ... .. ?2) (54)
Net gain on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, net of taxes of
83 (2013: $4) . 13 10
Reclassification to non-financial assets of net losses on derivatives
designated as cash flow hedges, net of taxes of $2 (2013: $2).... .. 5) 4)
Reclassification to earnings of net losses on derivatives designated as
cash flow hedges, net of taxes of $2 (2013: $1) .. .............. (6) (3)
Other comprehensive income . . .. ... ... . 230 153
Total comprehensive income (loss) . ........................... 468 (106)

(See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements)
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HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the 52 weeks ended January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014
(millions of Canadian dollars)

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) (“AOCI”)

Currency Net Cash Total
Share  Retained Contributed Translation Employee Investment  Flow Total  Shareholders’
Notes Capital Earnings Surplus Adjustment  Benefits Hedge Hedges AOCI Equity
As at February 2,2013 . . ... ... 246 797 33 (12) (51) — — (63) 1,013
Impact of change in accounting
policy ..o A — “ - @ - - - O ©)
As at February 3, 2013 (restated) . 246 793 33 (13) (51) — — (64) 1,008
Comprehensive loss (restated) . . . — (259) — 159 45 (54) 3 153 (106)
Share based compensation . . . . . . 19 — — 10 — — — — — 10
Issuance of common shares . . . .. 20 1,174 — — — — — — — 1,174
Dividends . . ... ........... 20 — (43) — — — — — — (43)
As at February 1, 2014 (restated) . 1,420 491 43 146 (6) (54) 3 89 2,043
Comprehensive income . . . . .. .. — 238 — 236 (6) 2) 2 230 468
Share based compensation . . . . . . 19 — — 17 — — — — — 17
Dividends . . ... ........... 20 — (36) — — — — — — (36)
As at January 31,2015 . . . ... .. 1,420 693 60 382 (12) (56) 5 319 2,492

(See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements)
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HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As at January 31, 2015, February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013
(millions of Canadian dollars)

(restated —
note 2(z) (restated —
and note 4) note 2(z))

January 31, February 1, February 2,
2015 2014 2013
Notes  (Fiscal 2014)  (Fiscal 2013)  (Fiscal 2012)

ASSETS

Cash ... 8 168 21 48
Trade and other receivables . . .. ... ... ... .. .. ... .. .. .. 9 212 137 74
Inventories . .. ... ... ... .. 10 2,349 2,048 994
Financial assets . ... ... ... .. .. 18 24 8 3
Income taxes recoverable . .............. .. .. . ... 7 23 —
Other current assets . . . . ..o vttt 69 71 32
Assets of discontinued operations . . . . ... .. ... .. 29 — 2 269
Total current assets . . ... ... ... ... ... 2,829 2,310 1,420
Property, plant and equipment . . .. ...... ... L L oL 11 4,606 4,110 1,335
Intangible assets. . .. ... ... .. L 12 1,076 980 233
Goodwill . . . ... 12 237 208 —
Pensions and employee benefits . .. ........ .. ... ... ... ... 17 69 72 38
Deferred tax assets . . . . . ..ot 7 240 249 214
Other assets . .. ... ... 15 13 12
Total assets . . . . ... ... e 9,072 7,942 3,252
LIABILITIES

Loans and borrowings . . . . . ... .. . 14 265 532 132
Trade payables . . . . . ... 945 585 400
Other payables and accrued liabilities . ... .................. 603 489 273
Other liabilities . .. . ... .. . 13 76 — —
Deferred revenue . . . .. ... ... 130 152 110
Provisions . . . ... ... 15 115 149 85
Income taxes payable . .......... ... ... . ... .. ... 8 10 3
Financial liabilities . .. . ... .. ... .. .. . 18 2 1 1
Liabilities of discontinued operations . ..................... 29 — 89 343
Total current liabilities . . . . . ... ........................ 2,144 2,007 1,347
Loans and borrowings . . . . . ... .. . 14 2,859 2,923 719
Provisions . . . .. ... 15 63 16 14
Financial liabilities . . ... ... .. ... ... ... . .. . . 18 68 24 —
Pensions and employee benefits . .. ... ... ... ... . . .. ... 17 109 96 70
Deferred tax liabilities. . . . .. ... ... . . 7 668 631 —
Other liabilities . .. ......... ... i 13 669 202 94
Total liabilities . .. ... .. .. .. ... .. ... .. .. .. .. . . .. .. .. 6,580 5,899 2,244
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share capital . .. ... ... .. 20 1,420 1,420 246
Retained earnings .. ... ... .. ... 693 491 793
Contributed surplus . . . ... .. 60 43 33
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) .. ............ 319 89 (64)
Total shareholders’ equity . . ... ......... ... ... ... ... ..... 2,492 2,043 1,008
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . . .. ................ 9,072 7,942 3,252

(See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

On behalf of the Board:

W Pl A o

Director Director
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Operating activities
Net earnings (loss)

HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the 52 weeks ended January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014
(millions of Canadian dollars)

Notes

fortheyear . .. ....... ... ... .. ... .....

Deduct: Income tax benefit . . ... ... .................... 7,29

Add: Finance costs

Operating income (

10SS) © oo

Net cash income taxes received . . . . .. ... ... ... ... .. ... ...
Interest paidincash. . . ... ... ... .. ... oo

Items not affecting
Proceeds on sale
Depreciation and

cash flows:
of leasehold interests recognized . . ........... 29
amortization . . . .. ... ... oo 5

Impairment of property, plant and equipment . . . .. ... ... .. ...

Net defined bene

fit pension and employee benefits expense . . . .. ..

Other operating activities . . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... . ...,

(Gain) loss on sale and leaseback transaction and sale of assets . . . . .

Share based compensation. . . . ... ... ... ... L. 19
Redemption of share based compensation grants. . . . ... ......... 19
Changes in operating working capital:

(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables . . ... ... .....

(Increase) decrease in inventories . . . ... .................

Decrease in otherassets . . ... ........................

Increase (decreas
provisions . .
Increase (decreas

Net cash inflow from

Investing activities

¢) in trade and other payables, accrued liabilities and

e) in other liabilities . . . . ... ..............

(outflow for) operating activities . ... ... ... ...

Acquisition of Saks, net of cash acquired . . .. ... ............. 4

Capital investments
Proceeds from land

lord incentives . . . . ... . ...

Proceeds from lease termination and other non-capital landlord incentives

Proceeds from sale
Proceeds from sale

ofassets . . ... ...
and leaseback transaction. . . .. ... .......... 28

Other investing activities . . . . ... ... ... ... ... .. .. ...

Net cash inflow from

Financing activities

(outflow for) investing activities . . . . . ... ... ...

Long-term loans and borrowings:

Issuance . ...
Repayments . .
Borrowing costs

Net decrease in other long-term borrowings . . .. ... ..........

Short-term loans and borrowings:

Net (repayments
Borrowing costs

to) borrowings from asset-based credit facilities

Net decrease in other short-term borrowings . . . . . ... .........

Issuance of common shares . ... ... ............. ........ 20

Dividends paid . .

.................................. 20

Net cash (outflow for) inflow from financing activities . . . . . . .. ... ...

Foreign exchange gain (loss) oncash . ... ....................

Increase (decrease) incash . .. ... ... .. ... ...
Transfer from continuing operations. . . . . .. ......... ... .....

Increase (decrease) incash . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ...

Cash at beginning of
Cash at end of year

VEAr . . . oo

January 31, 2015
(Fiscal 2014)

February 1, 2014
(restated — see note 2(z))

(Fiscal 2013)

Continuing  Discontinued

operations operations Total
(177) (82) (259)
(79) (28) (107)

261 - 261
5 (110) (105)

1 93 94
(82) — (82)
— (33) (33)
175 — 175
4 — 4

21 6 27
(14) — (14)
— 16 16
10 — 10
©) ®) ®)

2 8 30
180 151 331
5 6 11
(165) (211) (376)
5 0] @)

164 (86) 78
(2,766) (2,766)
(292) - (292)
42 — 42
(250) — (250)
4 - 4

— 3 3
) = ©))
(3,013) BE (3,010
2,659 — 2,639
(684) (684)
(83) — (83)
) = @)
1,888 — 1,888
36 — 36
(14) — (14)
2 f 2
1,039 — 1,039
(43) — (43)
2,906 — 2,906
)] — (1
56 (83) (27)

(83) 83 —

@7) — @7
48 — 48

21 Z 21

(See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements)
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HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Hudson’s Bay Company (“HBC” or the “Company”) is a Canadian corporation continued under the Canada Business Corporations
Act and domiciled in Canada.

On November 26, 2012, the Company completed an initial public offering (the “IPO”) of its common shares, which trade on the
Toronto Stock Exchange.

On November 4, 2013, the Company acquired Saks Incorporated (“Saks”) whereby all of the issued and outstanding shares (other than
shares owned by Saks and its subsidiaries) of Saks were purchased through Lord & Taylor Acquisition Inc. (“L&T Acquisition”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company for U.S.$16.00 per share in an all-cash transaction (the “Acquisition”) valued at
U.S.$2,973 million ($3,097 million), including debt assumed (see note 4).

The Company owns and operates department stores in Canada and the United States under Hudson’s Bay, Lord & Taylor, Saks Fifth
Avenue, Saks Fifth Avenue OFF 5TH (“OFF 5TH”) and Home Outfitters banners. The address of the registered office of HBC is
401 Bay Street, Suite 500, Toronto, ON, M5H 2Y4.

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended January 31, 2015 were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors of
HBC on April 6, 2015.
b) Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through the statements of
earnings (loss). In accordance with IFRS, the Company has:

* provided comparative financial information; and

 applied the same accounting policies throughout all periods presented.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise judgment in applying the Company’s accounting policies. These areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant are disclosed in note 3.

¢) Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of HBC and its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions,
balances, revenues and expenses have been eliminated.

d) Fiscal year

The fiscal year of the Company consists of a 52 or 53 week period. Fiscal years 2014 and 2013 represent 52 week periods ended on
January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014, respectively. References to years in the consolidated financial statements and notes to the
consolidated financial statements relate to fiscal years rather than calendar years.

e) Foreign currency translation

i)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Canadian dollars, which is HBC’s functional currency and the presentation currency of the Company.

ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the foreign exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at balance sheet date foreign exchange rates are recognized in net earnings
(loss), except when included in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow or net investment hedges.
iii) Foreign operations

The results and financial position of L& T Acquisition and its subsidiaries including Lord & Taylor Holdings LLC (“L&T”) and Saks,
which have a U.S. dollar functional currency, are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

* assets and liabilities are translated at the closing foreign exchange rate at the date of each balance sheet;
* revenues and expenses are translated at average foreign exchange rates;

* equity transactions are translated at foreign exchange rates on the date the transactions occur; and

all resulting foreign exchange translation differences are recognized as currency translation adjustment in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income (loss).

f) Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.

Consideration transferred is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the fair value of the assets acquired (including
cash), liabilities assumed, any contingent consideration and equity interests issued by the Company.

Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business combination are expensed in the period as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the difference between the fair value of the consideration transferred and the fair value of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, all measured as at the acquisition date. Goodwill is not amortized.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs based on the level at which it is monitored by management.
The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose.

Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of the operations within that unit are disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative fair values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the CGU retained.

g) Cash
Cash consists of cash on hand, deposits in banks and short-term deposits with maturities of less than 3 months and includes restricted
funds. Restricted cash represents amounts deposited in escrow accounts which are maintained and managed by an independent agent.

h) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables consisting of credit card issuer, vendor and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. An allowance for
impairment of accounts receivable is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.

i) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost method based
on individual items and, with respect to Saks, a retail inventory method that approximates cost. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price determined at the item level using gross profit expectation and historical markdown rates for similar items in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs required to sell.

Costs comprise all variable costs, and certain fixed costs, incurred in bringing inventories to their present location and condition.
Storage and administrative overheads are expensed as incurred. Supplier rebates and discounts are recorded as a reduction in the cost
of purchases unless they relate to a reimbursement of specific incremental expenses.

Merchandise that is subject to consignment or licensee (concession) agreements is not included in inventories.

F-8



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
j)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land
is stated at cost less any impairment loss. Cost includes expenditures that can be directly attributed to the acquisition of the asset and
capitalized borrowing costs. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost can be reliably measured. The
carrying amount of the replaced asset is derecognized.

Freehold land and assets under construction are not depreciated. Depreciation commences when the assets are available for use and is
recognized on a straight-line basis to depreciate the cost of the assets to their estimated residual value over their estimated useful lives.
When significant parts of an asset have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate components of the asset and
depreciated over their respective estimated useful lives.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Amortization Periods
Buildings . . . . . . . up to 70 years
Leasehold Improvements . . . . . . ..o vttt i e e e e e e e up to 20 years
Fixtures and fittings . . . . . . . . . .. e up to 19 years
Assets held under finance leases . . . . . . ... .. up to 50 years

Although the table reflects maximum amortization periods, most assets are amortized over shorter periods. The assets’ useful lives and
residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, annually.
k) Intangible assets

Private label brands and banner names with indefinite lives are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and are
not amortized.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. These assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Amortization Periods
Software including internally developed costs . . . . ... ... ... . .. up to 7 years
Banner names . . ... indefinite
Private label brands . . . . . .. .. L indefinite
Credit cards . . . . . ... up to 5 years
Favourable lease rights . . . . . . . . .. up to 75 years

The assets’ useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, annually.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense as incurred. Development costs that are
directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company, including
employee costs, are recognized as intangible assets.

1) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Indefinite life intangible assets and goodwill are tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset may be impaired.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell (“FVLCTS”) and value in use. The FVLCTS of an asset is assessed, where
practicable, by external valuators. Value in use is estimated as the present value of the future cash flows that the Company expects to
derive from the asset. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (CGUs). With the exception of certain corporate assets, which are tested at the entity level, all assets are
tested for impairment at the store level asset grouping.
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HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Any impairment loss identified for a particular CGU is allocated to the assets within that unit on a pro-rata basis, except where the
recoverable amount of an asset is based on FVLCTS, in which case no portion of the impairment loss is allocated to that asset. Any
impairment charge is recognized in net earnings (loss) in the year in which it occurs. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses
due to a change in the original estimate, the impairment loss is reversed but is restricted to increasing the carrying value of the relevant
assets to the carrying value that would have been recognized had the original impairment not occurred.

m) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date. Provisions are estimates and the actual costs and timing of future cash flows are dependent on future events.
Any difference between expectations and the actual future liability will be accounted for in the period when such determination is made.
Recoveries from third parties and other contingent gains are recognized when realized.

i)  Self-insurance

The Company purchases third party insurance for automobile, product, workers’ compensation, medical and general liability claims that
exceed a certain dollar level. The Company is responsible for the payment of claims below these insured limits. Provisions for
self-insurance are determined actuarially on a discounted basis based on claims filed and an estimate of claims incurred but not
yet reported.

ii) Restructuring

Provisions for restructuring costs are recognized when the Company has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a
valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or announcing its main
features to those affected by it.

iit) Onerous leases and contracts

Provisions for onerous leases are recognized when the Company believes that the unavoidable costs of meeting future lease obligations
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under the lease. Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the
expected benefits to be derived from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under that contract, and
only after any impairment losses on assets dedicated to that contract have been recognized. The provision is measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.

iv) Asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations are recognized for operating leases where the Company has a legal or constructive obligation to remove
leasehold improvements and replace or remove other structures at the end of the lease term, and for owned locations and at locations
subject to ground leases with similar requirements. Obligations are also booked for owned properties for constructive or legal
obligations (such as environmental remediation). The obligation is measured at the present value of expected costs to settle the
obligation using estimated cash flows and capitalized and amortized over the useful life of the asset to which it relates.

v) Legal
Legal provisions are recognized where there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that there will be an outflow
of economic resources and the amount can be reliably estimated.

n) Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the Company are classified as finance
leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the lesser of the
economic life of the asset or the lease term.

F-10



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to net earnings (loss) on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. The lease term includes renewals where management is reasonably certain the renewal option will be exercised.

The accounting treatment of a sale and leaseback transaction depends upon the substance of the transaction and whether the sale price
reflects fair value. For sale and finance leasebacks, any gain or loss from the sale is deferred and amortized over the term of the lease.
For sale and operating leasebacks, if the transaction is established at fair value, any gain or loss is recognized immediately. If the sale
price is below fair value, any gain or loss is recognized immediately except that if the loss is compensated for by future lease payments at
below market price, the loss is deferred and amortized in proportion to the lease payments over the term of the lease. If the sale price is
above fair value, the excess over fair value is deferred and amortized over the term of the lease.

o) Income taxes

Deferred income tax is recognized on taxable temporary differences arising from differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is recognized for all taxable
temporary differences, except to the extent where it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and at the time of transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit. Deferred income tax is
determined using income tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets have been recognized in respect of non-capital losses and temporary differences giving rise to deferred
income tax assets because it is expected that these assets will be recovered by way of reversal of taxable temporary differences and
management’s expectation of future taxable profits within the loss expiry period.

Income tax expense or benefit comprises current and deferred income taxes. Income tax is recognized in net earnings (loss), except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. The income tax expense or
benefit is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only netted when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend to realize or settle current tax assets or liabilities simultaneously in
future periods.

p) Employee benefits
i)  Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages, salaries (including non-monetary benefits), vacation entitlement and bonuses are measured on an undiscounted
basis and are recognized in selling, general and administrative expenses as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for
the amount expected to be paid under short-term bonus plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be reliably estimated.

ii)  Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits include pensions (both defined contribution and defined benefit) and non-pension post-retirement benefits
(medical and life insurance benefits for retirees). The Company reports its obligations under these plans net of any plan assets.

The asset or liability recognized in the consolidated balance sheets in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Past service costs are
recognized in selling, general and administrative expenses in the year in which they arise. For funded plans, surpluses are recognized
only to the extent that the surplus is considered recoverable. Recoverability is primarily based on the extent to which the Company can
unilaterally reduce future contributions to the plan.
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HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For defined contribution plans, the Company pays contributions to pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. Contributions are recognized as employee benefit
expenses are incurred, which are as the related employee services are rendered.

iii) Other long-term employee benefits

The Company provides long-term disability benefits to certain employees dependent on the legal employer. The entitlement to these
benefits is usually conditional on the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are recognized when
an event occurs that causes the long-term disability. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in net earnings (loss) in the period in which they arise. These obligations are calculated annually.

iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense and a liability at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the
termination benefit and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring costs.

v)  Share based payments

The Company operates share based incentive plans under which it receives services from certain employees as consideration. For equity
settled awards, the fair value of the grant of equity interests is recognized as an expense over the period that the related service is
rendered with a corresponding increase in equity. For cash-settled awards, the fair value of the liability is remeasured at the end of each
reporting period, with the change in fair value recognized as an expense over the period that the related service is rendered. Certain
awards provide the Company with a choice of settlement in cash or by issuing equity. In these cases, the award is accounted for as a
cash-settled award when the Company has a present obligation to settle in cash.

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the equity interests granted. The total amount expensed
is recognized over the vesting period on a tranche basis, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the estimate of the number of equity interests that are expected to vest is revised. The impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, is recognized in selling, general and administrative expenses.

q) Financial assets

Financial assets have been classified in one of the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
held-to-maturity. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expensed
immediately to net earnings (loss). Subsequent changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recorded in net earnings (loss).

ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than twelve months after the balance sheet date, which are
classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

iii) Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are financial instruments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Company has
the intention and ability to hold to maturity. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than twelve months after
the balance sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Company’s non-derivative financial assets are classified and measured as follows:

Asset Category

Cash . . e Loans and receivables
Restricted cash . . . . . . . e Loans and receivables
Short-term deposits . . . . . . .o Held-to-maturity
Trade and other receivables . . . . . . . . . . . e e Loans and receivables

iv) Impairment

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indicator that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of an asset and that event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

v)  Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

r) Financial liabilities

Trade payables and financial liabilities included in other payables and accrued liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Loans and borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Loans and borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in net
earnings (loss) as finance costs over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method, unless related to a qualifying asset
(note 2(t)).

Loans and borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.
s) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
their fair value at each balance sheet date. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain derivatives as:

(a) hedges of the fair value of recognized assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge);
(b) hedges of foreign currency exposure (net investment hedge);
(c) hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).

When a derivative financial instrument is not designated in a qualifying hedge relationship, all changes in its fair value are recognized
immediately in net earnings (loss).

The Company documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as
its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The Company also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.
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NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the maturity of the remaining hedged item
is more than twelve months and as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than
twelve months.

The Company does not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. The Company had cash flow hedges outstanding as at
January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014 and a net investment hedge outstanding as at February 1, 2014.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in net earnings (loss) within
selling, general and administrative expenses. Amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are recycled in net earnings (loss) in
the periods when the hedged item affects earnings (loss).

When a forecasted transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example, inventory or property,
plant and equipment), the gains and losses previously deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are transferred from
equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognized in cost of sales
in the case of inventory or in depreciation in the case of property, plant and equipment.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain
or loss existing in equity at that time remains in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and is recognized when the forecasted
transaction is ultimately recognized in net earnings (loss). When a forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss that was reported in other comprehensive income is immediately transferred to net earnings (loss).

Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of derivatives embedded in a host contract and derivatives that are not distinguished in a hedging relationship
are recognized immediately in net earnings (loss). Embedded derivatives (elements of contracts whose cash flows move independently
from the host contract) are required to be separated and measured at their respective fair values unless certain criteria are met. The
Company has recorded the fair value of embedded derivatives in HBC’s U.S. dollar denominated purchase orders with certain
non-U.S. based vendors. The fair value of these embedded derivatives is recorded in financial assets or financial liabilities, depending on
the embedded derivative’s fair value.

Due to the variability of the share issue price and certain features of the equity investment agreements related to the Acquisition,
forward contracts (“Equity Commitment Forwards”) were recognized and accounted for as derivative financial instruments which were
classified as fair value through profit or loss and measured at fair value.

In connection with the Acquisition, the Company also issued warrants. Certain features of the warrants result in their presentation as
derivative financial liabilities that are classified as fair value through profit or loss and recorded at fair value.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets if:

* There is currently a legally enforceable right to offset recognized amounts; and

* There is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

t) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized to the cost of the
asset. Qualifying assets are those that necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use. All other borrowing
costs are recognized in net earnings (loss) in the period in which they occur.

u) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Company’s activities. Revenue is shown net of sales tax and estimated returns.

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the Company and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as described below. The Company bases its
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NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

i)  Retail merchandise sales

Revenue consists of sales through retail stores of the banners operated by the Company and includes sales through the Company’s
e-commerce (“Digital Commerce”) operations. Merchandise sales through retail stores are recognized at the time of delivery to the
customer which is generally at point of sale. Merchandise sales through Digital Commerce are recognized upon estimated receipt by
the customer.

It is the Company’s policy to sell merchandise to the customer with a right to return within a specified period. Accumulated experience
is used to estimate and provide for such returns. Where it is determined that the Company acts as an agent rather than a principal in a
transaction, revenue is recognized to the extent of the commission.

ii)  Gift cards

The Company sells gift cards through its retail stores, websites and selected third parties with no administrative fee charges or
expiration dates. No revenue is recognized at the time gift cards are sold. Revenue is recognized as a merchandise sale when the gift
card is redeemed by the customer.

The Company also recognizes income when the likelihood of the gift card being redeemed by the customer is remote (“gift card
breakage”). Gift card breakage is estimated based on historical redemption patterns and is recognized in proportion to the redemption
of gift card balances.

v) Credit operations
Legacy agreements

Under the legacy credit program agreements, the Company earns royalty payments from credit card issuers based on the total of
Company and other sales charged to either Private Label Credit Cards (“PLCC”) or MasterCards. Royalty rates change based on the
year-to-date credit volume of out-of-store credit card sales. The Company also receives bounty payments from credit card issuers for
each approved PLCC or MasterCard account. Bounty and royalty payments are recognized based on expected or actual performance
over the life of the credit card agreements. In addition, pursuant to a servicing agreement with a credit card issuer, the Company
receives compensation for providing key customer service functions including new account openings, transaction authorizations, billing
adjustments and customer inquiries. All credit revenues are included as a reduction of selling, general and administrative expenses.

New credit card program

Effective January 1, 2015, under a new credit card agreement with a credit card issuer, the Company shares in the income and losses of
the credit card program related to private label and co-branded credit cards at Hudson’s Bay and Saks. The effective date for Lord &
Taylor is June 2015. Income (loss) from the credit card program is included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

w) Vendor allowances

The Company receives cash or allowances from vendors, the most significant of which are in respect of markdown allowances, volume
rebates and advertising. Such amounts are recorded as a reduction of the cost of purchases.

Rebates that are based on specified cumulative purchase volumes are recognized if the rebate is probable and reasonably estimable;
otherwise these rebates are recognized when earned. These rebates are applied as a reduction of the cost of purchases.

x) Loyalty programs

Award credits are accounted for as a separate component of the sales transaction in which they are granted and therefore, part of the
fair value of the consideration received is allocated to the award credits. This allocation is reported as deferred revenue until the award
credits are redeemed by the customer. The amount deferred is based on points outstanding that the Company estimates will be
redeemed by customers and the estimated fair value of those points. The points expected to be redeemed are based on many factors,
including an actuarial review, where required, of customers’ past experience and trends.
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y) Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets and groups of assets and liabilities which comprise disposal groups are presented as assets held for sale, where the
asset or disposal group is available for sale in its present condition and the sale is highly probable. For this purpose, the sale is
considered highly probable if management is committed to a plan to achieve the sale; there is an active program to find a buyer; the
non-current asset or disposal group is being actively marketed at a reasonable price; the sale is anticipated to be completed within 1 year
from the date of classification, and; it is unlikely there will be changes to the plan.

When a component of an entity has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and it represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, the related results of operations and gain or loss on disposition are presented in discontinued
operations.

z) New accounting standards implemented in the current year

Financial Instruments

In December 2011, the IASB amended IAS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation (“IAS 32”) to clarify the requirements that
permit offsetting a financial asset and liability in the financial statements. IAS 32 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2014. The Company has applied the standard at the beginning of its 2014 fiscal year and the implementation did not have an
impact on its results of operations, financial position or disclosure.

In June 2013, IASB amended IAS 39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (“IAS 39”), providing guidance on
novation of over-the-counter derivatives and continued designation for hedge accounting. The amendments to IAS 39 must be applied
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The Company implemented IAS 39 at the beginning of its 2014
fiscal year and the implementation did not have an impact on its results of operations, financial position or disclosure.

Impairment of Assets

In May 2013, the IASB amended IAS 36 — Impairment of Assets (“IAS 36”), providing guidance on recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets. The amendments to IAS 36 must be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2014. The Company implemented IAS 36 at the beginning of its 2014 fiscal year and the implementation did not have an impact on its
results of operations, financial position or disclosure.

Levies

In May 2013, the IASB issued IFRIC 21 — Levies (“IFRIC 21”) providing guidance on the accounting for levies imposed by
governments. The interpretation clarifies that the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity described in the
relevant legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. It also clarifies that a levy liability is accrued rateably over a reporting period
only if the activity that triggers payment occurs over such period, in accordance with the relevant legislation.

Property taxes are charged by a government in accordance with legislation, are based on underlying property value, and include both
real and personal property. As such, real and personal property taxes are within the scope of IFRIC 21. Prior to the adoption of
IFRIC 21, the Company recorded all property taxes rateably over the relevant tax year.

Property tax legislation in various jurisdictions in Canada does not clearly define a single obligating event that gives rise to a liability to
pay annual property taxes. As such, at any date within the year, the only amount of property taxes that an owner can reasonably estimate
they are liable for is a pro rata estimate of annual property taxes based on the number of days of ownership. Rateable recognition of
property taxes in Canada, therefore, continues to be appropriate under IFRIC 21.

In the majority of the U.S. tax jurisdictions in which the Company operates, the obligating event for real and personal property taxes is
ownership of the property on the day of the year for which the tax is imposed.

The Company implemented IFRIC 21 retrospectively at the beginning of its 2014 fiscal year.
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NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The impact of the implementation is summarized as follows:

Consolidated Statement of Loss

(millions of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts) 2013
Increase in selling, general and administrative €XPEenses . . . . . . . o oottt i e e (2)
Increase in income tax benefit . . . . . . .. L 1
Increase in net loss — continuing Operations . . . . . . . . . ... .. (1)

Net loss per common share — basic and diluted
Continuing OPETAtONS . . . . . v vttt e e e e e e e e (0.01)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2013
Increase in NELIOSS . . . . . o o ot (e8]
Decrease in currency translation adjustment . . ... ... .. ... 2)
Decrease in other comprehensive INCOME . . . . . . . .o (E)
Increase in total comprehensive 10SS . . . . . . . . 6)

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(millions of Canadian dollars) Feb 1, 2014  Feb 2, 2013
Increase in goodwill . . . . . . . 5 —
Increase in deferred tax assets . . . . . . ... ... .. — 4
Increase in other payables and accrued liabilities . ... ......... ... ... . ... ... . ... ... . 18 9
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities . .. ... .. ... ... ... . 5) —
Decrease in retained €arnings . . . . .. . .. ... 5) 4)
Decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income . . . ... ... ... .. L L L. 3) (1)

The net impact of the implementation of IFRIC 21 for fiscal 2014 was nil.

aa) Future accounting standards not yet adopted
Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”), which brings together the classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting phases of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets are classified and measured based on the business model under which they are managed and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. Financial liabilities are classified in a similar manner as under IAS 39, except that financial
liabilities measured at fair value will have fair value changes resulting from changes in the entity’s own credit risk recognized in other
comprehensive income instead of net earnings (loss).

Impairment

The measurement of impairment of financial assets is based on an expected credit loss model. It is no longer necessary for a triggering
event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized. IFRS 9 also includes new disclosure requirements about expected credit
losses and credit risk.

Hedge accounting

The new general hedge accounting model more closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management activities undertaken by entities
when hedging their financial and non-financial risk exposures. The new model will provide more opportunities to apply hedge
accounting to reflect actual risk management activities.

IFRS 9 will be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The
Company is assessing the potential impact of this standard.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue

In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 157), which provides a comprehensive
framework for recognition, measurement and disclosure of revenue from contracts with customers, excluding contracts within the scope
of the standards on leases, insurance contracts and financial instruments. IFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2017, and must be applied retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is assessing the potential impact of
IFRS 15.

Joint Arrangements

In May 2014, the IASB amended IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements (“IFRS 117) to require that a joint operator accounting for the
acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the relevant
IFRS 3 — Business Combinations principles for business combinations accounting. The amendments also clarify that a previously held
interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control
is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when the parties
sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under common control of the same ultimate controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any additional interests in
the same joint operation. The amended IFRS 11 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, and must be
applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is assessing the potential impact of the amendments to IFRS 11.

NOTE 3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 2, and the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities,
and reporting of income and expenses, that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ materially from these
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgments and estimations that management has made in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Business combinations

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination is estimated based on information available at the date of
acquisition and involves considerable judgment in determining the fair values assigned to property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed on acquisition. The determination of these fair values involves analysis including the use of
discounted cash flows, estimated future margins, future growth rates, market rents and capitalization rates. There is measurement
uncertainty inherent in this analysis and actual results could differ from estimates.

Inventory valuation

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Current selling price and historical trends for estimating future
markdowns are utilized to estimate net realizable value. Inventory valuation also incorporates a write-down to reflect future losses on
the disposition of obsolete merchandise.

Inventory is adjusted to reflect estimated losses (“shortage”) incurred since the last inventory count. Shortage is estimated based on
historical experience as a percentage of sales for the period from the date of the last inventory count to the end of the fiscal year.
Loyalty programs

Where loyalty award credits are issued in connection with a sales transaction which includes the loyalty program, a portion of the
revenue has been deferred based on expected redemptions of points outstanding (note 2(x)). The amount of revenue deferred relating
to the loyalty programs is sensitive to changes in customer behaviour and the impact of changes in the loyalty programs. Deferred
revenue reported in the consolidated balance sheets relates entirely to the loyalty programs.
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NOTE 3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Impairment and reversal of impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are subject to impairment and impairment reversal reviews based on whether current or future events and
circumstances suggest that their recoverable amount may be more or less than their carrying value. In certain instances, the recoverable
amount is based on a calculation of expected future cash flows which includes management assumptions and estimates of future
performance. Details of asset impairments are set out in note 11.

Impairment of goodwill

The Company uses judgment in determining the grouping of assets to identify its CGUs for purposes of testing for impairment of
goodwill. In testing for impairment, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to CGUs that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the business combination. The calculations for impairment testing involve significant estimates and assumptions. Items
estimated include cash flows, discount rates and assumptions on revenue growth rates. These estimates could affect the Company’s
future results if the current estimates of future performance and fair values change. Judgment is also exercised to determine whether an
indication of impairment is present that would require the completion of an impairment test in addition to the annual testing. Details of
the allocation of goodwill and impairment testing are set out in note 12.

Valuation of warrants

In connection with the Acquisition, the Company issued warrants. The classification of these instruments as financial liabilities is an
area of significant judgment. The Company records a mark-to-market valuation adjustment on the warrants as finance costs based on a
valuation at the end of each reporting period.

Provisions

Provisions have been made for various items including asset retirement obligations, general insurance liability and termination costs.
Asset retirement obligations are based on uncertain estimates of remediation and the timing of the remediation. The Company
purchases third party insurance for automobile, product, workers’ compensation, medical and general liability claims that exceed a
certain dollar level. The Company is responsible for the payment of claims below these insured limits. The self-insurance provision is
based on claims filed and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet reported. Details of the Company’s provisions are set out in note 15.

In the context of provisions for onerous contracts including leases, the Company uses judgment in determining when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting its obligations under
the contract.

Sales returns

Sales returns are estimated on the basis of historical returns and are recorded so as to allocate them to the same period as the original
revenue is recorded.

Share based compensation

The Company operates a share option plan, phantom share plan, restricted share unit plan, performance share unit plan and profits
interests plan for employees. The grant date fair values are calculated using valuation models, which use a number of assumptions and
estimates, including expected volatility, the risk-free interest rate, the dividend yield, the non-marketability discount and the expected
life of the grants. Details of these assumptions and estimates are set out in note 19.

Income taxes

The Company recognizes expected liabilities for income taxes based on an estimation of the likely income taxes due, which requires
judgment as to the ultimate income tax determination of certain items. In addition, the Company has made estimates of future
profitability in relation to an assessment of the recoverability of income tax losses. Details of the income tax expense and deferred taxes
are set out in note 7.

Pensions and employee benefits

The Company operates various defined benefit plans for its employees. The present value of the plans’ liabilities recognized at the
balance sheet date and net financing charges recognized in net earnings (loss) are dependent on the interest rate of high quality
corporate bonds. Other key assumptions within this calculation are based on market conditions or estimates of future events, including
mortality rates, as set out in note 17.
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NOTE 3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Lease accounting

The Company leases a significant number of store locations as part of its operations. The determination of classification between
finance and operating leases requires the exercise of management judgment, including estimates of fair value, the useful and economic
lives of the leased assets, the existence of lower than market renewal options and appropriate discount rates. Finance leases and
operating leases are discussed in notes 14 and 16, respectively.

Management judgment is also exercised in the assessment of sale and leaseback transactions, including the determination of leaseback
classification between finance and operating leases, the fair value of the leased back property and appropriate discount rates.

NOTE 4. ACQUISITION OF SAKS

Acquisition

On November 4, 2013, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of Saks (other than shares owned by Saks and its
subsidiaries), an omni-channel luxury retailer, for U.S.$16.00 per share in an all-cash transaction valued at U.S.$2,973 million
(33,097 million), including debt assumed.

The Acquisition consideration of $2,797 million was financed through a subscription receipts offering (note 20), the issuance of common
shares pursuant to equity commitments to H.S. Investment L.P. (“HSILP”), an entity affiliated with Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan
Board, and to West Face Long Term Opportunities Global Master L.P. (“WF Fund”), a fund advised by West Face Capital Inc.
(note 20), and the incurrence of U.S.$2,000 million and U.S.$300 million term loans (note 14). As consideration for the equity
commitments of HSILP and WF Fund, the Company issued 6.75 million warrants (notes 18 and 20).

Purchase Price Allocation

The Company has finalized the purchase price allocation for the acquisition of Saks including goodwill. The following table summarizes
the fair value of the consideration given and the final fair values assigned to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Cash . . . 31
Trade and other receivables . . . . . . . .. 68
INVENTOTIES . . . . . o o e e e e e e e e 1,117
Other CUITENE @SSCLS . . . . o v v vt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 50
Property, plant and equipment . . . . . .. ... 2,414
Intangible assets . . . . . o o i 681
GoodWill . . . 195
Other assets . . . . . . 4
Loans and borrowings — revolving credit facility . . . . . . ... . L (299)
Loans and borrowings —finance leases . . . . .. ... ... (123)
Loans and borrowings — Other . . . . . . . . 2)
Trade payables . . . . .. . (275)
Other payables and accrued liabilities . . . . . .. ... . L (236)
Deferred reVenUE . . . . . . .t (41)
ProviSions . . . . .. (51)
Deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . (639)
Pensions and employee benefits . . . . .. . ... (29)
Other liabilities . . . . . . .. (68)
Total identifiable net assets acquired and consideration given . . ... .... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... . ... ... 2,797
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NOTE 4. ACQUISITION OF SAKS (Continued)

Measurement Period Adjustments

During fiscal 2014, the Company identified measurement period adjustments based on new information relating primarily to
inventories. The impacts of the adjustments to previously reported amounts are as follows:

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(millions of Canadian dollars) Nov 4, 2013 Feb 1, 2014

Increase in inventories . . .. . ... ... ... ... 21 22
Decrease in intangible assets . ... ... ... ... L L (1) (1)
Decrease in goodwill . . . . . . . L (10) (11)
Increase in other payables and accrued liabilities . .. ... ... ... .. ... ... . ... ..., 9 9
Increase in deferred tax liabilities . . . . ... ... ... .. 1 1
NOTE 5. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Property, plant and equipment . . . . ... ... 271 129
Intangible assets . . . . . . . o e 77 46
Deferred credits . . . ... ... 4) 3)
Other . . . . — 3
344 175
NOTE 6. FINANCE COSTS
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Interest expense on long-term borrowings. . . . ... ... ... L e 132 61
Interest expense on short-term borrowings . . . . . .. ... L e 22 21
Write-off of deferred financing costs (note 14) . . . . . ... ... . ... ... L o oL 52 13
Net interest on pensions and employee benefits (note 17) ... .......... ... ....... 1 1
Penalties and fees (note 14) . . .. .. . .. 12 —
Interest INCOME . . . . o o oo e e e e e e 1) (1)
Total interest eXpense, MEt . . . . . o o v vt vt e et e e e 218 95
Finance related costs on warrants (note 18) . . ... ... . ... ... . .. 44 —
Change in fair value of Equity Commitment Forwards (note 18) . . ... ............... — 153
Dividend equivalent on subscription receipts . . . . . .. ... — 1
Bridge financing transaction fees . . .. ... ... ... ... — 12
Acquisition-related finance COSts . . . . . . ... 44 166

262 261

In connection with financing the Acquisition in fiscal 2013, the Company secured a bridge financing facility in the amount of
U.S.$900 million to fund potential delays related to closing the uncommitted equity and debt financing transactions. Although the
facility was not drawn upon, the Company incurred bridge financing transaction fees related to the facility which were included in

finance costs in fiscal 2013.

F-21



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 7. INCOME TAXES

The major components of the income tax benefit and the statutory income tax rate for fiscal 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2013
(restated —
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 see note 2(z))
Current tax expense (benefit) . . ... ... ... L L 8 3)
Deferred tax benefit. . . . .. . ... L 27) (76)
Income tax benefit. . . . . .. ... L e 19) (79)
Statutory inCOMe taX Tate . . . . . . . v v i ittt e e 26.3% 26.3%

Reconciliations of the income tax benefit at the above rates with the amounts presented in the consolidated statements of earnings
(loss) are as follows:

2013
(restated —
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 see note 2(z))
Earnings (loss) before income tax — continuing operations . . . ...................... 219 (256)
Income tax expense (benefit) calculated at statutory income tax rate . . ................. 57 67)
Change in income taxes resulting from:
Permanent differences . . . . . . . . . .. e 34) 56
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowance . .. ... ........... ... ... . ... . ...... 1 (53)
Adjustments related to prior years . . ... ... ... 8) 9
Effect of international tax rate differentials. . . .. ... .. ... ... .. L o L L L 37 (19)
Recognition of 10SSes . . . . . . .o e — 6]
Other . . . 2 (1)
Income tax benefit. . . . . . . . . e 19) (79)
The changes in the components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for fiscal 2014 and 2013 are as follows:
Year ended January 31, 2015
Recognized
Recognized in other Net foreign
Feb 1, in net comprehensive currency Jan 31,
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 earnings income exchange 2015
Property, plant and equipment . . . .. ... ... . L. (466) (40) —_ (76) (582)
Employee benefits . . . ... ... .. . . 22 6) 1 —_ 17
Pensions . . . .. ... e )] 4 3 2 1
Otherassets. . . ........ ... .. . . . .. (217) 48 1 (28) (196)
Long-term liabilities and other . . . .. ................. 55 31 4 4 94
Tax losses and other carryforward amounts . ... .......... 245 ) — 17 253
(369) 28 9 (81) (413)
Valuation allowance . . . . . ... ... ... ... 13) a —_ a 15)
Net deferred tax (liabilities) assets . . .. ... ............ (382) 27 9 (82) (428)
Comprising:
Deferred tax assets . .. ... ........ ... .. ... 249 240
Deferred tax liabilities . . ... ............ ... ....... (631) (668)
(382) (428)
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NOTE 7. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

Year ended February 1, 2014 (restated — see note 2(z) and note 4)

Assumed Transferred Recognized Net
through from assets of Recognized in other foreign

(millions of Canadian Feb 2, business discontinued in net comprehensive Recognized currency Feb 1,
dollars) 2013 combination operations loss income in equity exchange 2014
Property, plant

and equipment . .. ... .. 100 (502) 12 (40) — — (36) (466)
Employee benefits . . ... .. 18 — 6 2) — — — 22
Pensions . ............ (10) 5 — 12 (16) — 1 8)
Other assets . . ......... 8 (210) (20) 21 — — (16) (217)
Long-term liabilities and

other . ............. 41 22 24 (42) 3 5 2 55
Tax losses and other

carryforward amounts . . .. 65 61 37 74 — — 8 245

222 (624) 59 23 (13) 5 (41) (369)

Valuation allowance . ... .. ®) (15) (44) 53 — (13)
Net deferred tax assets

(liabilities) . ......... 214 (639) 15 76 (13) 5 (40) (382)
Comprising:
Deferred tax assets . . . .. .. 214 249
Deferred tax liabilities . . . . . — (631)

214 (382)

The realization of the deferred income tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income during the years in which
those temporary differences become deductible. Based on management’s projection of future taxable income and tax planning
strategies, management expects to realize these net deferred income tax assets in advance of expiry.

As at January 31, 2015, the Company’s taxable entities including discontinued operations have non-capital tax losses carried forward of
$770 million available in the United States and Canada as follows (millions of Canadian dollars):

Available until year ending

January 2026 . . . .. 72
January 2027 . . . L e 109
January 2028 . . . .. L 216
January 2029 . . . .. 16
January 2030 . . . . o 1
January 2031 . . . . 12
January 2032 . . . . 6
January 2033 . . . L 88
January 2034 . . . L 192
January 2035 . . . e 58

770

NOTE 8. CASH

For the purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash as at January 31, 2015 and
February 1, 2014 as presented in the consolidated balance sheets is comprised of the following:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013

Cash . . . 153 19

Restricted cash . . . . . . oL 15 2
168 21
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NOTE 9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014, trade and other receivables are comprised of:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Trade receivables . . . . . . o e 48 41
Other receivables . . . . . . . o e e 164 96

212 137

On January 4, 2013, the Company sold its leasehold interests in a property for U.S.$10 million of which U.S.$4 million was received
upon transfer of the related property on January 31, 2013, the second installment of U.S.$3 million was received on January 31, 2014
and the final installment of U.S.$3 million was received on January 31, 2015. Accordingly, as at January 31, 2015, nil (February 1, 2014:
U.S. $3 million) was included in other receivables.

The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates their carrying values because of the short term nature of these accounts. No
valuation allowance was required at the end of either reporting period. Other receivables mainly comprise sundry receivables
from vendors.

NOTE 10. INVENTORIES

Inventories on hand at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014 were available for sale. The cost of merchandise inventories related to
continuing operations recognized as expense for fiscal 2014 was $4,893 million (2013: $3,217 million). The write-down of merchandise
inventories below cost to net realizable value relating to continuing operations as at January 31, 2015 was $48 million (February 1, 2014:
$47 million). There was no reversal of write-downs previously taken on merchandise inventories that are no longer estimated to sell
below cost. Inventory has been pledged as security for certain borrowing agreements as described in note 14.

NOTE 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year ended January 31, 2015

Assets
held under

Freehold Leasehold Fixtures & Finance
(millions of Canadian dollars) Land Buildings  Improvements Fittings Leases Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year . ... .......... 1,055 2,085 456 801 283 4,680
Additions . ..... ..o o — 55 134 199 5 393
Disposals . .. ........ ... . ... . . .. 97) 41) 4 (21) — (163)
Net foreign currency exchange . . .. ......... 118 275 55 97 33 578
Balance at end of year . . . . ... ... ..., ... .. 1,076 2,374 641 1,076 321 5,488
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance at beginning of year . .. ........... 5 185 103 239 38 570
Depreciation expense . . . . ... ... — 86 45 115 25 271
Impairment losses . . ... ................ — — 1 — — 1
Eliminated on disposal . . . . ... ........... — (15) (6) (18) — 39)
Net foreign currency exchange . ... ......... — 32 12 32 3 79
Balance at end of year . . . . ... ... ........ 5 288 155 368 66 882
Net book value at end of year . ... ......... 1,071 2,086 486 708 255 4,606
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NOTE 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Year ended February 1, 2014

Assets
held under

Freehold Leasehold Fixtures & Finance
(millions of Canadian dollars) Land Buildings Improvements Fittings Leases Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year . . ... ......... 473 569 273 376 48 1,739
Additions . . ... — 47 52 128 5 232
Acquired through business combination . ... ... 517 1,326 103 253 215 2,414
Disposals . ........... ... ... . ... ... . — — 1) 2) — 3)
Net foreign currency exchange . ............ 65 143 29 46 15 298
Balance at end of year . . . .. ............. 1,055 2,085 456 801 283 4,680
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance at beginning of year . . ............ 5 130 70 171 28 404
Depreciation expense . . . . . ... ... ... — 41 25 53 10 129
Impairment losses . . ... ................ — — 2 2 — 4
Eliminated on disposal . . . ... ............ — — — 2) — 2)
Net foreign currency exchange . . ........... — 14 6 15 — 35
Balance atend of year . . .. .............. 5 185 103 239 38 570
Net book value at end of year . . ........... 1,050 1,900 353 562 245 4,110

Certain property, plant and equipment have been pledged as security for borrowings as further described in note 14. There were
$44 million in material capital commitments, net of leasehold improvement allowances as at January 31, 2015.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

During fiscal 2014 and 2013, the Company carried out a review of its CGUs to determine if there was any indication of impairment, or
that a previously recorded impairment had reversed. The review led to the recognition of an impairment loss of $1 million in fiscal 2014
(2013: $4 million) relating to various store based CGUs, on a value in use basis, which has been recognized in net earnings (loss).

The impairment losses incurred in fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 relate to a decline in operating performance of certain Home Outfitters
stores. These impairment losses affected the leasehold improvements and fixtures and fittings asset classes.

The recoverable amount of the relevant assets within each CGU was determined in each case as the higher of fair value less costs to sell,
or value in use. In calculating the value in use, future cash flows are estimated using approved budgets/forecasts for the following fiscal
year and future opportunities and risks are considered in determining an appropriate growth rate for future periods.

NOTE 12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Year ended January 31, 2015
Favourable  Private

Lease Label Banner  Credit

(millions of Canadian dollars) Goodwill  Software Rights Brands Names Cards Total
Cost

Balance at beginning of year . ... ........... 208 314 364 53 389 28 1,356
Additions . ... ... — 49 — — — — 49
Net foreign currency exchange . . ... ......... 29 19 51 8 55 4 166
Balance atend of year . . . . ... ... ......... 237 382 415 61 444 32 1,571
Accumulated amortization and impairment

Balance at beginning of year . ... ........... — 139 28 — — 1 168
Amortization eXpense . . . .. .. ... ... — 46 25 — — 6 77
Net foreign currency exchange . . ... ......... — 5 7 — — 1 13
Balance at end of year . . . ... ... ... ....... — 190 60 — — 8 258
Net book value at end of year . . .. ... ....... 237 192 355 61 444 24 1,313
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NOTE 12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL (Continued)

Year ended February 1, 2014 (restated — see note 4)

Favourable Private

Lease Label Banner Credit
(millions of Canadian dollars) Goodwill  Software Rights Brands Names Cards Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year . ... ........... — 204 131 27 — — 362
Additions . .. ... — 48 — — — — 48
Acquired through business combination . .. ... .. 195 66 204 21 364 26 876
Disposals . . ........ ... ... . ... — (12) — — — — (12)
Net foreign currency exchange . . .. .......... 13 8 29 5 25 2 82
Balance at end of year . . . . ... ... ......... 208 314 364 53 389 28 1,356
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Balance at beginning of year . ... ........... — 111 18 — — — 129
Amortization exXpense . . . .. .. ... ... ... — 37 8 — — 1 46
Disposals . . ........ ... . . . . .. ... — (11) — — — — (11)
Net foreign currency exchange . .. ... ........ — 2 2 — — — 4
Balance at end of year . . . . ... ... ... ...... — 139 28 — — 1 168
Net book value at end of year . .. ........... 208 175 336 53 389 27 1,188

The banner names and private label brands have been assigned an indefinite useful life, as there is no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the assets are expected to generate net cash inflows and the Company’s intention is to continue to utilize these trade names
for the foreseeable future.

Allocation and Impairment Testing of Goodwill

The Company completed the allocation of goodwill to groups of CGUs that will benefit from the synergies related to the Acquisition
and performed its annual impairment test as at November 2, 2014, the first day of its fourth quarter. There was no goodwill recognized
on the Company’s balance sheet prior to the Acquisition.

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to the Saks Fifth Avenue and OFF 5TH banners.

The recoverable amounts of banners are determined based on fair value less costs of disposal using an income approach that
incorporates a discounted cash flow model. This approach requires the Company to estimate and take into account the amount, timing,
and relative certainty of projected unlevered cash flows expected to be generated by the operating assets and requires that certain
assumptions be made.

In determining fair value less costs of disposal, the forecasted cash flows are based on the Company’s strategic business plans, as
presented to and approved by the Board of Directors, and projected over a 5 year period. Non-recurring and unusual items have been
adjusted for in the projected future cash flows. The Company selected discount rates representative of the current market assessment of
the risks specific to each banner in the range of 7.0% to 12.0% for each calculation of fair value less costs of disposal. Applicable
terminal growth rates were applied after the discrete projected period. These key assumptions are all considered Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy (note 18). As a result of this analysis, no impairment was identified for either banner to which goodwill has
been allocated.

The Company believes that any reasonable possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of either of the banners.
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NOTE 13. OTHER LIABILITIES

As at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014, other liabilities are comprised of:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Deferred landlord inCentives . . . . . . . . e 356 169
Deferred gain on sale and leaseback transaction . .. ... ...... . ... ... ... . 242 —
Deferred proceeds from lease terminations . . . . . . . ... L 49 —
Other deferred credits . . . . . . . . e 11 13
Other Habilities . . . . . . . . e e e 87 20
745 202
NON-CUITENE . . o . v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 669 202
CUITENE . . o v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 76 —

745 202

Included in other liabilities is an interest-free advance of $65 million repayable in equal monthly installments of $2 million with a final
payment on June 30, 2017.

NOTE 14. LOANS AND BORROWINGS
a) Current loans and borrowings

As at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014, current loans and borrowings are comprised of:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
HBC Revolving Credit Facility . . . . . . . .. e 159 88
U.S. Revolving Credit Facility . . . . . ... . 108 418
Current portion of long-term loans and borrowings. . . . . ... ... ... L 23 54

290 560
Less: unamortized COSES . . . . o o v vt e e e 25 (29)

265 532

HBC Revolving Credit Facility

HBC is the borrower on an asset based credit facility (the “HBC Revolving Credit Facility”) with Bank of America, N.A. as the
administrative agent and collateral agent, made available through a credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”).

On December 17, 2014, the Company executed an amendment to the HBC Revolving Credit Facility to extend the maturity date from
June 15, 2017 to December 17, 2019 and reduce the credit facility from $750 million to $600 million.

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility is subject to a borrowing base, based predominantly on eligible inventory and eligible credit card
receivables of HBC, excluding L&T Acquisition and its subsidiaries. The HBC Revolving Credit Facility is available for general
corporate purposes and can be drawn in both U.S. and Canadian dollars. The HBC Revolving Credit Facility has multiple interest rate
charge options that are based on the Canadian prime rate, the Canadian Dealer Offered Rate (“CDOR”), U.S. index rate and the
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”).

As the HBC Revolving Credit Facility is available for and used to finance working capital requirements, capital expenditures and other
general corporate purposes, it has been classified in the consolidated balance sheets as part of current loans and borrowings. However,
the Company is not required to repay the balance outstanding as at January 31, 2015, until the maturity date of December 17, 2019.

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility is secured by a first priority security interest over all inventory and accounts receivable in Canada.
The Credit Agreement contains a number of representations and warranties and positive and negative covenants. These provisions
include, among other things, placing certain conditions and restrictions on making dividend payments and financial maintenance
covenants. The Credit Agreement also contains extensive reporting requirements and a number of events of default.

HBC was in compliance with all covenants contained in the Credit Agreement as at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014.
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The effective interest rate based on the average balance drawn and finance costs of the HBC Revolving Credit Facility for fiscal 2014
and 2013 was as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Average balance drawn, calculated on a daily basis . . . ... ... ... L L L 53 162
FINance COSLS. . . . . o it e e e 8 11
Effective INtErest Tate . . . . . . o vt e 151% 6.6%

As at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014, details of the borrowing base availability on the HBC Revolving Credit Facility were

as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Gross borrowing base availability . . . . . ... L 457 479
Drawings . . . . oo (159)  (88)
Outstanding letters of credit . . .. ... ... 9) )
Borrowing base availability net of drawings and letters of credit. . . . ... ... ... .. . .. 289 382

U.S. Revolving Credit Facility

In connection with the Acquisition, the L&T and Saks revolving credit facilities were refinanced through a new U.S. revolving credit
facility. L&T Acquisition is the borrower pursuant to an asset based credit facility (“U.S. Revolving Credit Facility”’) with Bank of
America, N.A. as the administrative agent and collateral agent, dated November 4, 2013.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility originally provided a U.S.$950 million revolving line of credit through November 4, 2018. On
December 11, 2014, the Company executed an amendment to the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility to increase the credit facility to
U.S.$1,100 million. This revolving line of credit is subject to a borrowing base, based predominantly on eligible inventory and accounts
receivable of L&T, Saks and their respective subsidiaries. The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility is available to finance working capital
needs, capital expenditures, operating activities and to support the issuance of standby letters of credit. The U.S. Revolving Credit
Facility has multiple interest rate charge options that are based on the U.S. prime rate, Federal Funds rate and LIBOR.

As the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility is available for and used to finance working capital requirements, capital expenditures and other
operating activities, it has been classified in the consolidated balance sheets as part of current loans and borrowings. However, the
Company is not required to repay the balance outstanding as at January 31, 2015 until the maturity date of November 4, 2018.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility agreement contains restrictive covenants including restrictions on the incurrence of indebtedness,
financial maintenance covenants, and restrictions on payments to affiliates and shareholders and also includes events of default,
representations and warranties.

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility is secured by a first lien security interest over all inventory and accounts receivables in the
United States (L&T and Saks).

The effective interest rate based on the average balance drawn and finance costs of the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility for fiscal 2014 and
2013 was as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Average balance drawn, calculated on a daily basis . . . . .. ... . L. 389 362
FINAnce COStS. . . . v v o o e e e e e e 14 3
Effective Interest Tate . . . . . . . o o e e e e e e e e 3.6% 3.6%
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As at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014, details of the borrowing base availability on the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility were
as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Gross borrowing base availability . .. ... .. ... . 1,348 1,058
DIrawings . . o o vttt e e e (108)  (418)
Outstanding letters of credit . . . . . .. .. L e 19) ©)
Borrowing base availability net of drawings and letters of credit . . . .. ...... ... ... .. Lo L. 1,221 631

The U.S. Revolving Credit Facility contains certain non-financial operating covenants. L&T Acquisition was in compliance with all
covenants as at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014.

In accordance with the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility, L& T Acquisition is limited in its ability to make distributions of earnings or
returns of capital to its parent.

In connection with the refinancing of the L&T revolving credit facility on November 4, 2013, $2 million of deferred financing costs were
written off.
b) Long-term loans and borrowings

As at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014, long-term loans and borrowings are comprised of:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Senior Term Loan B . . . . . . . e 826 2,228
Junior Term Loan . . . . . o L L — 334
Yorkdale MOItgage . . . . . . o o 48 49
Lord & Taylor MOIt@age . . . . . . . . . it e 318 279
Saks MOTtEAge . . . . . o o 1,599 —
Other MOTtZAZE . . . . . o o ot — 10
Real estate finance leases . . . . . . . .. e 130 118
Equipment finance leases and other . . ... ... ... . . ... 35 42
2,956 3,060

Less: unamortized COSES . . . . o v v i et e e e (74) (83)
Less: amounts due within one year . . . ... ... .. .. . e (23) (54)

2,859 2,923

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Fiscal year:

2005 23
2006 . o 19
2007 o 318
2008 . 3
2000 . 3
Thereafter . . . . . . . e e e 2,590

2,956

Senior Term Loan B

On November 4, 2013, in connection with the closing of the Acquisition, the Company entered into an agreement for a
U.S.$2,000 million senior secured term loan facility (“Senior Term Loan B”) with Bank of America, N.A. as the administrative agent.
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Senior Term Loan B matures November 4, 2020 and carries an interest rate of LIBOR plus 3.75% per annum. The agreement is
structured such that LIBOR will be deemed to be not less than 1% per annum (“LIBOR Floor”). Senior Term Loan B is subject to
mandatory prepayments. The term loan is secured by a second lien over all inventory and accounts receivables, a first lien over
substantially all other assets as well as a pledge of the shares of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries.

A portion of the proceeds from Senior Term Loan B were used to repay in full the HBC Term Loan and the Lord & Taylor GE Capital
Term Loan, while the remainder was used in financing the Acquisition. In connection with the repayment of the HBC Term Loan and
Lord & Taylor GE Capital Term Loan, $1 million and $4 million of deferred financing costs were written off, respectively.

On February 25, 2014, HBC repaid U.S. $150 million of Senior Term Loan B (note 28). In connection with the repayment, $5 million of
deferred financing costs were written off and $1 million of penalties and fees for early repayment were incurred (note 6).

On December 3, 2014, HBC repaid U.S. $1,200 million of Senior Term Loan B using proceeds from the Saks Mortgage. In connection
with the repayment, $34 million of deferred financing costs were written off (note 6).

Junior Term Loan

Concurrently with the close of Senior Term Loan B, the Company obtained an incremental junior secured term facility of
U.S.$300 million (the “Junior Term Loan”). The Junior Term Loan was scheduled to mature on November 4, 2021 and had an initial
interest rate of LIBOR (with a LIBOR Floor) plus 7.25% per annum. The remaining credit terms of the Junior Term Loan were
substantially consistent with Senior Term Loan B with the exception that the Junior Term Loan was not subject to Senior Term Loan B’s
previously required quarterly principal repayments.

The Junior Term Loan was secured by a third lien over all of the Company’s inventory and accounts receivable, a second lien over
substantially all other assets as well as a pledge of the shares of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries. Proceeds from the Junior Term
Loan were used to finance the Acquisition.

On February 25, 2014, HBC repaid the Junior Term Loan in full (note 28). In connection with the repayment of the Junior Term Loan,
$13 million of deferred financing costs were written off and $11 million of penalties and fees for early repayment were incurred (note 6).

Yorkdale Mortgage

On May 22, 2013 the Company entered into an agreement with Murray & Company Holdings Limited for a $50 million mortgage
(the “Yorkdale Mortgage”). The Yorkdale Mortgage matures on May 22, 2023, bears interest at 4.89% per annum over a twenty-five
year amortization schedule and is secured by a first mortgage of a leasehold interest of the Hudson’s Bay store at the Yorkdale
Shopping Centre in Toronto, Ontario. The proceeds of the Yorkdale Mortgage were used to partially prepay the HBC Term Loan. On
December 1, 2014, Murray & Company Holdings Limited assigned the mortgage to GMI Servicing Inc.

Lord & Taylor Mortgage

On September 7, 2012, LT 424 LLC (“LT 424”), which is an indirect subsidiary of L&T, entered into a U.S.$250 million syndicated
floating rate senior mortgage loan with an affiliate of CIBC World Markets Inc. as the administrative agent of the syndicate of lenders,
which matures on September 10, 2017 (the “Lord & Taylor Mortgage”).

The Lord & Taylor Mortgage is guaranteed by L&T. Interest is charged at a rate of LIBOR plus 3% and is structured to be interest only
during the first 3 years, with monthly amortization payments required during the final 2 years, based on a thirty year amortization
schedule at an interest rate of 7%. LT 424 has the ability to prepay the Lord & Taylor Mortgage after the first 2 years with a fee to the
lenders of 2%, which decreases to 1% after 3 years, and without fees after September 10, 2016. Any prepayments are applied to reduce
the then remaining scheduled installments. As security for the Lord & Taylor Mortgage, LT 424 granted a first priority mortgage on the
Fifth Avenue Lord & Taylor property.

The Lord & Taylor Mortgage contains representations and warranties, positive and negative covenants, reporting requirements and
events of default. As at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014, the Company was in compliance with the covenants contained in the
Lord & Taylor Mortgage.

On November 26, 2012, LT 424 entered into interest rate swap arrangements, the effect of which is to fix the floating portion of the
interest rate related to the Lord & Taylor Mortgage at 0.85%. The swap arrangements are being accounted for as a cash flow hedge
(note 18).
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Saks Mortgage

On December 3, 2014, Saks Flagship Real Property LLC (“Saks Flagship”), an indirect subsidiary of Saks, obtained a
U.S.$1,250 million, twenty year mortgage on the ground portion of its Saks Fifth Avenue flagship store in New York City, located at
611 Fifth Avenue (the “Saks Mortgage”) with Bank of America, N.A. as the administrative agent.

The Saks Mortgage matures December 3, 2034, carries a fixed interest rate of 4.39% and requires interest only payments. The mortgage
is secured by a first mortgage lien on the fee interest in the property, together with all ground lease rents, profits and revenue.

Net of associated fees and expenses, all proceeds from the Saks Mortgage were utilized to permanently pay down U.S.$1,200 million of
Senior Term Loan B.

The Saks Mortgage contains representations and warranties, positive and negative covenants, reporting requirements and events of
default. As at January 31, 2015, the Company was in compliance with the covenants contained in the Saks Mortgage.
HBC Term Loan (Canadian properties)

Concurrently with the closing of the IPO on November 26, 2012, the Company entered into an agreement with BMO Capital Markets
and Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, as co-lead arrangers and joint bookrunners, and certain other lenders for a $250 million
senior non-revolving term loan facility (the “HBC Term Loan”).

The HBC Term Loan was paid in full on November 4, 2013, using a portion of the proceeds from Senior Term Loan B.

The HBC Term Loan had a maturity date of November 26, 2014, bore interest at the bankers’ acceptance rate plus 2.25% stamping fee
and was secured by a first priority security interest in certain of the real property of the Company and its subsidiaries (other than L&T
and its subsidiaries). There were certain mandatory repayments in specified circumstances.

The HBC Term Loan contained representations and warranties, positive and negative covenants, reporting requirements and a number
of events of default. The agreement contained covenants to maintain fixed charge coverage and leverage ratios.
Lord & Taylor GE Capital Term Loan

As part of the Lord & Taylor credit facility agreement with General Electric Capital Corporation executed on May 23, 2013, the
Company obtained a U.S.$200 million term loan (“Lord & Taylor GE Capital Term Loan”). Together with cash on hand, the proceeds
of the Lord & Taylor GE Capital Term Loan repaid the Lord & Taylor term loan (lender was Credit Suisse Securities LLC) in full. In
connection with the repayment of the Lord & Taylor term loan, $6 million of deferred financing costs were written off and are included
in finance costs (note 6).

The Lord & Taylor GE Capital Term Loan was repaid in full on November 4, 2013 using a portion of the proceeds of Senior Term
Loan B.
Other mortgage

As at February 1, 2014, HBC had a mortgage outstanding with a principal balance of $10 million, which required annual payments of
$3 million, including interest, and a final balloon payment of $10 million in February 2014. On February 3, 2014, the mortgage was
repaid in full. The interest on the mortgage was 7.0% per annum, paid on a monthly basis.

Finance leases

As at January 31, 2015, the liability related to real estate finance leases was $130 million (February 1, 2014: $118 million). The liability
includes $93 million (February 1, 2014: $79 million) primarily related to presumed lease renewals that the Company is not contractually
committed to.

As at January 31, 2015, the liability related to equipment finance leases was $25 million (February 1, 2014: $32 million).
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The future required minimum gross rental payments under finance leases for property and equipment, and their net present values as at
January 31, 2015 are as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Lessthan 1 year . . . .. ..o 30
Between 1 and S years . . . . . ... e 55
Thereafter . . . . . . 437
Total minimum lease PaymMents . . . . . . . . .ottt e e e 522
Less: imputed INtErest . . . . . . . .t e (367)
Total finance lease Obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . 155

NOTE 15. PROVISIONS

Year ended January 31, 2015

Severance, Store

Self Restructuring Closing
(millions of Canadian dollars) Insurance & HR Legal ARO’s Costs Other Total
Balance at beginning of year . ... ........... ... ... . 62 64 16 18 5 165
Additional provisions recognized. . . . ... ... ... . ... 39 48 1 1 3 92
Utilized . ... ... . 39) (80) — a7) @A) (139)
Released . . . ... .o — (22) — ) 3) 27)
Transfer from liabilities of discontinued operations . .. ... .. — 75 — — 78
Net foreign currency exchange . . .. ................. 6 1 2 — — 9
Balance atend of year . . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... 68 86 19 — 5 178
Non-current. . .. ... ... ... — 44 19 — — 63
CUurrent . . ... 68 42 — — 5 115

68 86 19 — 5 178
Year ended February 1, 2014
Severance, Store

Self Restructuring Closing
(millions of Canadian dollars) Insurance & HR Legal ARO’s Costs Other Total
Balance at beginning of year . . .. ............... ... 34 51 14 — — 99
Additional provisions recognized . . . . . .. ... ... ... 30 53 1 1 85
Assumed through business combination . . ............. 26 4 — 16 5 51
Utilized ... ... . (31) (41) — — (72)
Released . . . ... ... . . — 5) — — 5)
Net foreign currency exchange . . . ... ............... 3 2 1 1 — 7
Balance atend of year . . . . . ... .. ... ... ... ..... 62 64 16 18 5 165
Non-Current . . . .. .. v v it e — — 16 — — 16
Current . .. ... 62 64 — 18 5 149

0 o4 oo s

165

Self insurance

The Company purchases third party insurance for automobile, workers’ compensation (U.S. only), medical (U.S. only) and general
liability claims that exceed a certain dollar level. The Company is responsible for the payment of claims under these insured limits. The
self-insurance provision is based on claims filed and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet reported. Insurance claims are settled on
a case by case basis over a period which can exceed 7 years. The amounts that the Company will ultimately disburse could differ
materially from the accrued amounts.
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Severance, Restructuring & HR Legal

Severance and restructuring relates to Company initiatives to lower operating costs and improve profitability. The initiatives are
associated with the closure of the discount store business and evaluation of stores with sub-optimal performance. Restructuring charges
in prior years relating directly to the closure of Zellers stores were reported within discontinued operations. In fiscal 2014, the Company
transferred the liability previously reported in discontinued operations to continuing operations.

During fiscal 2014, these initiatives included additional provisions related to Home Outfitters stores of $14 million (2013: nil).
Severance charges of $26 million (2013: $13 million) were incurred for changes to senior leadership, management teams and other
supporting employees as the Company continued to streamline its organizational and management structures as a result of the
integration of its department store operations and the wind-down of Zellers. Severance charges of $2 million (2013: nil) were incurred
related to store closures. During fiscal 2013, the Company incurred $29 million of severance and related expenses in connection with the
Acquisition, $4 million related to the relocation of the information technology support function and $5 million related to realignment of
the logistics network related to the consolidation of excess capacity at certain locations. As at January 31, 2015, $75 million (February 1,
2014: $58 million) remains accrued.

The Human Resources (“HR”) legal component of the provision relates to compensation claims made by current and former
employees. During fiscal 2014, the Company recorded a charge of $6 million (2013: $2 million). Compensation claims are settled on a
case by case basis over an indeterminate period. The balance of the provision remaining as at January 31, 2015 was $11 million
(February 1, 2014: $6 million).

Asset retirement obligations (“ARO’s”)

The Company has certain operating leases that require it to remove leasehold improvements and replace or remove other structures at
the end of the lease term. The Company also has obligations to dispose of potentially hazardous materials (principally, asbestos) in
accordance with relevant legislation. The estimate is based on the date of expiry of the lease or, where relevant, the mandatory timelines
of relevant legislation.

Store closing costs

The Company continuously evaluates its real estate portfolio and closes underproductive stores in the normal course of business as
leases expire or as other circumstances dictate. Store closing costs include lease termination fees, asset disposals and other closure
activities.

NOTE 16. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Company conducts a substantial part of its operations from leased stores in shopping and power centres, and also leases warehouse
facilities, administrative facilities and equipment.

Many of the Company’s store leases require equal monthly rent payments over the lease term. However, numerous store lease
agreements include rent holidays, rent escalation clauses and/or contingent rent provisions that require additional payments based on a
percentage of sales in excess of specified levels. Rent for renewal periods of the Company’s leases varies.

Rental expense related to operating leases charged to earnings in fiscal 2014 was $276 million (2013: $162 million).

Minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases

The future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Fiscal year:

200 L e 143
20016 . o 133
2007 o e 123
2 110
2000 L e 99
Thereafter . . . . . e 1,064
Total minimum lease PAYMENts . . . . . . . oo vttt et e e e e e e e 1,672
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Of the total minimum lease payments, $19 million relates to Zellers leases that were not assigned to Target Corporation (“Target”)
(note 29). For those leases which have been assigned to Target and for which the Company remains the lessee on the master lease
agreement, HBC has guaranteed the commitment over the remaining term of the lease (note 25).

NOTE 17. PENSIONS AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Aggregate information about the Company’s Canadian (“CDN”) and U.S. pension and benefit plans are presented below. The
U.S. pension plans are sponsored by Saks for which there are no future benefit accruals for all remaining participants. Both L&T and
Saks sponsor defined contribution plans (401(k) retirement savings plans) which are discussed in the Defined Contribution Pension
Plans section below.

Amounts Recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets

2014 2013
CDN CDN U.S. CDN CDN U.S.
Pension  Benefit Pension Pension Benefit Pension

(millions of Canadian dollars) Plans Plans Plans Plans Plans Plans
Funded status. . .. ........ ... ... ... . ... 69 (36) (46) 72 3%5) (31)
Less: current portion . . . ... ....... ... ... — 3 1 — 3 2
69 33) (45) 72 (32) (29)

Other long-term employee benefits liability . . ... .......... — 31 — — (3%5) —
Pension and employee benefits asset (liability) . . ........... 69 (64) 45) 72 67) (29)

The current portion of the pension and employee benefits liability is included in other payables and accrued liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets.

Employer contributions to defined benefit pension plans in fiscal 2015 will approximate $1 million.

Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

2014 2013
CDN CDN U.S. CDN CDN U.S.
Pension  Benefit Pension Pension Benefit Pension

(millions of Canadian dollars) Plans® Plans Plans Plans® Plans Plans
Fair value at beginning of year . . . . ................... 1,213 — 135 1,240 — —
Acquired through business combination . ................ — — — — — 129
Return on plan assets (excluding interest) . .. ... .......... 65 — 8 68 — 1
Interestincome . . . .. ... ... L 103 — 4 85 — 1
Employer contributions . . . . . ... ... ..o 1 3 — — 4 —
Employee contributions . . .. ... ... L oo L 10 — — 11 — —
Administration Costs . . . . ... .. 3) — ?2) 3) — 1)
Benefits paid . ... ... ... (125) 3) (14) (188) 4 “4)
Net foreign currency exchange . .. .................... — — 20 — — 9
Fair value atend of year . . . . ... .................... 1,264 — 151 1,213 — 135

(1) Includes defined contribution plan assets of $527 million (February 1, 2014: $512 million).
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Changes in the Defined Benefit Obligation

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Balance, beginning of year. . . . . ... ... ... oL
Assumed through business combination . ................
Current SErvice CoSt . . . . ... ..
Past service cost . . .. ... ... ...
Settlements . . . ......... . .. ...
Employee contributions . ... ......... .. . . ...
Interest expense . .. ........ .. ...
Benefits paid . ... ... ...
Change in demographic assumptions . . .................
Change in financial assumptions . . . .. .................
Experience adjustments . .. ........... . . ... ... .. ...
Net foreign currency exchange . .. ....................

Balance,end of year . ... ... ... ... ... ... . ..

(2) Includes defined contribution plan liabilities of $527 million (February 1, 2014: $512 million).

Cumulative Actuarial (Losses) Gains

The cumulative actuarial (losses) gains recognized in other comprehensive income for the Company’s plans are as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Cumulative amount, beginning of year . .. ... ............
Net actuarial gains (losses) recognized . . ... .............

Cumulative amount, end of year . . . . ... ... ............

Pension and Benefit Plan Expense

Fiscal 2014 and 2013 pension and benefit plan expense is comprised of the following:

(millions of Canadian dollars)

Current SeIVICE COSt .« v v v v v v e e e e e e
Past service COSt . . . . . . .
Settlements . . . ... ... ..
Administration CostS . . . . ...

Net expense recognized in selling, general and administrative
EXPEISES . . . ...

Interest income on plan assets . .. ....................

Interest expense on plan obligations. . . ... ..............

Net (income) expense recognized in finance costs . . ... ... ...
Net expense recognized in net earnings (loss) . ............

Changes in demographic assumptions . . . .. ..............
Changes in financial assumptions . ... .................
Experience adjustments . ... .............. ... . ...
Return on plan assets (excluding interest income) . . .. .......

Net (income) expense recognized in other comprehensive income .

Net expense (income) recognized in comprehensive income (loss) .
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2014 2013
CDN CDN U.S. CDN CDN U.S.
Pension  Benefit Pension Pension Benefit Pension
Plans® Plans Plans Plans® Plans Plans
1,141 35 166 1,202 37 —
— — — — — 158
17 —_ — 22 — _
1 — — 2 — —
12) — — 1 — —
10 — — 11 — —
100 1 5 84 1 1
(125) 3) 14) (188) C)) 4
2 — 4 25 2 1
70 2 12 (13) (1) 1)
9) 1 1 5) — —
— — 23 — — 11
1,195 36 197 1,141 35 166
2014 2013
CDN CDN U.S. CDN CDN U.S.
Pension  Benefit Pension Pension Benefit Pension
Plans Plans Plans Plans Plans Plans
2) W) 1 (63) (6) —
2 @) ©) 61 1) 1
- ® ® @ o
2014 2013
CDN CDN U.S. CDN CDN U.S.
Pension  Benefit Pension Pension Benefit Pension
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HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 17. PENSIONS AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)
Defined Contribution Pension Plans

Included in CDN Pensions Plans’ current service cost above is a $12 million expense in fiscal 2014 (2013: $15 million, of which
$9 million related to continuing operations) that represents contributions made in connection with the defined contribution plans.

In fiscal 2014, Saks and L&T contributed $10 million (2013: $4 million) to their U.S. defined contribution plans.

Other Long Term Employee Benefits

During fiscal 2014, the Company recognized a $6 million (2013: $6 million) expense in selling, general and administrative expenses
related to its other long term employee benefits.

Actuarial Assumptions

HBC and its non-executive employees contribute in equal amounts to HBC’s defined contribution plans. The defined benefit plans are
funded by employee contributions, as a percentage of salary, and by HBC to support the actuarial based pension benefits. The defined
benefit plans provide benefits based on members’ earnings and service.

The Company’s pension and benefits obligation and expense are dependent on the assumptions used in calculating these amounts.
These assumptions include discount rate, rate of compensation increase and overall Canadian health care cost trend rate.

2014 2013
CDN CDN
CDN CDN Other U.S. CDN CDN Other U.S.
Pension  Benefit Long Term Pension Pension Benefit Long Term Pension
Plans Plans Benefits Plans Plans Plans Benefits Plans
Defined benefit obligations, end of
the fiscal year
Discountrate . ............. 3.40% 3.20% 2.75% 2.90% 4.40% 4.20% 3.60% 3.80%
Rate of compensation increase . . . 3.00% N/A N/A N/A 3.00% N/A N/A N/A
Net benefit expense for the fiscal year
Discount rate . . ............ 4.40% 4.20% 3.60% 3.80% 4.25% 4.00% 3.50% 3.80%
Rate of compensation increase . . . 3.00% N/A N/A N/A 3.25% N/A N/A N/A
Health care trend rate:
Defined benefit obligations, end of
the fiscal year
Immediate. . . . ........... N/A 6.43% 6.43% N/A N/A 6.04% 6.04% N/A
Ultimate . . .. ............ N/A 4.50% 4.50% N/A N/A 4.50% 4.50% N/A
Net benefit expense for the fiscal
year
Immediate. . . .. .......... N/A 6.04% 6.04% N/A N/A 6.14% 6.14% N/A
Ultimate . . .. ............ N/A 4.50% 4.50% N/A N/A 4.50% 4.50% N/A
Life expectancy (years):
Life expectancy from age 65
Male . ................. 86.5 86.5 N/A 85.9 86.1 86.1 N/A 83.8
Female . ................ 89.0 89.0 N/A 87.5 88.3 88.3 N/A 85.6
Defined Benefit Obligation by Participant Status
2014 2013
CDN CDN
CDN CDN Other U.S. CDN CDN Other U.S.
Pension  Benefit Long Term Pension Pension Benefit Long Term Pension
Plans® Plans Benefits Plans Plans® Plans Benefits Plans
Active members . ... .......... 185 1 44 57 189 1 49 50
Vested deferred members . . . ... .. 59 — — 60 51 — — 55
Retirees . .. ................ 424 35 — 80 389 34 — 61
Total . ....... ... ... ... ... 668 36 44 197 629 35 49 166

(3) Excludes plan liabilities of $527 million (February 1, 2014: $512 million) for defined contribution plan participants.
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NOTE 17. PENSIONS AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Assets by Class and Level

Supplemental information regarding the assets of the Company’s pension plans by class and level according to the fair value hierarchy
(see note 18) is presented below:

2014 2013
(millions of Canadian dollars) Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total Levell Level2 Level3 Total
CDN Pension Plans
Short-term and cash. . . . ............... 51 11 — 62 56 13 — 69
Canadian equities . . .................. 62 — — 62 56 — — 56
Foreign equities . . ................... 80 — — 80 67 — — 67
Real estate equities . . . .. ...... ... ... — — 15 15 — — 22 22
Private equity funds and other . . .......... — — 185 185 — — 133 133
Pooled funds . ...................... — 860 — 860 — 866 — 866
193 871 200 1,264 179 879 155 1,213
U.S. Pension Plans
Pooled funds .. ......... ... . ... . ..., — 151 — 151 — 135 — 135

Sensitivity analysis

The following table provide a sensitivity analysis of changes in the health care trend rate, discount rate, rate of compensation and life
expectancy assumptions. Specifically, the impacts of the sensitivity analysis are shown as increases (decreases) to defined benefit
obligations. The sensitivity analysis is hypothetical and should be used with caution. Actual experience may result in changes in a
number of key assumptions simultaneously. Changes in one factor may result in changes in another, which could amplify or reduce the
impact of such assumptions.

2014 2013
CDN CDN CDN U.S. CDN CDN CDN U.S.
Pension  Benefit  Other Long  Pension Pension Benefit Other Long Pension
(millions of Canadian dollars) Plans Plans Term Plans Plans Plans Plans Term Plans Plans
Health care trend rate
Effect of 1% increase . . ... .. N/A 3 1 N/A N/A 3 1 N/A
Effect of 1% decrease . . . .. .. N/A 2) — N/A N/A 3) — N/A
Discount rate
Effect of 1% increase . . ... .. (70) 3) 2) 13) (65) 3) 3) )
Effect of 1% decrease . . . .. .. 88 3 3 15 80 4 3 10
Rate of compensation/inflation
Effect of 1% increase . . ... .. 5 N/A N/A N/A 8 N/A N/A N/A
Effect of 1% decrease . . . .. .. “4) N/A N/A N/A ®) N/A N/A N/A
Life expectancy
Effect of 1 year increase . .. .. 21 2 N/A ) 16 2 N/A 3)
Effect of 1 year decrease . . . .. 21 2) N/A 4 (16) ) N/A 3

Supplementary executive retirement plan

The Company guarantees an annual pension to certain executives in the supplementary executive retirement plan (the “SERP”’) which
is included in the CDN Pension Plans defined benefit obligation presented earlier. The Company’s guaranteed obligation pursuant to
the SERP for service up to November 10, 2005 is secured by a trust fund for certain members. Total assets of the trust fund as at
January 31, 2015 were $71 million (February 1, 2014: $70 million). The obligation in respect of service after November 10, 2005 is
not secured.
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NOTE 18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table provides a comparison of carrying and fair values of financial instruments as at January 31, 2015 and
February 1, 2014:

2014 2013
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

(millions of Canadian dollars) Value Value Value Value
Classified as fair value through profit or loss

Embedded foreign currency derivatives® . .. ... .. L L o €)) @ (1) (1)

Warrants® . .. (68) (68) (24) (24)
Classified as loans and receivables

Cash . . .. 153 153 19 19

Restricted cash . . . . . ... 15 15 2 2

Trade and other receivables® . .. ... ... .. ... .. ... 212 212 139 139
Classified as held to maturity

Short-term deposits® . . . ... 2 2 2 2
Financial derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

Forward foreign currency contracts® . . . ... ... .. L 22 22 5 5

Interest rate swaps™ . . . ... @ a1 1 1
Classified as other liability

Trade payables® . . . ... (945) (945) (589) (589)

Other payables and accrued liabilities® . . ... ...... ... ... ... ........ (345) (345) (228) (228)

HBC Revolving Credit Facility . . .. ... ... ... . . (159) (159) (88) (88)

U.S. Revolving Credit Facility . .. ............ ... . ... ... . ... ...... (108) (108) (418) (418)

Senior Term Loan B . . . . . . . . ... e (826) (830) (2,228) (2,258)

Junior Term Loan. . . ... ... . — — (334) (345)

Yorkdale Mortgage . . . .. ... . (48) (48) (49) (49)

Lord & Taylor MOItgage . . . . . ..o vttt e et e e e 318) (318) (279) (279)

Saks MOrtgage . . . . . . . (1,599) (1,599) — —

Other MOItgage . . . . . . . . i — — (10) (10)

Other Hability® . . . . ... (65) (63) — —

(1) Included in financial liabilities — current

(2) Included in financial liabilities — non-current

(3) Included in financial assets — current

(4) Included in financial liabilities — current (2013: included in financial assets — current)

(5) Includes assets/liabilities of discontinued operations (note 29)

(6) See note 13

The fair value of the HBC Revolving Credit Facility, U.S. Revolving Credit Facility, Senior Term Loan B, Junior Term Loan, Yorkdale
Mortgage, Lord & Taylor Mortgage and Saks Mortgage are valued using a discounted cash flow model, taking into consideration the

fixed interest rate spread included in the related debt compared to fixed interest rate spreads on similar debt available in the market at
the balance sheet dates.

The fair values of foreign currency options, interest rate swaps, forward foreign currency contracts, Equity Commitment Forwards and
warrants reflect the estimated amounts the Company would receive or pay if it were to settle the contracts at the reporting date, and are
determined using valuation techniques based on observable market input data. The fair values of embedded foreign currency derivatives
reflect the estimated amounts the Company would receive or pay to settle forward foreign exchange contracts with similar terms using
valuation techniques using observable market input data.
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NOTE 18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The following table summarizes the change in fair value of financial instruments designated as fair value through profit or loss that has
been recognized in net earnings (loss) for the year:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013

WAITANES . . o o o e e e e e e e e e 44 —

Equity Commitment Forwards . . . . . ... .. — 153
44 153

The fair value of financial instruments are classified and measured according to the following fair value hierarchy:
* Level 1: fair value measurement using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

* Level 2: fair value measurement using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either directly or indirectly
observable; and

* Level 3: fair value measurement using unobservable inputs in which little or no market activity exists, therefore, requiring an entity to
develop its own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing.

All financial instruments measured at fair value are valued using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability and are therefore categorized as Level 2 according to the fair value hierarchy.

Fair values of Level 2 financial instruments are determined using valuation models which require the use of inputs. Those inputs are
based on external, readily observable market inputs, including factors such as interest rate yield curves, currency rates and price and rate
volatilities, as applicable. Interest rate derivatives are valued using a discounted cash flow model based on market interest rate curves at
the period-end date. The forward foreign currency contracts and embedded derivatives are valued based on the difference between
contract rates and spot rates at the period-end date, discounted to reflect the time-value of money. The foreign currency options and
interest rate swaps are valued based on the difference between the exercise rate and the spot rate, volatility of exchange rates and
market interest rates at the period-end date. Warrants are valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model utilizing inputs including
maturity, dividend yield, share price and volatility.

Capital management

The Company includes the following items in its definition of capital:

2013

(restated —

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 see note 2(z))
Short-term loans and borrowings . . . . . . . ... 265 532
Long-term loans and borrowings . . . . . . .. .. e 2,859 2,923
Share capital . . . . . ... 1,420 1,420
Contributed surplus . . . . .. .. 60 43
Retained earnings . . . . . . . .. e 693 491
5,297 5,409

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to maintain ample liquidity to support the operations of the Company, prudently
utilize long-term debt to finance the Company’s long-term assets and investments and provide adequate returns to its shareholders.

The Company manages its capital structure, and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes to economic conditions and its strategic
objectives. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new equity interests or sell assets to reduce debt.
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NOTE 18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to credit, liquidity and market risk from its use of financial instruments. The following is a description of
those risks and how the exposures are managed:

a) Credit risk

The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises if a debtor or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its obligations, and arises
principally from short-term deposits, receivables, and derivative instruments that are in a gain position. Credit risk is mitigated by
various techniques including selecting counterparties based on acceptable credit ratings and minimizing the concentration of positions
with individual counterparties. There is no concentration of accounts receivable balances. The Company does not consider its exposure
to credit risk to be material.

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company manages
liquidity risk by continuously monitoring actual and projected cash flows, taking into account the seasonality of the Company’s working
capital needs, sales and earnings. The HBC Revolving Credit Facility, the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility and the bank overdraft facilities
are used to maintain liquidity.

Undiscounted contractual maturities (including interest) of the Company’s financial liabilities are as follows:

Trade and Loans and Other

(millions of Canadian dollars) other payables Derivatives borrowings liabilities  Total
Fiscal year:
2015 o o 1,290 1 418 27 1,736
2016 . o o — — 147 27 174
2017 o — — 441 11 452
2018 o o — 68 118 — 186
2019 . — — 118 — 118
Thereafter . . . .. ... ... — — 3,992 — 3,992

1,290 69 5,234 65 6,658

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility matures December 17, 2019 and the U.S. Revolving Credit Facility matures November 4, 2018.
These amounts have been reflected as due in fiscal 2015 in the table above to be consistent with presentation in the consolidated
balance sheets.

¢) Market risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk:

i.  Foreign currency risk

HBC is a Canadian dollar functional currency entity that purchases a significant amount of inventory for its Canadian operations in
U.S. dollars. HBC enters into forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign currency options to reduce the foreign exchange risk with
respect to these U.S. dollar denominated purchases. The forward foreign exchange contracts are designated and accounted for as a cash
flow hedge of U.S. dollar purchases.

In accordance with the Company’s risk management policy, HBC may hedge up to 100% of all foreign currency transactions and
economic exposures that are recognized in the consolidated balance sheets, or deemed as firm commitments (e.g. purchase orders that
have been issued for goods and services in foreign currency). It may further hedge up to 70% of forecasted transactions (anticipated
transactions for which there are no firm commitments). HBC’s net U.S. dollar exposure is determined based on entities with the
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NOTE 18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Canadian dollar as their functional currency. HBC’s net U.S. dollar exposure as at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014, excluding its
investment in L&T Acquisition, is as follows:

U.S. Dollar Exposure (millions of U.S. dollars) 2014 2013
Trade payables . . . . . . .. (60) (56)
HBC Revolving Credit Facility . . . . . . ..o (125) Q)
Senior Term Loan B . . . . . . e (650) (2,000)
Junior Term Loan . . . . . ... — (300)
Outstanding purchase orders . . . . . . ... . a7) (20)
Forward foreign exchange contracts . . . . . . .. . . .. . e 176 161
U.S. dollar denominated inter-company receivables . . . . ... ... L. 886 1,503
Total €XPOSUIE . . . . . . o L e 210 (717)

The settlement dates of the forward foreign currency contracts range from February 2015 to December 2015 and the weighted average
foreign exchange rate is 1.15.

For fiscal 2014, HBC recorded a gain of $11 million (2013: loss of $2 million) relating to the translation or settlement of foreign
currency denominated monetary items.

The estimated gains and losses on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges expected to be reclassified to earnings within the next
twelve months is a net gain of $11 million.

The Company’s net investment in L&T Acquisition presents a foreign exchange risk to HBC. HBC used a net investment hedge to
mitigate this risk. HBC had originally designated U.S.$800 million of Senior Term Loan B as a hedge of the first U.S.$800 million of net
assets of L&T Acquisition. The hedge was subsequently reduced to U.S.$350 million upon pay down of certain debt (note 28)
and further to nil, upon pay down of Senior Term Loan B (note 14). Foreign currency translation of the net earnings of L& T Acquisition
impacts consolidated net earnings (loss). Foreign currency translation of HBC’s investment in L&T Acquisition impacts other
comprehensive income.

On an annualized basis, after considering the Company’s hedge of its exposure to foreign currency risk, a strengthening of the
U.S. dollar against the Canadian dollar by 1% at January 31, 2015 would have impacted net earnings for fiscal 2014 by nil (2013:
increased net loss by $2 million).

ii. Interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from short-term and long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During fiscal 2014 and 2013, the Company’s variable rate borrowings were denominated in both
U.S. and Canadian dollars.

Cash flow interest rate risk is mitigated by the use of interest rate swaps.

The Senior Term Loan B, U.S. Revolving Credit Facility and the Lord & Taylor Mortgage all have a variable component to interest
based on LIBOR. There is exposure to interest rate cash flow risk if variable rates rise.

On November 26, 2012, LT 424 entered into interest rate swap arrangements, the effect of which is to fix the interest rate related to the
Lord & Taylor Mortgage at 3.85%. The interest rate swap is designated as a cash flow hedge. The net interest income received under
this arrangement is included in finance costs. The arrangements have an effective date of September 7, 2012 and a maturity date of
September 10, 2017.

An increase of 100 basis points in LIBOR over the past year would have decreased net earnings for fiscal 2014 by $5 million (2013:
increased net loss by $3 million). This sensitivity analysis does not include the impact that an increase of 1% in LIBOR rates would have
on the fair value of the interest rate swaps.

In connection with the Saks Mortgage transaction (note 14), the Company entered into 2 separate interest rate swap lock forward
contracts (the “Rate Locks”) during fiscal 2014 that resulted in the Company fixing the interest rate to be paid over the entire term of
the mortgage. The Company designated the Rate Locks as hedges of the cash flows from the forecasted proceeds of the Saks Mortgage
transaction. Each hedging relationship was assessed to be highly effective and as at January 31, 2015, a net realized loss of $9 million,
with related deferred taxes of $4 million, was included in other comprehensive income representing the mark-to-market adjustments to
fair value from the date of execution of each Rate Lock, October 10, 2014 and November 5, 2014, respectively, to December 3, 2014, the
date of close of the Saks Mortgage.
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The fair value of the Rate Locks was determined using a valuation technique that employs the use of market observable inputs and is
based on the differences between the contract rate and the market rates as at the period-end date, taking into consideration discounting
to reflect the time value of money.

The HBC Revolving Credit Facility described in note 14 bears interest at a variable rate based on the selected interest rate charge
option plus a fixed spread. HBC is exposed to interest rate cash flow risk as the variable rate rises.

On an annualized basis, an increase of 100 basis points in the selected interest rate over the past year would have decreased net earnings
for fiscal year 2014 by nil (2013: increased net loss by $3 million).

iii. Other risks

On July 29, 2013, to finance a portion of the consideration to acquire Saks, the Company received equity commitments from HSILP and
WF Fund. The equity commitments from HSILP and WF Fund required the Company to issue its common shares (see note 20) at a
future date at $17.00 per share (subject to adjustment in certain limited circumstances). Due to the variability of the share issue price
and certain other features of the investment agreements with HSILP and WF Fund, Equity Commitment Forwards were recognized and
accounted for as derivative financial instruments. On the date of the execution of the definitive merger agreement with Saks (“Merger
Agreement”), the Equity Commitment Forwards were determined to be in an asset position. During fiscal 2013, the Company
recognized an expense of $153 million representing the mark to market adjustments from the date of the execution of the Merger
Agreement to November 4, 2013, the closing date of the Acquisition. The fair values were determined using a forward pricing model
utilizing the assumptions outlined below. Upon closing of the Acquisition and at the end of the commitment period, the Company
derecognized the Equity Commitment Forwards and reclassified the related financial liability of $130 million to share capital (note 20).

Certain features of the warrants issued in connection with the Acquisition (note 4) result in the warrants being presented as derivative
financial liabilities recorded at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets.

During fiscal 2014 in relation to the 1.5 million warrants issued to HSILP concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement
(“Merger Agreement Warrants”), the Company recognized finance related costs of $10 million (2013: $5 million) representing mark to
market adjustments to fair value as at January 31, 2015. As at January 31, 2015, the fair value of the Merger Agreement Warrants was
$15 million (February 1, 2014: $5 million).

In relation to the 5.25 million warrants issued to HSILP and WF Fund on November 4, 2013 upon closing of the Acquisition
(“Acquisition Warrants™), the Company recognized finance related costs during fiscal 2014 of $34 million (2013: income of $5 million)
representing mark to market adjustments to fair value as at January 31, 2015. As at January 31, 2015, the fair value of the Acquisition
Warrants was $53 million (February 1, 2014: $19 million). The Company will continue to record mark to market gains and losses on the
warrants until the earlier of the date of exercise or expiry.

The fair values of the warrants were determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the assumptions outlined in the
table below:

Share price — January 31, 2015 . . . . .. $23.42
Share price — February 1, 2014 . . . . . . o $16.47
Share price — July 26, 2013 . . . .. $16.49

Jan 31, 2015 Feb 1, 2014

Expected volatility . . . . . . . e 45% 27%
Dividend yield . . ... ... 0.85% 1.31%
Risk free interest rate . . . . . . . . .. 0.50% 1.21%
Expected life — Merger Agreement Warrants . . . . . . ... ... 3.5 years 4.5 years
Expected life — Acquisition Warrants . . . ... ... ... L 3.8 years 4.8 years

NOTE 19. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION
Option Plan

The Company grants options to certain employees which allow each participant to exercise their share options to either subscribe for
common shares or receive a cash payment at the option of the Company. The cash payment is calculated as the difference between the
market price of the common shares as at the exercise date and the exercise price of the share option. The exercise price of each option
equals the weighted average of the share price for the 5 day period preceding the date of grant. The Company uses the fair value
method to account for share options issued which is established on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
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Senior executive options vest 50% in each of the fourth and fifth year following the grant date. The options have 7 to 10 year terms and
will be forfeited immediately in the event a grantee’s employment is terminated for cause, and after forty-five days in the event of a
voluntary resignation or termination without cause. Share options are subject to a pro-rata vesting schedule if the grantee’s employment
is terminated. Of the senior executive options outstanding, 1,864,437 (2013: 2,003,109) shares have a performance condition and vest
only if the weighted average closing share price for the twenty trading day period ending on the vesting date is at least 50% higher than
the offering price of the company’s IPO or if such performance condition is met after the vesting date but prior to the expiry date.

Senior executive option transactions were as follows:

2014 2013
Number Weighted average Number Weighted average
of options exercise price of options exercise price
Outstanding at beginning of year . . . .. ............... 6,562,603 $17.13 6,090,500 $17.00
Granted . ...... ... ... ... 3,264,118 $19.70 975,603 $17.89
Forfeited . . . . . . ... (881,124) $17.14 (503,500) $17.00

Outstanding at end of year . ... ................... 8,945,597 $18.07 6,562,603 $17.13
Share options exercisable at end of year . . ... .......... — — — —

During fiscal 2014, the grant date fair value of senior executive options granted was $16 million (2013: $5 million).

The following table summarizes information about the senior executive share options outstanding and exercisable as at
January 31, 2015:

Weighted average

Number of remaining Weighted Number Weighted

outstanding contractual life average exercisable at average
Range of exercise prices options (years) exercise price  Jan 31, 2015  exercise price
$17.00 to $17.49 . . . . . ... ... .. ... 5,851,509 7.7 $17.01 — —
$1750t0 $17.99. . . . . ... 1,320,567 6.3 $17.61 — —
$18.00to $18.85. . . . . .. ... ... 589,363 8.9 $18.47 — —
$2350t0$23.99. . ... 1,184,158 6.9 $23.58 — —
Total . . .. ... 8,945,597 7.5 $18.07 — —

Options issued to other management have a vesting period of 3 years and have a 7 year term with no performance condition. The
options are forfeited immediately in the event a grantee’s employment is terminated for cause, and after forty-five days in the event of a
voluntary resignation or termination without cause. Share options are subject to a pro-rata vesting schedule if the grantee’s employment
is terminated.

Other management option transactions were as follows:

2014 2013
Number Weighted average Number Weighted average
of options exercise price of options exercise price
Outstanding at beginning of year . . . .. ............... 969,600 $17.03 929,800 $17.00
Granted . ... ... ... 1,042,400 $17.65 197,000 $17.17
Forfeited . . .. ... .. ... .. (282,600) $17.33 (157,200) $17.01
Outstanding at end of year . . ..................... 1,729,400 $17.35 969,600 $17.03

Share options exercisable at end of year . . ... ... ....... — — — —

During fiscal 2014, the grant date fair value of other management options granted was $5 million (2013: $1 million).
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The following table summarizes information about the other management share options outstanding and exercisable as at
January 31, 2015:

Weighted average

Number of remaining Weighted Number Weighted

outstanding contractual life average exercisable at average
Range of exercise prices options (years) exercise price  Jan 31, 2015  exercise price
$17.00to $17.49. . . . ... ... .. 955,800 5.1 $17.04 — —
$1750t0 $17.99. . . . . ... 756,000 6.3 $17.61 — —
$2350t0$23.99. . . ... 17,600 6.9 $23.58 — —
Total . . .. ... 1,729,400 5.7 $17.35 — —

The assumptions used to measure the fair value at the grant date of senior executive and other management options granted during
fiscal 2014 and 2013 under the Black-Scholes option pricing model were as follows:

2014 2013
Expected dividend yield . . .. ... .. ... . ... 0.9% to 1.2% 1.1% to 2.4%
Expected share price volatility . ... ........ ... ... ... . ... .. . 24.1% to 35.8%  30.3% to 38.7%
Risk-free interest rate . . . .. ... ... ... 1.0% to 1.6% 1.4% to 1.6%
Expected life of options (years) . . . . ... ... ... . 5.0to 6.5 6.5

Phantom Share Plan

The Company grants phantom shares to certain employees. During fiscal 2014, the Company granted 183,150 (2013: nil) phantom share
units with a grant date fair value of $3 million (2013: nil). Phantom share units have a vesting period of 3 years that will be settled in
common shares of the Company or in cash at the Company’s option. As at January 31, 2015, 271,125 (February 1, 2014: 166,500)
phantom share units were outstanding.

Restricted Share Units

The Company grants restricted share units (“RSUs”) to certain employees. During fiscal 2014, the Company granted 272,252 (2013:
115,980) RSUs with a term of 3 years, all of which are expected to vest. The grant date fair value of the RSUs was $5 million (2013:
$2 million) and was determined based on the Company’s share price at the date of the grant. RSUs were granted under similar terms
and conditions as those granted concurrently with the IPO. As at January 31, 2015, 414,240 (February 1, 2014: 153,752) RSUs were
outstanding.

Performance Share Units

Performance share unit (“PSUs”) transactions were as follows:

2014 2013
Outstanding at beginning of year . . . ... ... ... ... 660,162 —
Granted . . . ... 1,158,187 674,939
Forfeited . . . . .. . (155,594)  (14,777)
Outstanding at end of year . . . . . . . .. 1,662,755 660,162
Weighted average contract life (years) remaining atend of year . . . ........... ... ... ... ..... 2.0 29

During fiscal 2014, the grant date fair value of the PSUs granted was $20 million (2013: $10 million), of which $15 million (2013:
$8 million) is expected to vest. The fair value was determined based on the Company’s share price at the date of the grant and adjusted
to reflect non-entitlement of dividends to PSUs. The PSUs vest 3 years from the date of grant at the end of that calendar year and are
forfeited immediately in the event a grantee’s employment is terminated for cause, and after forty-five days in the event of a voluntary
resignation or termination without cause, subject to a pro-rata vesting schedule if the grantee’s employment is terminated.
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NOTE 19. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)
Deferred Share Units

The Company grants deferred share units (“DSUs”) to members of the Board of Directors. During fiscal 2014, the Company granted
52,240 units (2013: 49,823) with a grant date fair value of $1 million (2013: $1 million). The fair value was determined based on the
Company’s share price at the date of grant. No Director will have the right to receive any benefit under the DSU plan until the
participant ceases to be a Director. As at January 31, 2015, 110,221 (February 1, 2014: 57,981) DSUs were outstanding.

Share Based Compensation Expense

Total share based compensation expense for fiscal 2014 and 2013 is summarized as follows:

2014 2013
Share OptionS . . . . . o o o 11 7
Other share based compensationV) . . . . .. . 6 3
17 10

(1) Includes Phantom shares, RSUs, PSUs and DSUs.

Long Term Incentive Plans

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain a long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”) for certain senior executives. Under this plan a
maximum of 100,000,000 incentive units may be granted, which entitle participants to receive cash payments or, at the sole discretion of
the Board of Directors, shares of the granting entity in lieu of cash. As of January 28, 2012, the Company ceased making grants under
this program.

Incentive units had up to a 10 year term, vested in equal installments over a 5 year service period, and were paid out upon a change of
control event or an initial public offering, as defined in the LTIP. Each incentive unit was paid out based on the unit appreciation value,
according to the terms of each grant.

The unit appreciation value reflected the performance of the equity value of the entity against a target equity value established at the
grant date, according to the terms of the grant. These grants were made at the HBC level and at individual subsidiaries and ultimate
amounts payable were determined based upon performance at either the HBC level or the individual subsidiary to which the
grant relates.

During fiscal 2014, nil (2013: $8 million) was paid related to the redemption of long-term incentive plan units. The liability for future
payments related to these redemptions as at January 31, 2015 was nil (February 1, 2014: nil).

NOTE 20. SHARE CAPITAL

As at January 31, 2015 the authorized shares of HBC consist of an unlimited number of common shares and an unlimited number of
preferred shares issuable in series.

The holders of common shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the shareholders.

Common Shares

On July 29, 2013, to finance a portion of the consideration to acquire Saks, the Company received equity commitments from HSILP and
WF Fund for the Canadian dollar equivalent of up to U.S.$500 million and U.S.$250 million of equity funding, respectively. As
consideration for HSILP’s equity commitment, concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, the Company issued
1.5 million share purchase warrants to HSILP, and subsequently issued an additional 3.5 million warrants to HSILP upon the closing of
the Acquisition. In consideration for WF Fund’s commitment, upon closing of the Acquisition, the Company issued 1.75 million
warrants to WF Fund (note 18).

On September 10, 2013 the Company issued 16,050,000 subscription receipts at a price of $17.15 per subscription receipt, for aggregate
gross proceeds of $275 million, net of costs of $11 million. The subscription receipts were issued to finance a portion of the
consideration required to acquire Saks. The net proceeds of the subscription receipts offering were held in escrow until closing of the
Acquisition. Accordingly on November 4, 2013, the Company issued 16,050,000 common shares in exchange for the subscription
receipts.
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NOTE 20. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

On November 4, 2013, upon closing of the Acquisition, the Company issued 30,673,530 common shares for proceeds of $521 million
(U.S.$500 million) to HSILP and 15,376,471 common shares for proceeds of $261 million (U.S.$250 million) to WF Fund.

The change in common shares issued and outstanding is as follows:

Number Share Capital
($)

(millions of Canadian dollars, except shares) of Shares
Issued and outstanding at February 2, 2013 . . ... .. .. .. ... 120,000,000 246
Conversion of subscription receipts to common shares (net of offering costs, transaction costs and

income taxes of $9 million) . . . . .. .. 16,050,000 266
Issuance of common shares to HSILP and WF Fund (net of transaction costs and income taxes of

$4 million) . . ... 46,050,001 778
Fair value of Equity Commitment Forwards transferred to equity (note 18) . . ... ........... — 130
Issued and outstanding as at February 1, 2014 and January 31,2015 . . . . .. ... ........... 182,100,001 1,420

During the year ended January 31, 2015, the Company declared and paid dividends to the holders of the common shares totaling
$36 million (2013: $43 million).

Preferred Shares

The preferred shares are issuable at any time and from time to time in one or more series. The Board of Directors are authorized to fix
before issue the number of, the consideration per share of, the designation of, and the provisions attaching to, the preferred shares of
each series, which may include voting rights. The preferred shares of each series will rank on parity with the preferred shares of every
other series and will be entitled to preference over the common shares and any other shares ranking junior to the preferred shares with
respect to payment of dividends and distribution of any property or assets in the event of the Company’s liquidation, dissolution or
winding-up, whether voluntary or involuntary.

As at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014, there were no preferred shares issued and outstanding.

Warrants

As at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014, the 6.75 million warrants issued to HSILP and WF Fund as consideration for the equity
commitments are outstanding. The warrants are exercisable into common shares of the Company at an exercise price of $17.00 per
warrant which in certain circumstances is subject to adjustment. The warrants expire on November 4, 2018.
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NOTE 21. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE

Net earnings (loss) per common share and weighted average common shares outstanding are calculated as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars or shares except per share amounts) 2014 2013
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations for basic earnings per share . . ...................... 238 177)
Net loss from discontinued operations for basic earnings per share . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... — (82)
Net earnings (loss) for basic earnings per share . . . ... ... ... ... ... . 238 (259)
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations for basic earnings per share ... ..................... 238 177)
Impact of Warrants . . . . . . . .ot — 5)
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations for diluted earnings per share . . .. ................... 238 (182)
Net loss from discontinued operations for diluted earnings per share. . . ... ....... .. ....... ... ..., — (82)
Net earnings (loss) for diluted earnings per share . . . ... ... . ... .. ... . ... . L 238 (264)
Weighted average common shares outstanding . . . . . .. ... .. .. L 182 135
Dilutive effect of options and RSUs . . . . . . . 1 —
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding . . . . . ... ... ... ... Lo 183 135

Basic net earnings (loss) per common share

Continuing OPerations . . . . . . . .. ottt 1.31 (1.31)
Discontinued Operations . . . . . . . .. .. e — (0.61)
131 (1.92)

Diluted net earnings (loss) per common share
Continuing OPErationS . . . .« ¢ o v v vt ittt e e e e e e e e e 1.30 (1.34)
Discontinued Operations . . . . . . . . ...ttt e — (0.61)
1.30 (1.95)

Excluded from the computation of diluted net earnings (loss) per common share were 7,321,079 (2013: 9,183,476) potentially dilutive
instruments, as they were anti-dilutive.

NOTE 22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between HBC and its subsidiaries (note 27), which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note. Details of transactions with other related parties are disclosed below.

On May 6, 2011, a subsidiary of L&T Acquisition entered into a 2 year lease with SP 35 L.P. (the “Landlord”) for approximately
31,000 sq. ft. in Shrewsbury, NJ. The lease was amended on January 17, 2013 to include 3 renewal options. The first 2 renewal options
are for terms of 2 and 3 years, respectively at an annual cost of U.S.$440 thousand. The third renewal option is for a term of 5 years at
an annual cost of U.S.$484 thousand. The first and second renewal options were exercised. Amounts charged to the Company under the
rental arrangement for fiscal 2014 were U.S.$440 thousand (2013: U.S.$376 thousand). The Landlord is an affiliate of National Realty &
Development Corp. (“NRDC”). Richard and Robert Baker, the principals of NRDC, are Directors of the Company.

During fiscal 2014, the Company accrued $314 thousand (2013: $300 thousand) from Hudson’s Bay Trading Company, LP, a shareholder
of the Company, with respect to the reimbursement of expenses for services provided by HBC on their behalf.

On February 25, 2014, the Company closed its agreement to sell its downtown Toronto flagship retail complex and the Simpson’s Tower
to an affiliate of The Cadillac Fairview Corporation Limited, an affiliate of HSILP, for a purchase price of $650 million (note 28).

All of the above amounts have been recorded at the exchange value of the transaction.
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NOTE 23. COMPENSATION

The remuneration of key management personnel for fiscal 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Short-term benefits . . . . . . . ... 10 9
Post-employment benefits . . . ... ... 1 2
Other long-term benefits . . . . .. . . . . 10 9
Share based compensation . . . . . . . .. ... e 8 4
29 24

The compensation noted in the above table forms part of the total employee benefits expense recorded by the Company in fiscal 2014
totaling $1,703 million (2013: $1,157 million, including discontinued operations).

NOTE 24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of January 31, 2015, the Company is involved in and potentially subject to various claims by third parties arising out of the normal
course and conduct of its business. Although such matters cannot be predicted with certainty, management currently considers the
Company’s exposure to such claims and litigation, tax assessments and reassessments, to the extent not covered by the Company’s
insurance policies or otherwise provided for, not to be material to the consolidated financial statements, but may have a material impact
in future periods.

NOTE 25. GUARANTEES

As part of normal operations, the Company regularly reviews its real estate portfolio and store locations. Based on the reviews
conducted in prior years, the Company has closed certain store premises that it deemed to be non-strategic. Where these premises were
leased, when possible, the Company assigned its leases to other retail operators, but remained obligated to the landlord on those leases
as the original tenant thereunder despite the assignment. If the assignee were to default on the lease agreement, the Company would
remain obligated to the landlord for payment of amounts due under the lease. The terms of these assigned leases can extend up to the
year 2024. As of January 31, 2015, these leases have future minimum lease payments of $154 million (February 1, 2014: $150 million), of
which $113 million (February 1, 2014: $145 million), relates to leases assigned to Target, in addition to other lease related expenses, such
as property taxes and common area maintenance. The Company has a full, unconditional and continuing guarantee and indemnity from
the ultimate parent of Target, regarding all ongoing obligations related to the store leases acquired by Target (or its affiliates) which
include the assumption of all obligations and liabilities of Zellers arising under these leases after closing of such sale. The Company’s
obligation would be offset by payments from existing or future assignees and their obligations to the Company to comply with the
assigned leases. Potential liabilities related to these guarantees may be subject to certain defenses by the Company. The Company does
not expect to make any significant payments with respect to these lease obligations and believes that the risk of significant loss is low.

In connection with the sale of leasehold interests to Target, the Company has indemnified Target up to a maximum of $1,825 million in
respect of any damages arising from any failure to comply with any representation or warranty under the transaction agreement to be
true, any failure of the Company to fulfill any of its obligations under the agreement, the use of any of the leased properties prior to
transfer to Target, environmental liabilities associated with any of the leased properties, and any liabilities associated with the leased
properties not assumed by Target.

From time to time, Saks has issued guarantees to landlords under leases of stores operated by its subsidiaries. Certain of these stores
were sold in connection with the sale of the Saks Department Store Group to Belk, Inc. in 2005 and the sale of the Northern
Department Store Group to The Bon-Ton Stores, Inc. in 2006. If the purchasers fail to perform certain obligations under the leases
guaranteed, the Company could have obligations to landlords under such guarantees. The terms of these guaranteed leases can extend
up to the year 2024. As of January 31, 2015, these leases have future minimum lease payments of $103 million (February 1, 2014:
$105 million). Based on the information currently available, the Company does not believe that its potential obligations under these
lease guarantees would be material.

In the normal course of business, the Company has entered into agreements pursuant to which the Company provides indemnification
commitments to counterparties. These indemnification commitments require the Company to compensate counterparties for costs
incurred as a result of breaches of representations or warranties, changes in laws or regulations or as a result of litigation claims that
may be suffered by the counterparty as a result of the transaction. The Company also has director and officer indemnification
agreements. The terms of the indemnification commitments will vary based on the contract. Given the nature of these indemnification
commitments, the Company is unable to estimate the maximum potential liability but does not expect to make any significant payments
with respect to these commitments.
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NOTE 26. SEGMENTED REPORTING

The Company has one reportable segment, Department Stores, which earns revenue from the sale of fashion apparel, accessories,
cosmetics and home products to customers in a similar target market. The Department Stores segment, which includes Hudson’s Bay,
Lord & Taylor, Saks Fifth Avenue, OFF 5TH and Home Outfitters, is managed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker and supported
by an integrated shared services function.

The following summarizes retail sales from continuing operations, total operating income from continuing operations and total assets by
geographic area:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Total retail sales
Canada . . . . . e e 2,810 2,719
United States . . . . . o o oo e e 5,359 2,504
8,169 5,223
2013
(restated —
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 see note 2(z))
Total operating income (loss)
Canada . . . . .. e 413 38
United States . . . . ... 68 (33)
481 5
2013
(restated —
see note 2(z)
(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 and note 4)
Non-current assets®”
Canada . . . . ... e 666 695
United States . . . . . . . o e e e e e e 5,268 4,616
5,934 5,311
Total assets
Canada . . . . .. e 1,903 1,749
United States . . . . . . . o e e e e 7,169 6,193
9,072 7,942

(1) Excludes deferred tax assets and pensions and employee benefits

NOTE 27. SUBSIDIARIES

Entities controlled by HBC are included in these consolidated financial statements. Control exists when the Company has the ability to
direct the relevant activities and the return of an entity. The financial statements of such entities are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date control commences until the date that control ceases. Significant subsidiaries of the Company are:

n £ Oyvnership

inco(l:'g(l)lrz::.'ﬂ)r? and _ interest
Name of subsidiary operation 2014 2013
Zellers InC. . . . . .o Canada N/A  100%
Lord & Taylor LLC . . . . . L e United States 100%  100%
LT Propco LLC . . . . . United States 100%  100%
LT 424 LLC . . . o e e e e e e e United States 100%  100%
Saks Incorporated. . . . . . . .. United States 100%  100%
Saks Flagship Real Property LLC . . .. ... ... ... . ... .. . . United States 100% N/A
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NOTE 28. SALE AND LEASEBACK TRANSACTION

On February 25, 2014, the Company sold its downtown Toronto flagship retail complex and the Simpson’s Tower located at 401 Bay
Street to an affiliate of The Cadillac Fairview Corporation Limited for a purchase price of $650 million. The Company has leased the
entire retail and office complex back for a base term of twenty-five years with renewal options of up to approximately twenty-five years.
Proceeds of the transaction were used to retire in entirety the Junior Term Loan, which bore interest at a rate of 8.25%, permanently
pay down U.S.$150 million of the Senior Term Loan B, currently bearing interest at a rate of 4.75% and reduce the outstanding balance
of the HBC Revolving Credit Facility.

The total gain on the sale and leaseback transaction was $560 million, $308 million of which was recognized immediately in the
consolidated statement of earnings (loss). The remaining $252 million of the gain was deferred and is being amortized over the term of
the lease as a reduction in rent expense. The deferred gain is included in non-current other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

NOTE 29. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Company has completed the discontinuation of its discount store business which consisted of the Zellers and Fields banners. The
decision followed the sale of certain Zellers’ leasehold interests to Target. As a result of these changes, the Company has reflected the
discount store operations as discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of earnings (loss).

The results of operations relating to discontinued operations were as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Net loss from discontinued operations before sale of leasehold interests, net of income taxes . .............. — (111)
Sale of leasehold interests, net of income taxes of nil (2013: $4 million) . ... ... ... ... .. ... .. ... ... — 29
Net loss for the year — discontinued operations, net of income taxes . . ... ... ...................... — (82)
Net loss from discontinued operations is as follows:

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Retail sales . . . . ..o — 146
Cost Of SALES . . . . o o e — (162)
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses . . .. . ... .. .. ... . — (127)
Operating loss and loss before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . e — (143)
Income tax benefit . . . . . . . . — 32
Net loss from discontinued operations before sale of leasehold interests . ... ... ..................... — (111)

Assets and Liabilities of Discontinued Operations

The consolidated balance sheet for February 1, 2014 reflects assets and liabilities relating to the discontinuance of the Zellers and Fields
businesses. The following table sets out the assets and liabilities relating to Zellers and Fields businesses included in discontinued
operations as at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014.

(millions of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013
Trade and other receivables . . . . . . . . . .. e e — 2
Assets of discontinued operations . . . . . . . .. L e e — 2
Trade payables . . . . . . L — 4
Other payables and accrued liabilities . . . ... ... ... . — 7

ProviSions — CUITENE . . . . . . o vttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e — 77
Provisions — NON-CUITENT . . . . . . . ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e — 1
Liabilities of discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. e — 89

Sale of Leasehold Interests

On January 13, 2011, HBC announced an agreement with Target to sell leasehold interests in a number of its Zellers store locations.

F-50



HUDSON’S BAY COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 29. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

Accordingly the Company recognized in discontinued operations proceeds for the assignment of the leases, operating the selected stores
over the closure period, transferring the properties in broom swept condition and for the transfer of pharmacy records. During fiscal
2013, the Company recognized $33 million of proceeds on the sale of leasehold interests.

NOTE 30. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 11, 2015, a secondary offering was completed pursuant to which 2380162 Ontario Limited, a subsidiary of Ontario
Teachers’ Pension Plan and successor in interest to HSILP, sold 4,899,000 of the common shares of HBC which it held. The Company
did not receive any proceeds from the offering.

On February 25, 2015, HBC announced that it has entered into agreements with each of Simon Property Group Inc. and RioCan Real
Estate Investment Trust to form partnerships focused on real estate growth opportunities in the United States and Canada, respectively.

On March 9, 2015, HBC’s Board of Directors declared a dividend of $0.05 per common share, payable on April 15, 2015 to shareholders
of record as of March 31, 2015.
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Subject to financial results, capital
requirements, available cash flow and
any other factors that the Board of
Directors may consider relevant, it is
the intention of the Board of Directors
to declare a quarterly dividend on an
ongoing basis. It is expected that future
dividend payments will be made to
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of business on the last business day of
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that the related payment date will be
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and timing of the payment of any
dividends are not guaranteed and are
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